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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

General

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company’a isank holding company incorporated in the Sthte o
Nevada and serves as the holding company for Eastmunity Bank, N. A. (th“Bank”), a national banking
association that conducts commercial banking ojeratvithin the states of Virginia, West Virginidorth and
South Carolina, and Tennessee. The Company alss @neenPoint Insurance Group, Inc. (“GreenPoimtfyll-
service insurance agency acquired in September, 20@i7Investment Planning Consultants (“IPC”), rrestment
advisory. The Company had total consolidated asgetpproximately $2.13 billion at December 31, 20énd
conducts its banking operations through fifty-nioeations.

The Company provides a mechanism for ownership@tubsidiary banking operations, provides cafitads
as required, and serves as a conduit for distabuif dividends to stockholders. The Company’s bambkperations
are expected to remain the principal business aajdrmeource of revenue for the Company. The Compésty
considers and evaluates options for growth andresipa of the existing subsidiary banking operatidrse
Company currently derives substantially all ofrégenues from dividends paid by its subsidiary b&nkidend
payments by the Bank are determined in relatiogatmings, asset growth and capital position andagect to
certain restrictions by regulatory agencies asrileesdt more fully under “Regulation and Supervisiaf'this item.

Employees

The Company and its subsidiaries employed 63&ifuk- equivalent employees at December 31, 2008.
Management considers employee relations to belertel

Regulation and Supervision
General

The supervision and regulation of the Company &dubsidiaries by the banking agencies is intended
primarily for the protection of depositors, the dsjp insurance fund of the Federal Deposit InsuzgDorporation
(“FDIC"), and the banking system as a whole, andfaiothe protection of stockholders or creditarke banking
agencies have broad enforcement power over bawknigotompanies and banks, including the power {mise
substantial fines and other penalties for violaiohlaws and regulations.

The following description summarizes some of thvesléo which the Company and the Bank are subject.
References in the following description to applieadtatutes and regulations are brief summari¢isesfe statutes
and regulations, do not purport to be complete,apdjualified in their entirety by reference telsstatutes and
regulations.

The Company

The Company is a financial holding company purstathe Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (“GLB Act"and a ban
holding company registered under the Bank Holdiogh@any Act of 1956, as amended (“BHCA”). According|
the Company is subject to supervision, regulatizth @amination by the Board of Governors of thedfaldReserv
System (“Federal Reserve Board”). The BHCA, the GA\d®, and other federal laws subject financial aadk
holding companies to particular restrictions ontifpes of activities in which they may engage, tnd range of
supervisory requirements and activities, includiegulatory enforcement actions for violations af$sand
regulations.

Regulatory Restrictions on Dividends; Source ofi&jth. It is the policy of the Federal Reserve Board tha
bank holding companies should pay cash dividendsoammon stock only from income available over thstpyear
and only if prospective earnings retention is cstesit with the organization’s expected future nemusfinancial
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condition. The policy provides that bank holdingmganies should not maintain a level of cash dividethat
undermines the bank holding company’s ability tweas a source of strength to its banking subsédia

Furthermore, under the Treasury’s Capital PurcRPasgram, the Company must obtain the Treasury’seun
for any increase in dividends declared on its comistock. This restriction applies until the thimhaversary of the
investment by the Treasury, unless prior to thmetthe Company redeems the Series A Preferred 8tatk issue
to the Treasury or the Treasury transfers the SéiPreferred Stock to a third party.

Under Federal Reserve Board policy, a bank holdomgpany is expected to act as a source of finartiahgtt
to each of its banking subsidiaries and commitueses to their support. Such support may be redu@téimes
when, absent this Federal Reserve Board policgl@irig company may not be inclined to provide it discussed
below, a bank holding company in certain circumstsncould be required to guarantee the capitalgflam
undercapitalized banking subsidiary.

Scope of Permissible ActivitiedJnder the BHCA, bank holding companies genemallyy not acquire a direct
or indirect interest in or control of more than ®¥¢he voting shares of any company that is nadrakbor bank
holding company or from engaging in activities atthen those of banking, managing or controllingksaor
furnishing services to or performing services fersubsidiaries, except that it may engage inctlyer indirectly,
certain activities that the Federal Reserve Boatdrdhined to be closely related to banking or manmgagnd
controlling banks as to be a proper incident theeret

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the GLB Act, effeetiMarch 11, 2000, eliminated the barriers to iaffibns
among banks, securities firms, insurance compamidother financial service providers and perméiskbholding
companies to become financial holding companiestatby affiliate with securities firms and insuca
companies and engage in other activities thatinam€ial in nature. The GLB Act defines “financialnature” to
include securities underwriting, dealing and markeking; sponsoring mutual funds and investmentpaomes;
insurance underwriting and agency; merchant bankatiyities and activities that the Federal Res&ward has
determined to be closely related to banking. Nailagry approval is generally required for a finahtolding
company to acquire a company, other than a baskwings association, engaged in activities thafiaaacial in
nature or incidental to activities that are finahdn nature, as determined by the Federal Redgoeed.

Under the GLB Act, a bank holding company may beeanfinancial holding company by filing a declaoati
with the Federal Reserve Board if each of its glibgy banks is well-capitalized under the Federapasit
Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (“EDA”) prompt corrective action provisions, is wetlanaged
and has at least a satisfactory rating under theranity Reinvestment Act of 1977 (“CRA”). The Conmga
elected financial holding company status in DecenZib€6.

Safe and Sound Banking PracticeBank holding companies are not permitted to eagaginsafe and unsou
banking practices. The Federal Reserve Board twsll@uthority to prohibit activities of bank holdinompanies
and their nonbanking subsidiaries which represasafe and unsound banking practices or which doiesti
violations of laws or regulations, and can assaslknaoney penalties for certain activities condeaton a knowing
and reckless basis, if those activities causedatantial loss to a depository institution.

Anti-Tying Restrictions. Bank holding companies and their affiliates am@hbited from tying the provision of
certain services, such as extensions of creddther services offered by a holding company oaffifiates.

Stock RepurchasesA bank holding company is required to give theéral Reserve Board prior notice of any
redemption or repurchase of its own equity seasitif the consideration to be paid, together withconsideration
paid for any repurchases or redemptions in theegliag year, is equal to 10% or more of the company’
consolidated net worth. The Federal Reserve Boay appose the transaction if it believes that thedaction
would constitute an unsafe or unsound practiceauldvviolate any law or regulation.

The Companys ability to repurchase its shares also is restticinder the terms of the Purchase Agreemen
Treasury’s consent is generally required for thenBany to make any stock repurchases until the #rirdversary
of the investment by the Treasury unless prioh#d time the Company redeems the Series A Pref&tieck that it
issued to the Treasury or the Treasury transferStries A Preferred Stock to a third party. Furthe
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common, junior preferred qrari passupreferred shares may not be repurchased if the @oynig in arrears on the
Series A Preferred Stock dividends.

Capital Adequacy Requirementd.he Federal Reserve Board has promulgated cagiégjuacy guidelines for
use in its examination and supervision of bank ingi¢ompanies. If a bank holding company’s cagalis below
minimum required levels, then the bank holding campmust implement a plan to increase its captad, its
ability to pay dividends, make acquisitions of neanks or engage in certain other activities sudesasng brokere
deposits may be restricted or prohibited.

The Federal Reserve Board currently uses two tgpeapital adequacy guidelines for holding companée
two-tiered risk-based capital guideline and a lagercapital ratio guideline. The two-tiered rislséa capital
guideline assigns risk weightings to all assetsaarthin off-balance sheet items of the holding pany’s
operations, and then establishes a minimum rattbeoholding company’s Tier 1 capital to the aggteglollar
amount of riskweighted assets (which amount is usually less thamggregate dollar amount of such assets wi
risk weighting) and a minimum ratio of the holdiogmpany’s total capital (Tier 1 capital plus Tiecahital, as
adjusted) to the aggregate dollar amount of siglhwieighted assets. The leverage ratio guideliteblishes a
minimum ratio of the holding company’s Tier 1 capib its total tangible assets (total assetsdesslwill and
certain identifiable intangibles), without risk-vgéting.

Under both guidelines, Tier 1 capital (sometimdsrred to as “core capital”) is defined to includemmon
shareholders’ equity (including retained earningslifying non-cumulative perpetual preferred ktaod related
surplus, qualifying cumulative perpetual preferstéack and related surplus, trust preferred seesriind minority
interests in the equity accounts of consolidatdibiliaries (limited to a maximum of 25% of Tierdpdal).
Goodwill and most intangible assets are deductau fFier 1 capital. For purposes of the total risisdd capital
guidelines, Tier 2 capital (sometimes referredstdsupplementary capital”) is defined to includikowances for
loan and lease losses (limited to 1.25% of riskghtsd assets), perpetual preferred stock not ieduw Tier 1
capital, intermediate-term preferred stock andragted surplus, certain hybrid capital instrumepéspetual debt
and mandatory convertible debt securities, andrimtdiate-term subordinated debt instruments (stibjec
limitations). The maximum amount of qualifying T2icapital is 100% of qualifying Tier 1 capital.rqurposes of
the total capital guideline, total capital equailsrTL capital plusqualifying Tier 2 capitalminusinvestments in
unconsolidated subsidiaries, reciprocal holdingsastk holding company capital securities, and defetax assets
and other deductions. The Federal Reserve Boand’srtt capital adequacy guidelines require thariiholding
company maintain a Tier 1 risk-based capital rafiat least 4% and a total risk-based capital raftiat least 8%. At
December 31, 2008, the Company’s ratio of Tiergditehto total risk-weighted assets was 11.92% iechtio of
total capital to risk-weighted assets was 12.91%.

In addition to the risk-based capital guidelinég, Federal Reserve Board uses a leverage ratio addiional
tool to evaluate the capital adequacy of bank Ingldiompanies. The leverage ratio is a company’'sTT@apital
divided by its average total consolidated asseggtah highly rated bank holding companies may hadina
minimum leverage ratio of 3.0%, but other bank hmccompanies are required to maintain a leveratie of 4.0%
or more, depending on their overall condition. A&de@mber 31, 2008, the Company’s leverage ratiouwsb.

The federal banking agencies’ risk-based and Igeeratios are minimum supervisory ratios generally
applicable to banking organizations that meet aegpecified criteria, assuming that they havehighest
regulatory rating. Banking organizations not megtimese criteria are expected to operate with agpdsitions wel
above the minimum ratios. The federal bank regtyadgencies may set capital requirements for acpdat
banking organization that are higher than the mimmratios when circumstances warrant. Federal Redgward
guidelines also provide that banking organizatiexgeriencing internal growth or making acquisitievi be
expected to maintain strong capital positions sufiglly above the minimum supervisory levels, withsignifican
reliance on intangible assets.

Acquisitions by Bank Holding Companie3he BHCA requires every bank holding companylitam the prio
approval of the Federal Reserve Board before it atayiire all or substantially all of the assetamf bank, or
ownership or control of any voting shares of anglqaf after such acquisition it would own or caslirdirectly or
indirectly, more than 5% of the voting shares aftsbank. In approving bank acquisitions by bankiimg
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companies, the Federal Reserve Board is requiredrsider the financial and managerial resourcdsanre
prospects of the bank holding company and the beolikserned, the convenience and needs of the coitiesuio
be served, and various competitive factors.

The Bank

The Bank is a national association and is subgestipervision and regulation by the Office of thm(troller
of Currency (“OCC").Since the deposits of the Bank are insured by BI€Fthe Bank is also subject to supervis
and regulation by the FDIC. Because the FederadfesBoard regulates the Company, and becausesthie iB a
member of the Federal Reserve System, the FedesalrR Board also has regulatory authority whicaady
affects the Bank.

Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates anditfers. Transactions between the Bank and its nonbanking
subsidiaries and/or affiliates, including the Comyaare subject to Section 23A of the Federal ResAct. In
general, Section 23A imposes limits on the amofistioh transactions, and also requires certaindenfecollateral
for loans to affiliated parties. It also limits thenount of advances to third parties which areatethlized by the
securities or obligations of the Company or itsssdilaries.

Affiliate transactions are also subject to Sec@B of the Federal Reserve Act which generally ireguthat
certain transactions between the Bank and itsatff$ be on terms substantially the same, or at &safavorable to
the Bank, as those prevailing at the time for comlple transactions with or involving other nonadfiéd persons.
The Federal Reserve Board has issued RegulatiomMhwodifies prior regulations under Sections 28% 23B o
the Federal Reserve Act and interpretive guidaritte nespect to affiliate transactions.

The restrictions on loans to directors, executiffie@rs, principal shareholders and their relatgériests
contained in the Federal Reserve Act and Regul&@iapply to all insured institutions and their ddizgies and
holding companies. These restrictions include Broi loans to one borrower and conditions that ieshet befor
such a loan can be made. There is also an aggiegétgion on all loans to such persons. Thesasozannot
exceed the institution’s total unimpaired capitadl gurplus, and the FDIC may determine that a tesseunt is
appropriate.

Restrictions on Distribution of Subsidiary Bank idends and AssetsDividends paid by the Bank have
provided the Company’s operating funds and forftiheseeable future it is anticipated that dividepdsl by the
Bank to the Company will continue to be the Compapyimary source of operating funds.

Capital adequacy requirements of the OCC limitahmunt of dividends that may be paid by the Bartitle T
Bank cannot pay a dividend if, after paying theidiwd, it would be classified as “undercapitaliZzéd.addition,
without the OCC's approval, dividends may not biel iy the Bank in an amount in any calendar yeackh
exceeds its total net profits for that year, ptagétained profits for the preceding two yearss leny required
transfers to capital surplus. National banks alsy not pay dividends in excess of total retainefifs;, including
current year's earnings after deducting bad debéxcess of reserves for loan losses. In some ,aage®CC may
find a dividend payment that meets these statutguirements to be an unsafe or unsound practice.

Because the Company is a legal entity separateligtidct from its subsidiaries, its right to paipiate in the
distribution of assets of any subsidiary upon thiesgiary’s liquidation or reorganization will bakgect to the prior
claims of the subsidiary’s creditors. In the eveina liquidation or other resolution of an insudapbository
institution, the claims of depositors and otheragahor subordinated creditors are entitled toiarjpy of payment
over the claims of holders of any obligation of thstitution to its shareholders, including any dgfory institution
holding company or any shareholder or creditorgbkr

Examinations. Under the FDICIA, all insured institutions mustd@rgo regular on-site examination by their
appropriate banking agency and such agency magsaigeinstitution for its costs of conducting &xamination.
The OCC periodically examines and evaluates ndltimareks, such as the Bank. These examinationsweasieas
such as capital adequacy, reserves, loan portokidity and management, consumer and other conuglissues,
investments, information systems, disaster recoaad/contingency planning and management practizesed
upon such an evaluation, the OCC may revalue thetasf a bank and require that it establish sipa@$erves to
compensate for the difference between the OCCquéted value and the book value of such assets.
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Capital Adequacy Requirement§.he OCC has adopted regulations establishingnmuim requirements for tt
capital adequacy of insured national banks. The @@§ establish higher minimum requirements if, dgample, a
bank has previously received special attentionagranhigh susceptibility to interest rate risk.

The OCC's risk-based capital guidelines generatuire national banks to have a minimum ratio efr Ti
capital to total risk-weighted assets of 4.0% amati@ of total capital to total risk-weighted atssef 8.0%. The
capital categories have the same definitions feBank as for the Company. At December 31, 20@8B#mk’s
ratio of Tier 1 capital to total risk-weighted asseas 10.69% and its ratio of total capital tatoisk-weighted
assets was 11.69%.

The OCC's leverage guidelines require national baokmaintain Tier 1 capital of no less than 4.(%awerage
total assets, except in the case of certain higdtgd banks for which the requirement is 3.0% @frage total assets.
At December 31, 2008, the Bank’s leverage ratio 8v@$%.

Corrective Measures for Capital DeficiencieShe federal banking regulators are required ke tarompt
corrective action” with respect to capital-defidiémstitutions. Agency regulations define, for eacpital category,
the levels at which institutions are “well-capit@d,” “adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalizetsignificantly
undercapitalized” and “critically undercapitalized. “well-capitalized” bank has a total risk-basealpital ratio of
10.0% or higher; a Tier 1 risk-based capital rafi6.0% or higher; a leverage ratio of 5.0% or leigland is not
subject to any written agreement, order or directequiring it to maintain a specific capital let@ any capital
measure. An “adequately capitalized” bank hasal tegk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or higher; arTi risk-based
capital ratio of 4.0% or higher; a leverage rafid.®% or higher (3.0% or higher if the bank watedaa composite
in its most recent examination report and is ngieeiencing significant growth); and does not mbetdriteria for a
well-capitalized bank. A bank is “undercapitalizefiit fails to meet any one of the ratios requitecbe adequately
capitalized. The Bank is classified as “well-calited” for purposes of the FDIC’s prompt correctagtion
regulations.

In addition to requiring undercapitalized institrts to submit a capital restoration plan, agengulegions
contain broad restrictions on certain activitieainflercapitalized institutions including asset gigwacquisitions,
branch establishment and expansion into new lihésisiness. With certain exceptions, an insuredsiqry
institution is prohibited from making capital disttions, including dividends, and is prohibitedrfr paying
management fees to control persons if the ingtitutvould be undercapitalized after any such digtidin or
payment.

As an institution’s capital decreases, the federglilators’ enforcement powers become more sedere.
significantly undercapitalized institution is sutfj¢o mandated capital raising activities, resiwits on interest rates
paid and transactions with affiliates, removal @magement and other restrictions. The FDIC hasdohdiscretion
in dealing with a critically undercapitalized irtation and is generally required to appoint a reeeor conservator.
Similarly, within 90 days of a national bank becagcritically undercapitalized, the OCC must appaimneceiver
or conservator unless certain findings are made respect to the institution’s continued viability.

Banks with risk-based capital and leverage rataew the required minimums may also be subjecettain
administrative actions, including the terminatidrdeposit insurance upon notice and hearing, engbrary
suspension of insurance without a hearing in tlenethe institution has no tangible capital.

Deposit Insurance Assessmentshe Bank’s deposits are insured up to applichivligs by the Deposit
Insurance Fund (“DIF"pf the FDIC and are subject to deposit insuransesssnents to maintain the DIF. The Fl
utilizes a risk-based assessment system to evahmtésk of each financial institution based orethprimary
sources of information: (1) its supervisory rati(®@), its financial ratios, and (3) its lorigrm debt issuer rating, if tl
institution has one. The FDIC also adopted a nese lsghedule of rates that it can adjust up or ddepending on
the needs of the DIF, and set premiums for 2008rthvge from 5 basis points in the lowest risk gatg to 43 basis
points for banks in the highest risk category.

In an effort to restore capitalization levels aaahsure the DIF will adequately cover projectessés from
future bank failures, the FDIC, in October 200&gmrsed a rule to alter the way in which it differates for risk in
the risk-based assessment system and to revissitlgpsoirance assessment rates, including basssassat rates.
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The FDIC also proposes to introduce three adjustsrtbat could be made to an institution’s initiakb assessment
rate, including (i) a potential decrease of up tma&is points for long-term unsecured debt, inclgdienior and
subordinated debt, (ii) a potential increase faused liabilities in excess of 15% of domestic defsoand (iii) a
potential increase for brokered deposits in exo&4€% of domestic deposits. In addition, the FIPiGposed
raising the current rates uniformly by 7 basis pofor the assessment for the first quarter of 2@88lting in a
minimum annualized assessment rate of 12 basisgpdihe proposal for first quarter 2009 assessmaes was
adopted as a final rule in December 2008. The F&$G proposed, effective April 1, 2009, an initi@himum base
assessment rate of 10 basis points. A final ruégad to this proposal is expected to be issueshguie first quarte
of 2009. The Company cannot provide any assurasite the amount of any proposed increase in itesiep
insurance premium rate, should such an increas# c&s such changes are dependent upon a varitdgtofs,
some of which are beyond the Company’s control.

FDIC insurance expense totaled $202 thousand afdl thbusand in 2008 and 2007, respectively. FDIC
insurance expense includes deposit insurance assetssand Financing Corporation (“FICO”) assessmeziated
to outstanding FICO bonds. The FICO is a mixed-asinip government corporation established by the @itive
Equality Banking Act of 1987 whose sole purpose teasinction as a financing vehicle for the nowwdeft Federal
Savings & Loan Insurance Corporation. Under theeFadDeposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005, the Bardeivec
a one-time assessment credit of $1.13 million tafy@ied against future deposit insurance assedspibject to
certain limitations. This credit was utilized tds#t $693 thousand and $356 thousand of depositdanse
assessments during 2008 and 2007, respectively.

On February 26, 2009, the FDIC adopted an inteuil®, with request for comment, to impose a one-time
20 basis point emergency special assessment géearii June 30, 2009 and to be collected on Septedih@009.
Based on the Company’s most recent FDIC depositamge assessment base, the emergency speciamsaesf
20 basis points, if implemented, would increaseFIDIC deposit insurance premiums by approximately
$2.87 million in 2009. The FDIC has indicated thahay consider reducing the emergency speciakassent by
half to 10 basis points if, among other factorsnftess enacts legislation to expand the FDIC’sdineredit with
the Treasury.

On February 26, 2009, the FDIC adopted anotherimtaule, with request for comment, to have theapto
impose a further special assessment of up to 16 pamts on an institution’s assessment base etatt day of any
calendar quarter after June 30, 2009 to be colleztt¢he same time the risk-based assessmentslmeted. The
assessment will be imposed if the FDIC determiheXIF reserve ratio will fall to a level that wdudversely
affect public confidence or to a level close toozer negative, among other factors. These inteviesrare be
subject to change and may or may not be enacted.

The Company cannot provide any assurance as &ntioeint of any proposed increase in its depositramsie
premium rate, as such changes are dependent ugiety of factors, some of which are beyond thenany’s
control. Given the enacted and proposed increasassessments for insured financial institution20@9, the
Company anticipates that FDIC assessments on depallihave a significantly greater impact uporeggting
expenses in 2009 compared to 2008, and could afferetported earnings, liquidity and capital floe fperiod.

Under the FDIA, the FDIC may terminate deposit msige upon a finding that the institution has eegag
unsafe and unsound practices, is in an unsafesmuna condition to continue operations, or hasatéal any
applicable law, regulation, rule, order or conditimposed by the FDIC.

Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Programin November 2008, the FDIC adopted a final relating to the
Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program (“TLG Progtartinder the TLG Program, the FDIC will (i) guatas,
through the earlier of maturity or June 30, 20E2tain newly issued senior unsecured debt issugmhliicipating
institutions on or after October 14, 2008, and teeftune 30, 2009 and (i) provide full FDIC depassturance
coverage for non-interest bearing transaction deposounts, Negotiable Order of Withdrawal (“NOWigcounts
paying less than 0.5% interest per annum and lsttereLawyers Trust Accounts held at participa#iiyjC-insured
institutions through December 31, 2009. Coveragieuthe TLG Program was available for the firsda@s
without charge. The fee assessment for coveragerobér unsecured debt ranges from 50 basis pa@irit8Q basis
points per annum, depending on the initial matwftyhe debt. The fee assessment for deposit insara
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coverage is 10 basis points per quarter on amauictsvered accounts exceeding $250,000. In Decegfi8, the
Company elected to participate in both guarantegrams.

Enforcement PowersThe FDIC and the other federal banking agencie tbroad enforcement powers,
including the power to terminate deposit insuramo@ose substantial fines and other civil and animhpenalties
and appoint a conservator or receiver. Failureotoply with applicable laws, regulations and supsory
agreements could subject the Company or the Bankiell as officers, directors and other institutaffiliated
parties of these organizations, to administratauecions and potentially substantial civil moneynglées. The
appropriate federal banking agency may appoinEEC as conservator or receiver for a banking instin (or the
FDIC may appoint itself, under certain circumsta)déany one or more of a number of circumstareest,
including, without limitation, the fact that therddng institution is undercapitalized and has resmable prospect
of becoming adequately capitalized; fails to becamequately capitalized when required to do sés faisubmit a
timely and acceptable capital restoration plammaterially fails to implement an accepted capistoration plan.

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008n October 3, 2008, the President signed intoH&8A,
which, among other measures, authorized the Segreftthe Treasury to establish the TARP. Purst@aMARP,
the Treasury has the authority to, among othegthipurchase up to $700 billion of mortgages, nawtgbacked
securities and certain other financial instrumérs financial institutions for the purpose of staing and
providing liquidity to the U.S. financial markets. addition, under TARP, the Treasury created thpital Purchase
Plan, pursuant to which it provides access to ahffiit will serve as Tier 1 capital to financiasfitutions through a
standardized program to acquire preferred stoakofapanied by warrants) from eligible financial ingtons. On
November 21, 2008, the Company sold $41.50 mikib8eries A Preferred Stock to the Treasury undeQapita
Purchase Program.

On February 17, 2009, the President signed intat@ARRA, which is intended, among other things, t
provide a stimulus to the U.S. economy in the walkine economic downturn brought about by the singpr
mortgage crisis and the resulting dislocationdhanftnancial markets. ARRA also includes numerowus-aconomic
recovery related items, including a limitation ot®eutive compensation of certain of the most higldynpensated
employees and executive officers of financial tasibns, such as the Company, that participateadenT ARP
Capital Purchase Program. Compliance requiremerisruARRA for TARP recipients, which will be furthe
described in rules to be adopted by the SEC amdiatds to be established by the Treasury, inclaegtictions on
executive compensation and corporate governancereeents.

Comprehensive Financial Stability Plan of 200@n February 10, 2009, the Secretary of the Trgasu
announced a new comprehensive financial stabiléy fthe “Financial Stability Plan”), which buildgon existing
programs and earmarks the second $350 billion n$ed funds originally authorized under the EESAe Tiajor
elements of the Financial Stability Plan includga(capital assistance program that will investamvertible
preferred stock of certain qualifying institutiorfs) a consumer and business lending initiativéutad new
consumer loans, small business loans and commencidfjage asset-backed securities issuances (igw public-
private investment fund that will leverage publiegrivate capital with public financing to purckag to
$500 billion to $1 trillion of legacy “toxic assétsom financial institutions, and (iv) assistarfoe homeowners to
reduce mortgage payments and interest rates aaolisbtng loan modification guidelines for govermmand
private programs. In addition, all banking insiitais with assets over $100 billion will be requitedundergo a
comprehensive “stress test” to determine if theyehgufficient capital to continue lending and ta@ib losses that
could result from a more severe decline in the engnthan projected. Institutions receiving assistannder the
Financial Stability Plan going forward will be sebj to higher transparency and accountability steds] including
restrictions on dividends, acquisitions and exeeutiompensation and additional disclosure requinésne

Consumer Laws and Regulation$n addition to the laws and regulations discudserin, the Bank is also
subject to certain consumer laws and regulatioasate designed to protect consumers in transactiith banks.
While the list set forth herein is not exhaustittese laws and regulations include the Truth indimg Act, the
Truth in Savings Act, the Electronic Funds Trangfet, the Expedited Funds Availability Act, the EdCredit
Opportunity Act, and the Fair Housing Act, and was state counterparts. These laws and regulatiansiate
certain disclosure requirements and regulate theneran which financial institutions must deal withstomers
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when taking deposits or making loans to such custenThe Bank must comply with the applicable mimns of
these consumer protection laws and regulationsidoptheir ongoing customer relations.

In addition, federal law currently contains ext@estustomer privacy protection provisions. Undesth
provisions, a financial institution must provideit® customers, at the inception of the customlaticenship and
annually thereafter, the institution’s policies grdcedures regarding the handling of customawapublic persone
financial information. These provisions also prasttiat, except for certain limited exceptions,naficial institution
may not provide such personal information to utiatéd third parties unless the institution disel®$o the custom
that such information may be so provided and trstacuer is given the opportunity to opt out of sditlosure.

USA PATRIOT Act of 2001The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providikppropriate Tools Require
to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001attibt Act”) was enacted in October 2001. The Batict has
broadened existing anti-money laundering legistatidile imposing new compliance and due diligeniskgations
on banks and other financial institutions, withaatjgular focus on detecting and reporting monewytkering
transactions involving domestic or internationatomers. The U.S. Treasury Department has issuddviin
continue to issue regulations clarifying the Pat#ot's requirements. The Patriot Act requires‘éfiancial
institutions,” as defined, to establish certain-ambney laundering compliance and due diligenceyams.
Recently, the regulatory agencies have intenstfied examination procedures in light of the PatAot’s anti-
money laundering and Bank Secrecy Act requiremdits.Company believes that its controls and proedare in
compliance with the Patriot Act.

Troubled Asset Relief Program

On November 21, 2008, the Company entered intatt@lAgreement, which incorporates by reference the
Securities Purchase Agreement — Standard TermsHilrehase Agreement”), with the U.S. Departmerthef
Treasury (“Treasury”). Pursuant to the terms ofRlechase Agreement, the Company issued and stié to
Treasury (i) 41,500 shares of the Company’s FixattRCumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Serigheé\
“Series A Preferred Stock”) and (ii) a warrant (théarrant”) to purchase 176,546 shares of the Campsacommo
stock, par value $1.00 per share (the “Common S}pftk an aggregate purchase price of $41.50 arilin cash.

The Series A Preferred Stock qualifies as Tierditahand will pay cumulative dividends at a rat&d0% per
annum for the first five years, and 9.00% per antiveneafter. The Series A Preferred Stock is gdigaran-voting.
The Warrant has a 10-year term and is immediatadycésable upon its issuance, with an initial geare exercise
price of $35.26. Pursuant to the Purchase Agreerfiesdsury has agreed not to exercise voting paitarrespect
to any share of Common Stock issued upon exertigeedNarrant.

The Series A Preferred Stock and the Warrant vesged in a private placement exempt from registrati
pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act@83, as amended. In accordance with the termsedPtinchase
Agreement, the Company registered the Series AeResf Stock, the Warrant, and the shares of Conhtack
underlying the Warrant with the Securities and Exae Commission (the “SEC”). Neither the Seriesréfétred
Stock nor the Warrant are subject to any contracasdrictions on transfer, except that Treasury wwly transfer
or exercise one-half of the Warrant Shares prighéoearlier of the redemption of 100% of the SeAePreferred
Stock and December 31, 2009.

Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreemeon igguance of the Series A Preferred Stock, tHityads
the Company to declare or pay dividends or distiiims on, or purchase, redeem or otherwise acfpire
consideration, shares of its Common Stock is stbge@strictions, including a restriction agaiimstreasing cash
dividends above the amount of the last quarter dagtiend per share declared prior to October D882 which wa
$0.28 per share, without express permission of tekasury. These restrictions will terminate oneheier of (a) the
third anniversary date of the Series A PreferreatiSand (b) the date on which the Series A PredeBteck has
been redeemed in whole or the Treasury has traadfatl of the Series A Preferred Stock to thirdipa.

In the Purchase Agreement, the Company agreeduthi@itsuch time as Treasury ceases to own anyatebt
equity securities of the Company acquired purstatiie Purchase Agreement, the Company will take al
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necessary action to ensure that its benefit platisrespect to its senior executive officers compith Section 111
(b) of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Ac6D8 (the “EESA”) as implemented by any guidance or
regulation under the EESA that has been issuedsanceffect as of the date of issuance of theeSeh Preferred
Stock and the Warrant, and has agreed to not adgpibenefit plans with respect to, or which covisssenior
executive officers that do not comply with the EE®Ad the applicable executives have consentdtktibtegoing.

On February 17, 2009, the American Recovery and\Rsiment Act of 2009 (the “ARRA”) was signed into
law. Section 7001 of the ARRA amended Section fithe@EESA in its entirety. While the Treasury must
promulgate regulations to implement the restrictiand standards set forth in Section 7001, the ARRAong othe
things, significantly expands the executive compéna restrictions previously imposed by the EESAch
restrictions apply to any entity that has receigedill receive financial assistance under the Hiled Asset
Recovery Program (“TARP"), and will generally caonte to apply for as long as any obligation arighom
financial assistance provided under TARP, includirgferred stock issued under the Capital PurcRasgram,
remains outstanding. As a result of the Compsupgrticipation in the Capital Purchase Program réstrictions an
standards set forth in Section 7001 of the ARRAagglicable to the Company. In addition, Sectio@I{@) of the
ARRA, provides that the Secretary of the Treastwligpermit, subject to appropriate federal bankiggncy
approval, a TARP recipient to repay such assistaneeéously provided under the TARP, without regtrdvhether
the recipient has replaced such funds from anyrathierce or to any waiting period. ARRA further yides that
when the TARP recipient repays such assistance&seheetary of the Treasury shall liquidate the atis associate
with the assistance at the current market price.

Website Access to Company Documents

The Company makes available free of charge onétssite at www.fcbinc.com its Annual Report on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and GurReports on Form 8-Kgnd all amendments thereto, as s
as reasonably practicable after the Company fileh seports with, or furnishes them to, the SE@e#tors are
encouraged to access these reports and the otbenation about the Company’s business on its viebsi
Information found on the Company’s website is ratt pf this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Comparily
also provide copies of its Annual Report on ForrKlGree of charge, upon written request of itsdstor Relations
Department at the Company’s main address, P.O.986xBluefield, VA 24605.

Also posted on the Company’s website, and availabeint upon request of any shareholder to ouestor
Relations Department, are the charters of the Btgrabmmittees of its Board of Directors, the Stmad of Condut
governing our directors, officers, and employees|, the Company’s Insider Trading & Disclosure Palic

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K may include “forddooking statements”, which are made in good fhith
the Company pursuant to the “safe harbor” provisiohthe Private Securities Litigation Reform A€tl895. These
forward-looking statements include, among othaetements with respect to the Company’s belietmsl
objectives, goals, guidelines, expectations, grdiidns, estimates and intentions that are sutgesignificant risks
and uncertainties and are subject to change basedrmus factors, many of which are beyond the gamy’'s
control. The words “may”, “could”, “should”, “would“believe”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “expect”,ihtend”,
“plan” and similar expressions are intended to ifefiorward-looking statements. The following facs, among
others, could cause the Company’s financial peréoree to differ materially from that expressed inhstorward-
looking statements: the strength of the UnitedeStaconomy in general and the strength of the Ea@homies in
which the Company conducts operations; the effef¢tand changes in, trade, monetary and fiscatigaliand laws,
including interest rate policies of the Federaldtes Board; inflation, interest rate, market anchetary
fluctuations; the timely development of competitiew products and services of the Company andadbepsance «
these products and services by new and existingcess; the willingness of customers to substitai@petitors’
products and services for the Company’s produdalssanvices and vice versa; the impact of changérancial
services laws and regulations (including laws camiog taxes, banking, securities and insurancejirtelogical
changes; the effect of acquisitions, including hwitt limitation, the failure to achieve the expeécatevenue growth
and/or expense savings from such acquisitionsgtbeth and profitability of the Company’s
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noninterest or fee income being less than expeatehticipated regulatory or judicial proceedingsanges in
consumer spending and saving habits; and the ssiof#ise Company at managing the risks involvethé
foregoing.

The Company cautions that the foregoing list ofamtg@nt factors is not all-inclusive. If one or marfethe
factors affecting these forward-looking statememts/es incorrect, then the Company’s actual respgormance,
or achievements could differ materially from thes@ressed in, or implied by, forwalobking statements contair
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Therefore, @@mpany cautions you not to place undue reliancthese
forward-looking statements.

The Company does not intend to update these forleatdng statements, whether written or oral, tihet
change. All forward-looking statements attributatolehe Company are expressly qualified by thesti@aary
statements.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

The current economic environment poses significaiallenges for the Company and could adversely effies
financial condition and results of operations.

The Company is operating in a challenging and uageeconomic environment, including generally utaia
national and local conditions. Financial institatsocontinue to be affected by sharp declines inghkestate market
and constrained financial markets. Dramatic deslinghe housing market over the past year, witmfghome
prices and increasing foreclosures and unemployrhent resulted in significant write-downs of assdties by
financial institutions. Continued declines in reatate values, home sales volumes, and finanoésssbn borrowers
as a result of the uncertain economic environmeuldchave an adverse effect on the Company’s barewr their
customers, which could adversely affect the Compmafigancial condition and results of operationsvérsening o
these conditions would likely exacerbate the adveffects on the Company and others in the finhntstitutions
industry. For example, further deterioration indbeconomic conditions in the Company’s marketda:duve
losses beyond that which is provided for in itewtnce for loan losses. The Company may also facéotlowing
risks in connection with these events:

< Economic conditions that negatively affect houginiges and the job market have resulted, and magme
to result, in a deterioration in credit qualitytbe Company’s loan portfolios, and such deteriorain credit
quality has had, and could continue to have, athegmpact on the Compa’s business

* Market developments may affect consumer confidéexes and may cause adverse changes in payment
patterns, causing increases in delinquencies afiadiltieates on loans and other credit facilit

« The processes the Company uses to estimate alleanan losses and reserves may no longer lablel
because they rely on complex judgments, includimgdasts of economic conditions, which may no loihg
capable of accurate estimatis

« The Company'’s ability to assess the creditworttsrasts customers may be impaired if the modets an
approaches it uses to select, manage, and undeitsridustomers become less predictive of futuesgs
offs.

« The Company expects to face increased regulatidts ofdustry, and compliance with such regulaticay
increase our costs, limit our ability to pursueibass opportunities, and increase compliance aigaie

As the these conditions or similar ones continuexist or worsen, the Company could experienceicoimyg or
increased adverse effects on its financial corlitio
The Company and its subsidiary business are subjedhterest rate risk and variations in interesates may
negatively affect its financial performance.

The Company’s earnings and cash flows are largeeddent upon its net interest income. Net inténesime
is the difference between interest income earneidtenest-earning assets, such as loans and sespand interest
expense paid on interest-bearing liabilities, saglleposits and borrowed funds. Interest ratekigindy
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sensitive to many factors that are beyond our ogriticluding general economic conditions and peaf various
governmental and regulatory agencies and, in pdaticthe Federal Reserve Board. Changes in mgnptdicy,
including changes in interest rates, could inflieenot only the interest the Company receives ond@ad securitie
and the amount of interest it pays on depositsbambwings, but such changes could also affe¢ch@)Company’s
ability to originate loans and obtain deposits, éijdhe fair value of the Company’s financial assand liabilities.
If the interest rates paid on deposits and otheolongs increase at a faster rate than the inteaéss received on
loans and other investments, the Company’s netasténcome, and therefore earnings, could be adieaffected.
Earnings could also be adversely affected if therest rates received on loans and other invesgfi@ihimore
quickly than the interest rates paid on depositsaher borrowings.

The Bank’s ability to pay dividends is subject egulatory limitations which, to the extent the Comaapy
requires such dividends in the future, may affebetCompany’s ability to pay its obligations and pdiyidends.

The Company is a separate legal entity from thekBeml its subsidiaries and does not have significan
operations of its own. The Company currently depesriithe Bank'’s cash and liquidity as well as divids to pay
the Company’s operating expenses and dividendsaieholders. No assurance can be made that intilne fthe
Bank will have the capacity to pay the necessariddnds and that the Company will not require davids from the
Bank to satisfy the Company’s obligations. The ity of dividends from the Bank is limited byaxious statutes
and regulations. It is possible, depending uporfittacial condition of the Bank and other factdhst the OCC,
the Bank’s primary regulator, could assert thatnpent of dividends or other payments by the Bankaaransafe or
unsound practice. In the event the Bank is unabpmy dividends sufficient to satisfy the Compargtdigations or
is otherwise unable to pay dividends to the ComptireyCompany may not be able to service its otiiga as they
become due, including payments required to be rtatlee FCBI Capital Trust, a business trust subsjdof the
Company, or pay dividends on the Company’s commacks Consequently, the inability to receive divide from
the Bank could adversely affect the Company’s fai@condition, results of operations, cash flowsd arospects.

The Company is subject to restrictions on its atyilio declare or pay dividends and repurchase fargs as a
result of its participation in the Treasury’s TAREapital Purchase Program.

On November 21, 2008, the Company issued to thaslirg for aggregate consideration of $41.50 million
(i) 41,500 shares of Series A Preferred Stock @phd Warrant to purchase 176,546 shares of theg2my's
Common Stock pursuant to the terms of the PurcAgseement. Under the terms of the Purchase Agregrien
Company’s ability to declare or pay dividends og ahits shares is restricted. Specifically, then@@any may not
declare dividend payments on common, junior preftorpari passureferred shares if it is in arrears on the
dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock. FurtiierCompany may not increase the dividends c@atsmon
Stock above the amount of the last quarter casbietid per share declared prior to October 13, 2608;h was
$0.28 per share, without the Treasury’s approvél tive third anniversary of the investment unleof the
Series A Preferred Stock has been redeemed ofereets

The Companys ability to repurchase its shares is also restticinder the terms of the Purchase Agreemen
Treasury’s consent generally is required for thenBany to make any stock repurchases until the #rirdversary
of the investment by the Treasury unless all ofSkdes A Preferred Stock has been redeemed aféraed.
Further, common, junior preferred jpari passypreferred shares may not be repurchased if the @oynig in arreal
on the Series A Preferred Stock dividends.

The Bank’s allowance for loan losses may not be quate to cover actual losses.

Like all financial institutions, the Bank maintaias allowance for loan losses to provide for prddadsses.
The Bank’s allowance for loan losses may not beaale to cover actual loan losses, and future piavs for loan
losses could materially and adversely affect thekBaoperating results. The Bank’s allowance f@rdosses is
determined by analyzing historical loan lossestentrtrends in delinquencies and charge-offs, planproblem
loan resolution, changes in the size and compeosifdhe loan portfolio, and industry informatioNlso included in
management’s estimates for loan losses are coasinles with respect to the impact of economic evie
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outcome of which are uncertain. The amount of futosses is susceptible to changes in economicatipg and
other conditions, including changes in interestsathat may be beyond the Bank’s control, ancethesses may
exceed current estimates. Federal regulatory aggras an integral part of their examination precesiew the
Bank’s loans and allowance for loan losses. Althiowg believe that the Bank’s allowance for loarséssis
adequate to provide for probable losses, we camswire you that we will not need to increase thekBaallowance
for loan losses or that regulators will not requiseto increase this allowance. Either of theseiweaces could
materially and adversely affect the Company’s esysiand profitability.

The Company’s business is subject to various lemdand other economic risks that could adversely anpthe
Company’s results of operations and financial cotidn.

Changes in economic conditions, particularly ameoaic slowdown, could hurt the Company’s busingbs
Company’s business is directly affected by polltenad market conditions, broad trends in industrgt inance,
legislative and regulatory changes, and changgswernmental monetary and fiscal policies and fidftg all of
which are beyond the Company’s control. A detetiorain economic conditions, in particular an econo
slowdown within the Company’s geographic regioryldaesult in the following consequences, any oiclitould
have a material adverse effect on the Company’méss:

« loan delinquencies may increa
» problem assets and foreclosures may incre
« demand for the Compa’s products and services may decline;

« collateral for loans made by the Company may dedlinvalue, in turn reducing a client’s borrowingwer,
and reducing the value of assets and collateracaged with the Compa’s loans held for investmer

The declining real estate market could impact ther@pany’s business.

The Company’s business activities and credit exygoate concentrated in Virginia, West Virginia, Nor
Carolina, Tennessee and the surrounding regiomrAirlued downturn in this regional real estate raadould hurt
the Company’s business because of the geographéentration within this regional area. If theraisignificant
decline in real estate values, the collaterallier€ompany’s loans will provide less security. Agsult, the
Company'’s ability to recover on defaulted loanssbifing the underlying real estate would be dinfiet, and we
would be more likely to suffer losses on defaulteghs.

The Company'’s level of credit risk is increasing @to its focus on commercial lending, and the contration
on small businesses and middle market customers Wweightened vulnerability to economic conditions.

Commercial business and commercial real estatesIganerally are considered riskier than singlediami
residential loans because they have larger baldocesingle borrower or group of related borrow@smmercial
business and commercial real estate loans invidike because the borrowers’ ability to repay tlasotypically
depends primarily on the successful operation @hilisinesses or the properties securing the |dost. of the
Bank’'s commercial business loans are made to smaihess or middle market customers who may have a
heightened vulnerability to economic conditions.ritmver, a portion of these loans have been madequired by
the Company in recent years and the borrowers raaliave experienced a complete business or ecormytiie.

The Bank may suffer losses in its loan portfoliogfete its underwriting practices.

The Bank seeks to mitigate the risks inherent @Bhnk’s loan portfolio by adhering to specific engriting
practices. These practices include analysis ofreol@r’s prior credit history, financial statemertex returns and
cash flow projections, valuation of collateral béhem reports of independent appraisers and vetiticaf liquid
assets. Although the Bank believes that its undengrcriteria are appropriate for the various lsraf loans it
makes, the Bank may incur losses on loans that itseetderwriting criteria, and these losses mageex the
amounts set aside as reserves in the Bank’s alloaviam loan losses.
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The Company and its subsidiaries are subject toe@sive regulation which could adversely affect the

The Company and its subsidiaries’ operations dpgestito extensive regulation and supervision lgefal and
state governmental authorities and are subjecatiows laws and judicial and administrative decisionposing
requirements and restrictions on part or all of@oenpany’s operations. Banking regulations goveyiire
Company’s operations are primarily intended to gebtlepositors’ funds, federal deposit insurancel$uand the
banking system as a whole, not security holderag@ss and federal regulatory agencies continualgw
banking laws, regulations and policies for possdiianges. Changes to statutes, regulations orategylpolicies,
including changes in interpretation or implememtatdf statutes, regulations or policies, couldcffae Company
in substantial and unpredictable ways. Such chaogélsl subject the Company to additional costsit lihe types o
financial services and products the Company magr@ffid/or increase the ability of non-banks toratfempeting
financial services and products, among other thiRg8ure to comply with laws, regulations or pa@g could result
in sanctions by regulatory agencies, civil monegghges and/or reputation damage, which could fzareterial
adverse effect on the Company’s business, finacoiadlition and results of operations. While the @any has
policies and procedures designed to prevent anly @otations, there can be no assurance that siotdtions will
not occur. These laws, rules and regulations, progimer laws, rules or regulations, that may beptetbin the
future, could make compliance more difficult or erpive, restrict the Company’s ability to origindieoker or sell
loans, further limit or restrict the amount of comsions, interest or other charges earned on loagmated or sold
by the Bank and otherwise adversely affect the Gomis business, financial condition or prospects.

On October 3, 2008, the EESA was signed into lawsant to the EESA, the Treasury was granted the
authority to take a range of actions for the puepafsstabilizing and providing liquidity to the U.fhancial markets
and has proposed several programs, including trehpse by the Treasury of certain troubled asseis financial
institutions and the direct purchase by the Tragastiequity of financial institutions. There can he assurance,
however, as to the actual impact that the foregoinany other governmental program will have onfihancial
markets. The failure of the financial markets &bdtze and a continuation or worsening of curfamncial market
conditions could materially and adversely affeet @ompany’s business, financial condition, resofitsperations,
access to credit or the trading price of its Comi8tock. In addition, current initiatives of Presiti®©bama’s
Administration and the possible enactment of rdggarbposed bankruptcy legislation may adverselgdafthe
Company’s financial condition and results of opiers.

The financial services industry is likely to facerlieased regulation and supervision as a restlieoéxisting
financial crisis, and there may be additional regmients and conditions imposed on the Companyesult of its
participation in the TARP Capital Purchase Prograoch additional regulation and supervision mayease the
Company'’s costs and limit its ability to pursue ipess opportunities. The affects of such recembceed, and
proposed, legislation and regulatory programs enGbmpany cannot reliably be determined at thig.tim

The Company faces strong competition from otherdircial institutions, financial service companies drother
organizations offering services similar to thoseefed by the Company and its subsidiaries, whichulcbhurt
the Company’s business.

The Company’s business operations are centerecgplynn Virginia, West Virginia, North Carolina,
Tennessee and the surrounding region. Increasegeatiion within this region may result in reducedrmh
originations and deposits. Ultimately, we may netble to compete successfully against currenfinde
competitors. Many competitors offer the types @ils and banking services that we offer. These ctioreinclude
other savings associations, national banks, reglmargks and other community banks. The Companyfatses
competition from many other types of financial ingtons, including finance companies, brokerage§, insurance
companies, credit unions, mortgage banks and fitrercial intermediaries. In particular, the Banktsmpetitors
include other state and national banks and majanfiial companies whose greater resources mayldffem a
marketplace advantage by enabling them to maimamerous banking locations and mount extensive ptiomal
and advertising campaigns.

Additionally, banks and other financial institut®with larger capitalization and financial interrstes not
subject to bank regulatory restrictions have latgeding limits and are thereby able to serve tielit needs of
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larger clients. These institutions, particularlythe extent they are more diversified than the Comgpmay be able
to offer the same loan products and services tiea€Company offers at more competitive rates anceprilf the
Company is unable to attract and retain bankirentdi the Company may be unable to continue th&'Baoan ant
deposit growth and the Company’s business, finhooiadition and prospects may be negatively affiecte

Potential Acquisitions May Disrupt the Company’s Bimess and Dilute Stockholder Value

The Company may seek merger or acquisition parthatsare culturally similar and have experienced
management and possess either significant mar&sépce or have potential for improved profitabilityough
financial management, economies of scale or exghsderices. Acquiring other banks, businessestandhes
involves various risks commonly associated withuggitions, including, among other things:

» Potential exposure to unknown or contingent li¢ib#i of the target compan

« Exposure to potential asset quality issues ofdhget company

« Difficulty and expense of integrating the operati@md personnel of the target compz
 Potential disruption to the Comp¢'s business

 Potential diversion of the Compé's manageme’s time and attentiot

* The possible loss of key employees and customeisedhrget compan

« Difficulty in estimating the value of the targetrnpany.

« Potential changes in banking or tax laws or reguiatthat may affect the target compa

The Company regularly evaluates merger and acguisijpportunities and conducts due diligence atitivi
related to possible transactions with other finahicistitutions and financial services companies a/esult, merger
or acquisition discussions and, in some cases tiafigos may take place and future mergers or atipns
involving cash, debt or equity securities may oauany time. Acquisitions typically involve theymaent of a
premium over book and market values, and, therefamme dilution of the Company’s tangible book eatund net
income per common share may occur in connectiom ani future transaction. Furthermore, failuredalize the
expected revenue increases, cost savings, incrigagesgraphic or product presence, andtber projected benef
from an acquisition could have a material adveffeeeon the Company’s financial condition and tesof
operations.

In the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company comjpléte acquisition of Coddle Creek Financial Cothg
holding company for Mooresville Savings Bank, Irf8SB, located in Mooresville, North Carolina. Irdaibn, the
Company'’s wholly owned insurance subsidiary, GreémPPacquired Carr & Hyde Insurance, based in \&fgon,
Virginia, among other agencies. Details of theaagactions are presented in Note 2 in the Notdsgt€onsolidate
Financial Statements included in Item 8 hereof.

The Company may lose members of our management tdagto compensation restrictions

The Company’s ability to retain key officers andmoyees may be negatively impacted by recent latjisi
and regulation affecting the financial servicesuisitly. On February 17, 2009, the ARRA was signéal lew. While
the Treasury must promulgate regulations to implarttee restrictions and standards set forth imhe law, the
ARRA, among other things, significantly expands é¢ixecutive compensation restrictions previouslyassgal by thi
EESA. Such restrictions apply to any entity that heceived or will receive financial assistancearrttie TARP,
and will generally continue to apply for as longaay obligation arising from financial assistancevided under
TARP, including preferred stock issued under thpitahPurchase Program, remains outstanding. Asualtrof the
Company’s participation in the TARP Capital PureéhBsogram, the restrictions and standards set ifottie
ARRA are applicable to the Company. Such restmgtiand standards may impact management’s abilitytain
key officers and employees as well as the Compaatyilty to compete with financial institutions thare not
subject to the same limitations as the Company uiheéeARRA.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
The Company has no unresolved staff comments @i diling date of this 2008 Annual Report on FatfiK.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

The Company generally owns its offices, relatedifses, and unimproved real property. The prindipHices
of the Company are located at One Community PBleefield, Virginia, where the Company owns andwques
approximately 36,000 square feet of office spaceoffDecember 31, 2008, the Company operated lndtions
throughout the five states of Virginia, West VirginNorth and South Carolina, and Tennessee. Thep@oy owns
47 of its banking offices while others are leasedre located on leased land. The Company alsatgseten
insurance offices throughout North Carolina andgViia, including its headquarters in High PointrtlicCarolina.
The Company owns one of its insurance offices andds the remaining locations. There are no marsgagliens
against any property of the Company. A completaljsof all branches and ATM sites can be foundhmninternet
at www.fcbresource.com. Information on such wehsiteot part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

The Company is currently a defendant in variousllegtions and asserted claims involving lending) an
collection activities and other matters in the nakrgourse of business. Although the Company ana legunsel are
unable to assess the ultimate outcome of eactesétmatters with certainty, they are of the béfiaf the resolution
of these actions should not have a material adwadfset on the financial position or the resultoperations of the
Company.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of securitgérd during the fourth quarter of 2008.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS ANI
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The number of common stockholders of record on B 31, 2008, was 2,461 and outstanding shar@ed
11,567,449. The number of common stockholders msomed by the number of recordholders. The Comgany’
common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Seleckatarnder the symbol “FCBC”.

Cash dividends for 2008 totaled $1.12 per share$ar@B per share 2007. Total dividends paid forctmeent
and prior years totaled $12.45 million and $12.08ion, respectively.

The following table sets forth the high and lowcktrices, book value per share, and dividends paichare
on the Company’s common stock during the periodiated.

2008 2007
High Low High Low
Sales Price Per Shar
First quartel $34.8¢ $28.0C $42.3C $35.1¢
Second quarte 34.8¢ 27.7¢ 39.21 28.8¢
Third quartel 39.0C 25.5¢ 37.4¢ 25.4(
Fourth quarte 38.0C 23.4¢ 38.8¢ 30.01
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2008 2007

Cash Dividends Per Shar¢
First quartel $0.2¢  $0.27
Second quarte 0.2¢ 0.27
Third quartel 0.2¢ 0.27
Fourth quarte 0.2  0.27
Total $1.1z2  $1.0¢

As a condition to the Company’s participation ie fireasury’s Capital Purchase Program, the Company’
ability to declare or pay dividends on any of haues is restricted. Specifically, the Company matydeclare
dividend payments on common, junior preferredpam passupreferred shares if it is in arrears on the diviiean
the Series A Preferred Stock. Further, the Commpaay not increase the dividends on its Common Sabcive the
amount of the last quarterly cash dividend pereskaclared prior to October 14, 2008, which wa2&per share,
without the Treasury’s approval until the third aramsary of the investment unless all of the Sefidreferred
Stock has been redeemed or transferred.

The Companys stock repurchase plan, as amended, allows tlohgse and retention of up to 1,100,000 sh.
The plan has no expiration date, remains open arglams have expired during the reporting period. N
determination has been made to terminate the plamsiop making purchases. The Company made no mpeket
purchases of its equity securities during the fogaarter of 2008. The maximum number of sharetsnlag yet be
purchased under the plan was 616,215 at Decemb&088.

As a condition to the Company’s participation ie fireasury’s Capital Purchase Program, the Comigany
restricted from repurchasing shares of its ComntorkSuntil the earlier of the third anniversarytioé date of the
issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock and tteeatawhich the Series A Preferred Stock has begeemed in
whole or the Treasury has transferred all of théeSeA Preferred Stock. As such, the Company doésmticipate
purchasing any shares of its Common Stock undeejiisrchase plan during 2009.
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Total Return Analysis

The following chart was compiled by SNL Securitigs, and compares cumulative total shareholder medéir
the Company’s Common Stock for the fiyear period ended December 31, 2008, with the caitiweltotal return ¢
the S&P 500 Index, the NASDAQ Composite index, drelAsset Size & Regional Peer Group. The Asset &iz
Regional Peer Group consists of 53 bank holdingpaomes that are traded on the NASDAQ, OTC BullBard,
and pink sheets with total assets between $1 biflied $5 billion and are located in the Southeasgfiét of the
United States. The cumulative returns include payroédividends by the Company.

Total Return Performance
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L231403 12731004 L231405 12731006 1231407 [2/31/08
Period Ending
Index 12/31/03 | 12/31/04 | 12/31/05| 12/31/06 | 12/31/07 | 12/31/08
First Community Bancshares, In 100.0C | 112.2¢ [ 100.2¢ | 131.3. | 109.3¢ | 123.8¢
S&P 500 100.0C | 110.8¢ [ 116.3¢ | 134.7( | 142.1( 89.5:
NASDAQ Composite 100.0C | 108.5¢ [ 110.0¢ | 120.5¢ | 132.3¢ 78.7:
Asset Size & Regional Peer Gro 100.0C | 115.0¢ [ 119.7¢ | 134.0¢ 94.7( 81.4¢
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

At or for the Year Ended December 31

Five-Year Selected Financial Dat 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(Amounts in thousands, except per share dat:

Balance Sheet Summan

(at end of period)
Securities(a $ 529,390 $ 676,19' $ 528,38¢ $ 428,55: $ 410,21!¢
Loans held for sal 1,02« 811 781 1,274 1,194
Loans, net of unearned incotr 1,298,15° 1,225,50: 1,284,86. 1,331,03" 1,238,75I
Allowance for loan losse 15,97¢ 12,83: 14,54¢ 14,73¢ 16,33¢
Total asset 2,133,31. 2,149,83i 2,033,69/ 1,952,48 1,830,82
Deposits 1,503,75 1,393,44. 1,394,77. 1,403,221 1,356,71!
Borrowings 381,79: 517,84 406,55t 335,88! 274,21
Total liabilities 1,912,97; 1,932,741 1,820,96! 1,757,98. 1,647,58!
Stockholder' equity 220,34: 217,09¢ 212,73( 194,50: 183,23:
Summary of Earnings
Total interest incom $ 110,76* $ 127,59. $ 120,02¢ $ 109,50¢ $ 96,13¢
Total interest expens 44,93( 59,27¢ 48,38: 35,88( 26,95:
Provision for loan losse 7,42z 717 2,70¢ 3,70¢ 2,671
Non-interest incom 32,29; 24,83: 21,328 22,30¢ 17,32¢
Investment securities impairme 29,92: — —
Non-interest expens 60,51¢ 50,46 49,83 55,59: 48,03t
Income from continuing operations before income

taxes 271 17,13t 19,10: 14,33: 18,477
Income tax (benefit) expen (2,810 12,33« 11,477 10,19: 9,78¢
Income from continuing operatiol 3,081 29,63: 28,94¢ 26,44t 26,02(
Loss from discontinued operations before incon

taxes — — — (233) (5,74¢)
Income tax benef — — — (92) (2,090
Loss from discontinued operatio — — — (142) (3,65€)
Net income 3,081 29,63: 28,94¢ 26,301 22,36¢

Dividends on preferred stor 25E — — — —
Net income available to common shareholc 2,82¢ 29,63: 28,94¢ 26,30: 22,36¢

(a) Reflects the reclassification during 2004 odémal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank $took
Securities Available for Sale to Other Assets, &iaat with the2005-2008presentation
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At or for the Year Ended December 31,

Five-Year Selected Financial Dat-continued 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Per Share Data

Basic earnings per she $ 026 $264 $25¢ $23° $1.9¢
Basic earnings per common sk-continuing operation 0.2¢ 2.64 2.5¢ 2.3t 2.32
Basic loss per common sh-discontinued operatior — — — (0.02) (0.3%)
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 028 $26z $257 $232 $1.97
Diluted earnings per common sh-continuing operation 0.2t 2.62 2.57 2.3 2.2¢
Diluted loss per common shi-discontinued operatior — — — (0.05) (0.39
Cash dividend $ 1.1z $1.0¢ $1.04 $10z $1.0C
Book value per common share at y-end $ 15.4€ $19.61 $18.92 $17.2¢ $16.2¢
Selected Ratios

Return on average ass 0186 1.3% 1.4€¢% 1.31% 1.24%
Return on average ass-continuing 0.14% 1.3% 1.4€% 1.38% 1.45%
Return on average equi 1.4(% 13.5%6 14.3% 13.7% 12.5%
Return on average equ-continuing 1.4(% 13506 14.32% 13.8% 14.5t%
Average equity to average ass 9.86% 10.3(% 10.21% 9.91% 9.8&%
Average equity to average as-continuing 9.8¢% 10.3(% 10.21% 9.91% 9.9€%
Dividend payou 430.7°% 40.91% 40.31% 43.7¢% 50.25%
Risk based capital to risk adjusted as 12.91% 12.3% 12.6% 11.6%% 12.0%
Leverage ratic 9.7% 8.0% 85(% 7.71% 7.62%

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS.

Executive Overview

First Community Bancshares, Inc. is a bank holdioigpany that, through its bank subsidiary, provides
commercial banking services and has positionetf @sea regional community bank and a financiaviees
alternative to larger banks which often provideslesphasis on personal relationships, and smaltanwinity
banks which lack the capital and resources toiefftty serve customer needs. The Company has fddtssgrowth
efforts on building financial partnerships and meneluring and complete relationships with businessel
individuals through a very personal and local apphoto banking and financial services. The Com@ant/its
operations are guided by a strategic plan whicludes growth through acquisitions and through effigpansion ii
new market areas including strategically identifieetro markets in Virginia, West Virginia, North ©&na, South
Carolina, and Tennessee. While the Company’s nnisgimains that of a community bank, managemengedi
that entry into new markets will accelerate the @any’s growth rate by diversifying the demographitis
customer base and customer prospects and by dgriecaéasing its sales and service network.

Economy

The local economies in which the Company operatesli@erse and span a five-state region. West Riagand
Southwest Virginia continue to benefit from expamgdcoal and natural gas operations. These econdraies
significant exposure to extractive industries, sasftoal and natural gas, which become more aatidducrative
when oil prices rise. The local economies in thatree portion of North Carolina have suffered icent years due
foreign competition in both furniture and textiles, well as consolidation in the financial servirekistry. Despite
these detractions, the economies in this regiotimaa to benefit from national companies relocaang expanding
in the Triad and Central Piedmont areas. The Basteginia local economies have, in recent yeaesndfited from
a wide array of corporate and government activdied relocations.
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The economies in each of the regions within the gamy’s markets have experienced significant desline
residential development and construction, congistéth national trends. These declines have lezbtdraction in
residential land development and construction, tvhiave historically been important components ef@ompanys
lending activities. The economies of our legacy kats have remained relatively stable and unemployteeels ar
among the lowest in the nation as of December 3082

The capital markets have experienced significdiquildity throughout 2008 and continuing througle tthate of
this report. This has had an adverse effect owahetion of debt securities, including portiongted Company’s
investment securities portfolio.

Competitive Focus

As the Company competes for increased market stratgrowth in both loans and deposits it contirtoes
encounter strong competition from many sourceskBapansion through de novo branches and loan ptindu
offices has grown in popularity as a means of re@cbut to new markets. Many of the markets tamgétethe
Company are also being entered by other banksarbgenarkets and, in some cases, from more distarkets.
The expansion of banks and credit unions over tegears, coupled with liquidity pressures broughimm 2008
from the credit market turmoil and recessionarynetoy, has intensified competitive pressures on depmsit
generation and retention. These pressures on epiasids have continued to put pressure on negisttenargin.
Despite strong competition from other banks, credibns and mortgage companies, the Company hassseeess
in newly established offices in Winston-Salem, KdZarolina, as well as other markets in both Viiagisnd North
Carolina. The Company attributes this measure ofess to its recruitment of local, established banknd loan
personnel in those targeted markets. Competitikeefoimpact the Company through pressure on intgiess,
product fees and loan structure and terms; howdéveiCompany has countered these pressures wrttatsonship
style of banking, competitive pricing and a disitipl approach to loan underwriting.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s consolidated financial statementpeepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepte
accounting principles (“GAAP”) and conform to gealgpractices within the banking industry. The Compa
financial position and results of operations afecéd by management’s application of accountinicias,
including judgments made to arrive at the carryialye of assets and liabilities and amounts reddderevenues,
expenses and related disclosures. Different assomsgin the application of these policies coulduiem material
changes in the Company'’s consolidated financiaitiposand consolidated results of operations.

Estimates, assumptions, and judgments are necqa$acipally when assets and liabilities are reedito be
recorded at estimated fair value, when a declirtbénvalue of an asset carried on the financiaéstants at fair
value warrants an impairment writlswn or valuation reserve to be established, omwareasset or liability needs
be recorded based upon the probability of occurr@fi@ future event. Carrying assets and liabditiefair value
inherently results in more financial statement tititg. The fair values and the information used¢gord valuation
adjustments for certain assets and liabilitiesbased either on quoted market prices or are prdvigethird party
sources, when available. When third party infororais not available, valuation adjustments aravested by
management primarily through the use of financiatieling techniques and appraisal estimates.

The Company’s accounting policies are fundamentahderstanding Management’s Discussion and Arglysi
of Financial Condition and Results of Operatione Tollowing is a summary of the Company’s more sabye and
complex “critical accounting policies.” In additipthe disclosures presented in the Notes to thedinated
Financial Statements and in Management’s DiscussiohAnalysis provide information on how signifitaissets
and liabilities are valued in the financial statemseand how those values are determined. Basedtkoratuation
techniques used and the sensitivity of financialeshent amounts to the methods, assumptions, &nthess
underlying those amounts, management has identifisastment security valuation, determination & #tlowance
for loan losses, accounting for acquisitions ardrigible assets, and accounting for income taxéiseagccounting
areas that require the most subjective or complégrents.
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Investment securitie

Management performs an extensive review of thestmrent securities portfolio quarterly to determiine
cause of declines in the fair value of each secwrithin each segment of the portfolio. The Compasgs inputs
provided by an independent third party to deterntiiefair values of its investment securities pudigf. Inputs
provided by the third party are reviewed and casrabed by management. Evaluations of the causténof
unrealized losses are performed to determine whétkémpairment is temporary or other-th@naporary in natur
Considerations such as the Comparigtent and ability to hold the securities, regabdity of the invested amoun
over the Companyg'intended holding period, severity in pricing deeland receipt of amounts contractually due
example, are applied in determining whether a s$gcigrother-than-temporarily impaired. If a dedim value is
determined to be other-than-temporary, the valub@&ecurity is reduced and a corresponding chtargarnings is
recognized.

The impairment evaluations noted above are comsistith the accounting guidance in
EITF 99-20 “Recognition of Interest Income and lingeent on Purchased Beneficial Interests and Beiagfi
Interests That Continue to Be Held by a Transfer@ecuritized Financial Assets,” as amended, SERS
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Bg$ecurities,” FASB Staff Position No. 115-1, “@iMeaning
of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Appligatto Certain Investments,” and SEC Staff Accoumti
Bulletin No. 59, “Other Than Temporary ImpairmehGertain Investments in Debt and Equity Securjties
determine if a security is other than temporaritypaired. Securities deemed to be other than temifyoirapaired
are written-down to their current fair values witltharge to earnings. The review process uses higation of the
severity of pricing declines and the present valiine expected cash flows and compares thosetsdsiuthe currer
carrying value. Significant inputs provided by thdependent third party such as default and logsrig are
reviewed internally for reasonableness.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained atifen@nagement deems adequate to absorb probabdss los
inherent in the portfolio, and is based on managgimevaluation of the risks in the loan portfadind changes in
the nature and volume of loan activity. The Compemrysistently applies a review process to perididiexvaluate
loans for changes in credit risk. This processeseas the primary means by which the Company etesithe
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.

The Company determines the allowance for loan fobgamaking specific allocations to impaired lo#rest
exhibit inherent weaknesses and various creditfaistors, and general allocations to commercigidential real
estate, and consumer loans are developed givinghives risk ratings, historical loss trends and aggment’s
judgment concerning those trends and other reldaatdrs. These factors may include, among otlatsial versu
estimated losses, regional and national econonmdiions, business segment and portfolio concentrat industry
competition and consolidation, and the impact ofggoment regulations. The foregoing analysis i$quered by
management to evaluate the portfolio and calcaatestimated valuation allowance through a quaivitand
qualitative analysis that applies risk factorshiose identified risk areas.

This risk management evaluation is applied at bothportfolio level and the individual loan lever f
commercial loans and credit relationships whileléwel of consumer and residential mortgage lokowaince is
determined primarily on a total portfolio level ledson a review of historical loss percentages dheraualitative
factors including concentrations, industry sped#dictors and economic conditions. The commerciatfpiio
requires more specific analysis of individuallyrgfgcant loans and the borrower’s underlying cdskvf business
conditions, capacity for debt repayment and theatidn of secondary sources of payment, such #stexl. This
analysis may result in specifically identified weakses and corresponding specific impairment alioes While
allocations are made to specific loans and clasditins within the various categories of loans,at@vance for
loan losses is available for all loan losses.

The use of various estimates and judgments in tmegany’s ongoing evaluation of the required level o
allowance can significantly impact the Company'sutes of operations and financial condition and mesult in
either greater provisions against earnings to as®ehe allowance or reduced provisions based mamagement’s
current view of portfolio and economic conditiomalahe application of revised estimates and assongt
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Differences between actual loan loss experiencesatichates are reflected through adjustments ditisegasing or
decreasing the loan loss provision based uponmumeasurement criteria.

Acquisitions and Intangible Assets

The Company may, from time to time, engage in lrssrcombinations with other companies. The acgpnsit
of a business is generally accounted for undertase accounting rules promulgated by the Finadaabunting
Standards Board (“FASB”). Purchase accounting regithe recording of underlying assets and liadsliof the
entity acquired at their fair market value. Any ess of the purchase price of the business overahassets
acquired and any identified intangibles is recordedoodwill. Fair values are assigned based oteduwices for
similar assets, if readily available, or apprai®afualified independent parties for relevant aaseitliability
categories. Financial assets and liabilities gpeclly valued using discount models which applyrent discount
rates to streams of cash flow. All of these vahratnethods require the use of assumptions whichiesaurit in
alternate valuations and varying levels of goodaiiltl, in some cases, amortization expense or amtiatome.

Management must also make estimates of usefulasroggic lives of certain acquired assets and lidsli
These lives are used in establishing amortizatimhacretion of some intangible assets and liaslisuch as the
intangible associated with core deposits acquingtié acquisition of a commercial bank.

Goodwill is recorded as the excess of the purchese, if any, over the fair value of the revaluest assets.
Gooduwill is tested annually in the month of Novemfug possible impairment by comparing the fairueabf the
unit with its book value, including goodwill. If ¢hfair value of the Company is greater than itskoeadue, no
goodwill impairment exists. However, if the boolue of the Company is greater than its determiaédvilue,
goodwill impairment may exist and further testisgéquired to determine the amount, if any, ofatiial
impairment loss. Further testing would use a distedi cash flow model applied to the anticipatedastr of cash
flows from operations of the business or segmeimgoiested. Impairment testing necessarily usésasts in the
form of growth and attrition rates, anticipatecesabf return, and discount rates. These estimates & direct
bearing on the results of the impairment testing) sarve as the basis for management’s conclus®fts a
impairment.

Income Taxes

The establishment of provisions for federal antesitecome taxes is a complex area of accountinghvaiso
involves the use of judgments and estimates inyamgplelevant tax statutes. The Company operatesuiltiple stat
tax jurisdictions and this requires the appropratecation of income and expense to each statedbais a variety ¢
apportionment or allocation bases. Managementestiov keep abreast of changes in tax law and sharnge of
regulations which may impact tax reporting and sions for income tax expense. The Company is sbgect to
audit by federal and state tax authorities. Resiilthese audits may produce indicated liabilitigsch differ from
Company estimates and provisions. The Companyroaaity evaluates its exposure to possible tax asseists
arising from audits and records its estimate okjiide exposure based on current facts and circurossa

Recent Acquisitions and Branching Activity

In November 2008, the Company acquired Coddle Crérdncial Corp. (Coddle Creek), headquartered in
Mooresville, North Carolina. Coddle Creek had thiwdkeservice branch offices located in Mooresvi&ornelius,
and Huntersville, North Carolina. At acquisitiompdzile Creek had total assets of $158.66 milliotal toans of
$136.99 million and total deposits of $137.06 roilli Under the terms of the merger agreement, siof@eddle
Creek common stock were exchanged for .9046 sloftbe Company’s common stock and $19.60 in cakb. T
total deal value, including the cash-out of outdiag stock options, was approximately $32.29 milli€oncurrent
with the Coddle Creek acquisition, Mooresville $@s Bank, Inc., SSB, the wholly-owned subsidiarZotidle
Creek, was merged into the Bank. As a result obtteuisition and preliminary purchase price allmrgt
approximately $14.41 million in goodwill was receddwhich represents the excess of the purchase grar the
fair market value of the net assets acquired aauitified intangibles.
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In September 2007, the Company acquired GreenRantance Group (“GreenPoint”), an insurance agency
located in High Point, North Carolina. As of Sepbemn30, 2007, GreenPoint had annualized commigsizanues
of approximately $4.60 million. In connection withe initial payment of approximately $1.66 millidche Company
issued 49,088 shares of common stock. Under thestef the stock purchase agreement, former shatetsobf
GreenPoint are entitled to additional consideratiggregating up to $1.45 million in the form of lcas the
Company’s common stock, valued at the time of issaaif certain future operating performance tasgee met. If
those operating targets are met, the value ofdhsideration ultimately paid will be added to tlstoof the
acquisition, which will increase the amount of gadtrelated to the acquisition. The acquisition@feenPoint
added $7.19 million of goodwill and intangiblesthe Company’s balance sheet. The Company also assum
$5.57 million in debt in connection with the acqtigs, of which approximately $5.00 million wasired at closing

Throughout 2008, GreenPoint acquired a total af finsurance agencies. The two largest acquisiti@re
Carr & Hyde in Warrenton, Virginia, and REL in Grsboro, North Carolina. GreenPoint issued aggregggk
consideration of approximately $2.04 million throu2008 in connection with these acquisitions. Asijian terms
in all instances call for issuing further cash d¢deration if certain operating performance targetsmet. If those
targets are met, the value of the consideratiamately paid will be added to the cost of the asiigins.
GreenPoint’'s 2008 acquisitions added approxim&i2|94 million of goodwill and intangibles to the i@pany’s
balance sheet.

In December 2006, the Company completed the sate Bowlesburg, West Virginia, branch location.tA¢
time of the sale, the branch had deposits and cbpse agreements totaling approximately $10.6anilind loans
of approximately $2.2 million. The transaction fést in a pre-tax gain of approximately $333 thausa

In November 2006, the Company completed the adgqnsdf Investment Planning Consultants, Inc. (“fR@
registered investment advisory firm located in Eleld, West Virginia. In connection with the initipayment of
approximately $1.47 million, the Company issued38,shares of common stock. Under the terms o$tibek
purchase agreement, former shareholders of IP€rditted to additional consideration of $1.43 roifliin the form
of the Company’s common stock if certain futureragiag performance targets are met. If those operaargets
are met, portions of the value of the consideratitimately paid will be added to the cost of theguaisition, which
will increase the amount of goodwill related to #eguisition. In December 2008 and 2007, the Comjssued
8,361 and 13,401 shares of its common stock, r&spg in connection with the acquisition of IPC.

In June 2006, the Company completed the sale Bfrdkes Branch, Virginia, branch location. At thae of
the sale, the branch had deposits and repurchasenagnts totaling approximately $16.4 million aodrs of
approximately $1.9 million. The transaction restilite a pre-tax gain of approximately $702 thousand.

The Company opened seven branches during 2007rendusing 2008. New branches included two offices i
Winston-Salem, North Carolina, two offices in Riabmad, Virginia, and new offices in Daniels, Prinagtand
Summersville, West Virginia.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
2008 COMPARED TO 2007

Net income for 2008 was $2.83 million, a decreds¥26.81 million from $29.63 million in 2007. Basind
diluted earnings per share for 2008 were $0.26%8n25, respectively, compared with basic and di@arnings per
share of $2.64 and $2.62, respectively, in 200€. Significant decline in earnings in 2008 reflefbarth quarter
non-cash pre-tax impairment charge of $29.92 milba certain investment securities. The Compangis k
profitability ratios are return on average assatsr@turn on average equity. Returns on averagesaks 2008 and
2007 were 0.14% and 1.40%, respectively.

The Company acquired Coddle Creek, a $158.66 mib@ank holding company, in November 2008.
Accordingly, the operations of Coddle Creek weregignificant to the 2008 results of operations.
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Net Interest Income

The primary source of the Company’s earnings ismtetest income, the difference between incomearming
assets and the cost of funds supporting thosesa&ighificant categories of earning assets ameslaad securities
while deposits and borrowings represent the magatign of interest-bearing liabilities. For purpes the
following discussion, comparison of net interestome is performed on a tax equivalent basis, wpiokides a
common basis for comparing yields on earning agsetmpt from federal income taxes to those asdaitshvare
fully taxable (see the table titled Average BalaBbeets and Net Interest Income Analysis).

Net interest income was $65.84 million for 2008npared with $68.32 million for 2007. Tax-equivalewet
interest income totaled $69.97 million for 200&lexrease of $2.82 million from the $72.79 milli@ported for
2007. The decrease is attributable to a $4.61anilliecrease due to volume and a $1.79 million aszelue to rate
changes on the underlying assets and liabilities.

During 2008, average earning assets decreasedSglillion while average interest-bearing liabdgi
decreased $45.79 million, in each case over thepacehle period. The yield on average earning asseteased
51 basis points to 6.38% for 2008 from 6.89% fdd205hort-term market interest rates decreasedpimcsly
throughout 2008, culminating in a move by the FabReserve to create a “range” of zero to 25 hasiists as its
target for federal funds. During 2008, the targelefral funds rate decreased 400 basis pointsharalerage bank
prime loan rate decreased in concert. Those dexseesre the largest driver in the overall decréasiee
Company’s yield on average earning assets.

Total cost of average interest-bearing liabilitiexreased 78 basis points to 2.79% during 2008 Chimepanys
time deposit portfolio experienced significant devamd repricing during 2008, as many of the higlater
certificates were not renewed. The net result waiserease of 27 basis points to net interestsptead, or the
difference between interest income on earning ass®t expense on interest-bearing liabilities. &bfer 2008 was
3.59% compared with 3.32% for 2007. The Comparaxsequivalent net interest margin of 3.88% for 2008
represents an increase of eight basis points fr@@P8in 2007.

Loan interest income decreased $13.26 million du2i@08 as compared with 2007 as volume declinedewh
the yield on loans decreased 78 basis points. D@008, the tax-equivalent yield on available-fatessecurities
increased three basis points to 5.80% while theagesbalance decreased by $48.55 million as cordpeth 2007.

Average interest-bearing balances with banks ded!$8.17 million during 2008 to $15.49 million, \ehthe
yield decreased 278 basis points to 1.98%. Thds@des consist primarily of overnight liquidity,cathe yield or
these balances is largely affected by change<itatiyet federal funds rate.

The average total cost of interest-bearing depdsitseased 72 basis points in 2008 compared wifi.Zlhe
average rate paid on interest-bearing demand dspiesireased 14 basis points, while the averageegad on
savings, which includes money market and savingswats, decreased 71 basis points. The Company was
successful in keeping rates paid on interest-bgatfirecking accounts relatively stable and increasedey market
account rates to remain competitive and retain siefunding. In 2008, average time deposits deewas
$26.27 million while the average rate paid decrédaebasis points to 3.69% as compared with 200&.l&vel of
average non interest-bearing demand deposits det&d 6.79 million to $211.79 million in 2008 comgrhwith
the prior year.

Average federal funds purchased increased $10.lidmin 2008, while the average rate paid on thiosels
also decreased, as they are closely tied to tigettéederal funds rate. Average retail repurchgseeaments
decreased $24.20 million in 2008, while the average paid on those funds decreased, as theyagelyltied to th
target federal funds rate and 3-month LIBOR. Averkgderal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances andmothe
borrowings decreased $13.84 million while the gl on those borrowings decreased 59 basis pai2B08. The
Company reduced end-of-period FHLB advances by0®7iillion during 2008. Other borrowings include th
Company'’s trust preferred issuance of $15.46 nmilishich is indexed to 3-month LIBOR.
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Average Balance Sheets and Net Interest Income Anals

2008 2007 2006
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest(1) Rate(1) Balance Interest(1) Rate(1) Balance Interest(1) Rate(1)
(Dollars in thousands)

Earning Assets
Loans held for

Investment:(2 1,199,07t 80,30t 6.7(% 1,251,020 93,56. 7.4¢% 1,316,47' 97,50 7.41%
Available-for-sale securitie 576,86: 33,43t 5.8(% 625,41. 36,11! 5.7% 428,57¢ 23,58: 5.5(%
Held-to-maturity securitie: 10,302 84¢ 8.2/% 15,22( 1,212 7.9¢% 21,29¢ 1,70¢ 8.02%
Interest-bearing deposits with

banks 15,48¢ 30€ 1.98% 24,66 1,178 4.7¢% 27,28¢ 1,24¢  4.5%

Total earning asse 1,801,73. 114,89¢ 6.3¢% 1,916,32. 132,06: 6.8%% 1,793,64. 124,03t 6.92%
Other asset 244,45! 208,91¢ 186,63

Total $2,046,18! $2,125,23! $1,980,28!
Interes-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposil $ 17480¢$ 29z 0.11%$ 147,85t $ 45€ 0.319%$ 146,24t $ 46z 0.32%
Savings deposil 312,36: 4,69: 1.5(% 330,96¢ 7,327 2.21% 343,85: 6,857 1.9%%
Time deposit: 671,72¢ 24,807 3.6% 697,99¢ 30,97« 4.4 680,38( 26,54¢ 3.9(%

Total interes-bearing deposit 1,158,90. 29,79 257 1,176,82. 38,757 3.2% 1,170,48. 33,86¢ 2.8%
Borrowings:

Federal funds purchas 15,94: 362 2.21% 5,77: 31z 5.4(% 3,367 19¢ 5.8t%
Retail repurchase agreeme 143,15¢ 3,02¢ 2.12% 167,35¢ 5,80¢ 3.471% 140,62 457¢ 3.2%

Wholesale repurchase agreem 50,00( 1,63(C 3.2t% 50,00( 2,181 4.3t% 6,84¢ 303 4.42%
FHLB borrowings and other de  244,80: 10,117 4.13% 258,64: 12,217 4.72% 200,57( 9,43¢ 4.7(%

Tota borrowings 453,90. 15,13t 3.34% 481,77t 20,51¢ 4.26% 351,40¢ 14,51 4.1%%
Total interes-bearing
liabilities 1,612,80: 44,93( 2.7% 1,658,59 59,27¢ 3.57% 1,521,89. 48,38. 3.1t%
Demand deposil 211,79: 228,58 237,71
Other liabilities 19,85( 19,21( 18,55!
Stockholder equity 201,74 218,84¢ 202,12
Total $2,046,18! $2,125,23! $1,980,28!
Net interest incom $ 69,96¢ $ 72,78¢ $ 75,65¢
Net interest rate spread( 3.5%% 3.32% 3.74%
Net interest margin(4 3.88% 3.8(% 4.22%

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 3t

(2) Non-accrual loans are included in average balancesamding but with no related interest income duting
period of no-accrual.

(3) Represents the difference between the tax equitvgield on earning assets and cost of ful
(4) Represents tax equivalent net interest income elivlny average inter-earning asset
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Rate and Volume Analysis of Interest

The following table summarizes the changes in @deearned and paid resulting from changes in velaim
earning assets and paying liabilities and chanmyélseir interest rates. In this analysis, the clearig interest due to
both rate and volume have been allocated to theweland rate columns in proportion to dollar amsunt

Interest Earned On(1
Loans
Securities available for sa
Securities held to maturi
Interes-bearing deposits with other bar
Total interes-earning asset
Interest Paid Or
Demand deposit
Savings deposil
Time deposit:
Federal funds purchas
Retail repurchase agreeme
Wholesale repurchase agreeme
FHLB borrowings and other lo-term deb!
Total interes-bearing liabilities
Change in ta-equivalent net interest incor

(1) Fully taxable equivalent using a rate of 3¢t

Provision for Loan Losses

2008 Compared to 200°
$ Increase/(Decrease) due 1

2007 Compared to 200t
$ Increase/(Decrease) due i

Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
(Amounts in thousands)
$(3,770) $ (9,486 $(13,250 $(4,906 $ 967 $(3,939)
(2,815 14C (2,679 11,31¢  1,21F  12,52¢
(407) 44 (369) (484) (12) (49€)
(33€) (531) (86S) (130 61 (69)
(7,330 (9,837 (17,169 579¢ 2,231 8,02¢
10¢ (272) (164) 5 (11) (6)
(392 (2,247 (2,639 (242) 712 47¢
(1,130 (5,03 (6,167 70z 3,72¢  4,42F
75 (25) 50 12¢ (15) 114
(751) (2,029 (2,780 917 31¢ 1,231
— (551) (551)  1,88: (4)  1,87¢
(629  (1,47) (2,100  2,74% 40 2,787
(2,719 (11,62) (14,340 6,13 4,767 10,89
$(4611) $ 1,794 $(2,817) $ (339 $(2,537) $(2,870

The provision for loan losses for 2008 was $7.4iani an increase of $6.71 million when comparathw
2007. The increase in loan loss provision betwhemeriods is primarily attributable to rising Idastors as net
charge-offs escalated during 2008. Qualitative fégltors were also higher, reflective of the highgk of inherent
loan losses due to rising unemployment, recessjgmassures, and devaluations of various categofiesllateral,
including real estate and marketable securities cNarge-offs for 2008 and 2007 were $5.45 milborl
$2.43 million, respectively. Expressed as a pesgnbdf average loans, net charge-offs increasédi&¥% for 2008

from 0.19% in 2007.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income consists of all revenues whietnat included in interest and fee income relateglarning
assets. Noninterest income for 2008, exclusivé®f$29.92 million other-than-temporary impairmemrge, was
$32.30 million compared with $24.83 million in 200Non-nterest income for 2008 was bolstered by the audibf
insurance revenues from 2008 acquisitions, asagetignificantly higher deposit service chargagsalt of new

retail marketing strategies.

Wealth management income, which includes feestist services and commission and fee income geterat
by IPC, increased $220 thousand in 2008 compartd2007, largely a result of the increases in reresrat IPC.
Service charges on deposit accounts increased $#lE@ as a result of increased transaction fas a larger
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number of fee-based deposit accounts. Other sechi@mes, commissions and fees reflected an ine@fak648
thousand in 2008 compared with 2007, due mainipdoeased debit card interchange income and ATMcefees

Insurance commissions earned were $4.99 millid20®8, compared with $1.14 million in 2007. The Camp
acquired its insurance subsidiary, GreenPoint Brste Group, Inc., in September 2007. Income foirtbgrance
subsidiary is derived primarily from commissionsresl on the sale of policies.

Other operating income for 2008 was $3.00 millamiecrease of $1.42 million from 2007. The largest
components of that difference are a decreasevémue from bank-owned life insurance and FHLB stigidends
of $470 thousand and $332 thousand, respectivehyel as a one-time gain of $298 thousand reguftiom the
Company’s exit from a state banking associationriasce partnership in 2007.

During 2008, the Company also recognized secugéss of $1.90 million, an increase of $1.49 railliover
gains recognized in 2007.

Noninterest Expense

Total noninterest expense was $60.52 million fdd&@n increase of $10.05 million over 2007. Saf&and
benefits increased approximately $4.03 million. iDgr2008, total full-time equivalent employees eased to 638
from 615 at December 31, 2007. Full-time equivatmployees are calculated using the number of hearked.
Greenpoint accounted for approximately 50 full-tiezgiivalent employees at year-end 2008 comparddSditat
yearend 2007. Total full-time equivalent employeethatBank and IPC remained relatively stable indnggby
only the 22 full-time equivalent employees in asifion of Coddle Creek. Health insurance costsaased $660
thousand, or 39.77%, and 401(k) employer matchasgscncreased $288 thousand, or 30.54%, both ds#yrio
the addition of GreenPoint. The Company also detefy1.10 million less in loan origination costsrtfia 2007.

Occupancy expenses increased $922 thousand compitine2D07, due to the full year effect of new lohes,
the full-year impact of GreenPoint and its acqigsis, and the partial year effect of Coddle Créakniture and
equipment expenses increased $370 thousand, dady/ritaa increase of $609 thousand in depreciaiuh
amortization expense from 2007 to 2008.

During 2008, the Company prepaid a $25.00 millibtLB advance. The expense associated with that
prepayment was $1.65 million. The Company alsoice$a0.00 million without a prepayment penalty.

All other operating expense accounts increase®$8ilion in 2008 compared with 2007. Contributirogthe
increase in operating expenses were increasedteiivgrand new account promotions of $550 thousard
consulting expense of $821 thousand. Legal feesiatseased $267 thousand in 2008 compared witi@ 26ahe
Company realized increased expenses relating &zgsisition transactions and the issuance of mefeped stock.
Professional fees also increased $241 thousariek@dmpany outsourced its internal audit functiearrmid-year
2007.

The Company uses an efficiency ratio that is a @&#P financial measure of operating expense cotnal
efficiency of operations. Management believes thi® better focuses attention on the core opegatarformance
of the Company over time than does a GAAP-baséd, @td is highly useful in comparing
period-to-period operating performance of the Comypscore business operations. It is used by manageamerar
of its assessment of its performance in managiminterest expenses. However, this measure is sugpl@l and i
not a substitute for an analysis of performancetan GAAP measures. The reader is cautionedhbatfficiency
ratio used by the Company may not be comparabdéitiency ratios reported by other financial ihgtions.

In general, the efficiency ratio used by the Conypamoninterest expenses as a percentage oftee¢sn
income plus noninterest income. Noninterest expensed in the calculation exclude amortizatiomedngibles an
non-recurring expenses. Income for the ratio iseased for the favorable effect of tax-exempt ineqsee Average
Balance Sheets and Net Interest Income Analysis) excludes securities gains and losses, whichwalgly from
period to period without appreciably affecting agtérg expenses, non-recurring gains and losses, and
other-than-temporary impairment charges. The measutifferent from the GAAP-based efficiency ratidchich
also is presented in this report, which is cal@daising noninterest expense and income amoustsoam on the

29




Table of Contents
face of the Consolidated Statements of Income. Baibs of efficiency ratio calculations are setticand are
reconciled in the table below.

Our (non-GAAP) efficiency ratios for continuing apéons for 2008, 2007, and 2006 were 57.54%, 94,20
and 51.05%, respectively. The following table dstdie components used in calculation of the edficy ratios.

2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands)

GAAP-based efficiency ratio

Noninterest expenst $ 60,51¢ $50,46: $49,83%
Net interest income plus noninterest incc $ 68,20¢ $93,14¢  $92,96¢
GAAP-based efficiency rati 88.7% 54.1&  53.61%
Our efficiency ratio
Noninterest expens— GAAP-basec $ 60,51¢ $50,46: $49,83%
Less no-GAAP adjustments
Foreclosed property exper (382) (18%) (24¢)
Amortization of intangible: (689) (467) (410
Prepayment penalties on FHLB advan (1,647 — —
Other noi-core, nor-recurring expense iten (512) (100 (581)
Adjusted no-interest expense 57,74, 49,711 48,59¢
Net interest income plus noninterest inc— GAAP-basec 68,20 93,14¢ 92,96¢
Plus nol-GAAP adjustment
Tax-equivalency 4,13: 4,47( 4,01(
Less no-GAAP adjustments
Security gain (1,899 (417) (75)
Othek-thar-temporarysecurity impairment 29,92 — —
Branch sale gair — — (2,035
Other noi-core, norrecurring income item — (104) (67€)
Adjusted net interest income plus noninterest ine 100,36¢ 97,10! 95,19:
Our efficiency ratio 5750 51.2%  51.0%%

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense is comprised of federal and statrent and deferred income taxes on pre-taxregsof
the Company. Income taxes as a percentage of piagame may vary significantly from statutory rmtdue to
items of income and expense which are excludethwyfrom the calculation of taxable income. Thiems are
commonly referred to as permanent differences.riibst significant permanent differences for the Canypincluds
income on state and municipal securities whicheaimmpt from federal income tax, certain dividengrpants
which are deductible by the Company, and tax csegiherated by investments in low income housimphéstorica
building rehabilitation.

Consolidated income taxes for 2008 was a benef2d1 million compared with an expense of $12.38an
in 2007. The effective tax rate for 2008 is not miegful due to the level of pre-tax income and ¢fffective tax rate
for 2007 was 29.39%.

2007 COMPARED TO 2006

Net income for 2007 was $29.63 million, up $684utkend from $28.95 million in 2006. Basic and ditLite
earnings per share for 2007 were $2.64 and $268pectively, compared with basic and diluted egsjer share
of $2.58 and $2.57, respectively, in 2006.
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The Company’s key profitability ratios are retumawverage assets and return on average equityrrRein
average assets for 2007 and 2006 were 1.39% a6B#1réspectively. The returns on average equit@®7 and
2006 were 13.54% and 14.32%, respectively.

Net Interest Income

The primary source of the Company’s earnings ismtetest income, the difference between incomearming
assets and the cost of funds supporting thosesa&ighificant categories of earning assets ameslaad securities
while deposits and borrowings represent the magatign of interest-bearing liabilities. For purpes# the
following discussion, comparison of net interestome is performed on a tax equivalent basis, wpiokides a
common basis for comparing yields on earning agsetmpt from federal income taxes to those asdaitshvare
fully taxable (see the table titled Average BalaBbeets and Net Interest Income Analysis).

Net interest income was $68.32 million for 2007npared with $71.65 million for 2006. Tax-equivalewet
interest income totaled $72.79 million for 200 Yexrease of $2.87 million from the $75.66 milli@ported for
2006. The decrease is attributable to a $338 timaLidacrease due to volume and a $2.53 million dserdue to
rate changes on the underlying assets and ligsiliti

During 2007, average earning assets increased@.2dllion while average interest-bearing liabdgi
increased $136.71 million, in each case over timepesable period. The yield on average earning sislestreased
three basis points to 6.89% for 2007 from 6.92%2fa06. Short-term market interest rates were vialyls from
August 2006 through July 2007. That stability pesly impacted the rate earned on loans and sézsirds new
loan production and new securities purchased thr@eptember 2007 were being added at rates ggnkigltler
than those added in 2006. During, the last fourthmnf 2007, the Federal Reserve’s target fedarald rate was
decreased 100 basis points, and the average biamd jman rate decreased in concert. Those decresseshe
largest driver in the slight decrease in the Comgisayield on average earning assets.

Total cost of average interest-bearing liabiliiiesreased 39 basis points to 3.57% during 2007.drapanys
time deposit portfolio experienced significant upeveepricing during 2007, as many of the certifésaivritten in a
lower market rate environment matured and thenagegrat a higher interest rate. The net resultavdscrease of
42 basis points to net interest rate spread, odifference between interest income on earningtassal expense on
interest-bearing liabilities. Spread for 2007 w&&2%6 compared with 3.74% for 2006. The Companys ta
equivalent net interest margin of 3.80% for 20Qatesents a decrease of 42 basis points from 4.822606.

Loan interest income decreased $3.94 million dugi®@7 as compared with 2006 as volume declinedgvithé
yield on loans increased seven basis points. D@y, the ta-equivalent yield on available-for-sale securities
increased 27 basis points to 5.77% while the aeebadpnce increased by $196.83 million as comparéd2006.
The average tax-equivalent yield increased dukda@tldition of higher-rate securities and the sahegurities, and
calls of lower-rate securities.

Average interest-bearing balances with banks dedl$2.63 million during 2007 to $24.66 million, Jeénhthe
yield increased 20 basis points to 4.76%. Thesanioak include overnight liquidity and a small paitf of time
deposits purchased in 2002. The yield on thesebetais largely affected by changes in the tamgral funds rat

The average total cost of interdstaring deposits rose 40 basis points in 2007 cordpaith 2006. The avera
rate paid on interest-bearing demand deposits dsedeone basis point, while the average rate pagheings,
which includes money market and savings accoumtseased 22 basis points. The Company was suctassfu
keeping rates paid on interest-bearing checkinguauts relatively stable and increased money magebunt rates
to remain competitive and retain deposit fundimg2007, average time deposits decreased $17.62mwhile the
average rate paid increased 54 basis points t@#la®icompared with 2006. The level of average ntarést-
bearing demand deposits decreased $9.13 milli§228.58 million in 2007 compared with the prior gea

Average federal funds purchased and repurchaseragrgs increased $72.29 million in 2007, due madstly
increases in the balances of repurchase agreeriémstsiverage rate paid on those funds also inaleasdhey are
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closely tied to the target federal funds rate amdodith LIBOR. Average Federal Home Loan Bank (“FH)LB
advances increased $57.98 million while the raté pa those borrowings increased one basis poi20@v. Other
borrowings remained steady in 2007, but the raie ipareased 111 basis points because the majfrgych
borrowings consist of the Company’s trust prefefsedrowing, which is indexed to 3-month LIBOR.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses for 2007 was $71Tusand, a decrease of $1.99 million when comparéd wi
2006. The decrease in loan loss provision betweempériods is primarily attributable to changespacific
allocations, decreases in commercial and consumstaliment loan volume, reductions in net chards;averall
improved asset quality, and changes in variousitatisk risk factors. Net charge-offs for 2007 &0D6 were
$2.43 million and $2.89 million, respectively. Erpsed as a percentage of average loans, net abfésgiecreased
to 0.19% for 2007 from 0.22% in 2006.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income consists of all revenues whietnat included in interest and fee income relateelarning
assets. Noninterest income for 2007 was $24.83omilompared with $21.32 million in 2006. Wealthmagement
income, which includes fees for trust services emamission and fee income generated by IPC, inetkas
$1.07 million in 2007 compared with 2006, largelseault of the November 2006 acquisition of IPC.

Service charges on deposit accounts increased #iillién as a result of increased transaction #as a larger
number of fee-based deposit accounts. Other sechi@mes, commissions and fees reflected an ine@fek608
thousand in 2007 compared with 2006, due mainlpdoeased debit card interchange income and ATMcefees

The Company acquired its insurance subsidiary, i§temt Insurance Group, Inc., in September 2007.
Essentially all income for the insurance subsidiargerived from commissions earned on the safoliies. Since
acquisition, commissions earned on the sale otjsliby GreenPoint in 2007 were $1.14 million.

Other operating income for 2007 includes a gaifiag8 thousand resulting from the Compangéparture fror
a state banking association insurance operatiom Cdmpany was contractually required to exit theraflon upon
acquisition of GreenPoint. Other operating incowre2006 includes $1.04 million in gains from théesaf branch
locations, as well as a $676 thousand recoveryimgléo a 1997 payment system fraud loss. The neimgi
components of other operating income increased $&fisand compared with 2006. During 2007, the Gomwip
also recognized securities gains of $411 thousamihcrease of $336 thousand over gains recogimz2@06.

Noninterest Expense

Total noninterest expense was $50.46 million f@@2&n increase of $626 thousand over 2006. Sslané
benefits decreased approximately $1.02 million uthe Company’s efforts on expense control anidieffcy and
the implementation of a branch staffing model. bgr2007, total full-time equivalent employees desesl to 615
from 624 at December 31, 2006. Full-time equivatamployees are calculated using the number of hearked.
Greenpoint accounted for approximately 51 full-tieziivalent employees at year-end 2007. Totaltifiulé
equivalent employees at the Bank and IPC decrdasé@ compared with 2006.

Occupancy expenses increased $112 thousand compitine2D06, as the Company opened new branches and
acquired GreenPoint. Furniture and equipment exgsedscreased $96 thousand, due mainly to a decy&$96
thousand in depreciation and amortization expertsa 2006 to 2007.

All other operating expense accounts increased3$hiBiion in 2007 compared with 2006. Contributitogthe
increase in operating expenses were increased cewm@t promotions of $245 thousand and consultkpgese of
$728 thousand. In 2007, service fees related #riolg costs for IPC also increased $339 thousampaced with
2006 and reflecting the full year impact in 200#ofBssional fees also increased $207 thousanddri 20mpared
with 2006 as the Company outsourced its internditdunction near mid-year 2007.
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense is comprised of federal ané statent and deferred income taxes on pre-taxregof
the Company. Income taxes as a percentage of piagame may vary significantly from statutory rmtdue to
items of income and expense which are excludethwyfrom the calculation of taxable income. Thigsms are
commonly referred to as permanent differences.rfibst significant permanent differences for the Canypincludt
income on state and municipal securities whichearmpt from federal income tax, certain dividengrpants
which are excludable from taxable income, and texits generated by investments in low income mmuand
historical building rehabilitation.

Consolidated income taxes for 2007 were $12.33anilla 29.39% effective tax rate, compared with
$11.48 million, a 28.39% effective tax rate for BOUhe effective tax rate was higher during 200& chostly to
lower levels of available tax credits than in 2006.

FINANCIAL POSITION
Available-for-Sale Securities

Available-for-sale securities were $520.72 milletrDecember 31, 2008, compared with $664.12 million
December 31, 2007, a decrease of $143.40 millibe.decrease is result of lower security valuatam net
portfolio reductions of $29.27 million. At Decemtt, 2008, the average life and duration of thefplo were
5.0 years and 3.6, respectively. Average life amdiion improved from December 31, 2007, at 6.9yead 4.7,
respectively.

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securitée reviewed quarterly for possible
other-than-temporary impairment. This review ingscn analysis of the facts and circumstancesobf iedividual
investment such as the length of time the fair @dlas been below cost, timing and amount of conishcash
flows, the expectation for that security’s performo@, the creditworthiness of the issuer and the i2my's intent
and ability to hold the security to recovery or ordy. A decline in value that is considered to be
other-than-temporary would be recorded as a loggmmoninterest income in the Consolidated Statémef
Income.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company recognize@-dgx non-cash impairment charge of $14.47 million
which stems from a 2006 vintage collateralized gege obligation. The Company'’s analysis of the behmaved
probable losses of $1.69 million, or 6.76%, of $#25.00 million par value of the security. U.S. GAARjuires
banks to write down securities with probable logsesstimated market values, irrespective of thtiquo of the loss
in value attributable to credit quality.

The Company performed extensive cash flow analgbeach of its pooled trust preferred investmentisées
As of December 31, 2008, one of the securities destnated probable adverse change in cash flow.rébidted in
a pre-tax other-than-temporary impairment charg&l&f46 million. Total pre-tax, non-cash impairmeharges of
$29.92 million are reflected in non-interest incofoethe year ending December 31, 2008.

The Company does not believe any unrealized lossiréng in the investment portfolio, individually m the
aggregate, as of December 31, 2008, representstbdretemporary impairment. The Company has ttenirand
ability to hold these securities until such timetfasvalue recovers or the securities mature. Baseuirrently
available information, the Company believes th@reed declines in the value of these securitiéeaember 31,
2008 and 2007, are attributable to changes in marterest rates, a weakened outlook for the bankirstem, and
the severe market dislocation experienced throug?@s8.

Included in available-for-sale securities is a fudid of trust-preferred securities with a total riat value of
approximately $66.05 million as of December 31,&00hat portfolio is comprised of single-issue séms and
pooled trust-preferred securities. The single-ism@urities are trust-preferred issuances fronelaanking
institutions, A-rated or higher, and had a totatkeavalue of approximately $33.54 million as ofd@enber 31,
2008, compared with their adjusted cost basis pf@pmately $55.49 million.

At December 31, 2008, the total market value ofpibeled trust-preferred securities was approxirgatel
$32.51 million, compared with an adjusted costdasiapproximately $93.27 million. The collateralderlying
these securities is comprised 86% of bank trufemed securities and subordinated debt issuarfoegeo 500
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banks nationwide. The remaining collateral is friogurance companies and real estate investmend.tittse
securities carry variable rate structures that faa prescribed margin over 3-month LIBOR. Dur2@8, certain
of these experienced a credit rating downgrade fsomrating agency, and certain of these secudtie®n negativ
watch by one or more rating firms. The Companyrhadeled the expected cash flows from the poolest-tru
preferred securities and, at present, does notceéxpy of the remaining securities to have an asbveash flow
effect under any of the scenarios modeled dueg@xiistence of other subordinate classes withipduds.

The following table provides details regarding tiyge and credit ratings within the securities puitis as of
December 31, 2008. In the case of different rafitiggs lower rating was utilized.

Unrealized
Gains/(Losses
Par Fair Amortized  Recognized Cumulative
Value Value Cost in OCL OTTI

(Amounts in thousands)
Available for sale

Agency securitie $ 53,43t $ 54,81¢ $ 53,42¢ $ 1,39 $ —
Agency mortgag-backed securitie 211,207 216,96. 212,31! 4,64 —
Non-Agency mortgac-backed securitie:
AAA 7,47 5,76¢ 7,42% (1,657) —
B 25,00C 10,75 10,75( — 14,467
Total 32,47% 16,51¢ 18,17 (1,657 14,467
Municipals:
AAA 6,73¢ 6,71¢ 6,72¢ 13 —
AA 62,88t 62,05¢ 62,92¢ (870) —
A 55,932 54,05 55,15¢ (1,107) —
BBB 31,61C 30,28( 31,50( (1,220) —
Not rated 6,72( 6,31¢ 6,72¢ (413) —
Total 163,88! 159,41¢ 163,04. (3,627) —
Single issuer bank trust preferred securit
AA 39,428 24,21 38,74: (14,53)) —
A 17,13( 9,327 16,747 (7,420 —
Total 56,55¢  33,54. 55,49: (21,95) —
Pooled trust preferred securitit
A 50,22: 9,117 34,85! (25,73¢)  15,45¢
BBB 19,28¢ 3,831 19,371 (15,54¢) —
BB 9,00( 5,16 9,03¢ (3,875 —
B 30,00C 14,40.  30,00( (15,599 —
Total 108,50¢ 32,51: 93,26¢ (60,75€¢)  15,45¢
Equity securitie: 6,95¢ 7,97¢ (1,029 —
Total $626,06: $520,72; $603,69: $ (82,97)$ 29,92
Held to maturity
Municipals:
AA $ 3680 % 3,728 $ 3,66¢ % 61 $ —
A 4,05( 3,85¢ 3,792 67 —
BBB 1,21¢ 1,21¢ 1,21¢ 4 —
Total $ 8,94t $ 8,80z % 8,67( $ 132 $ —

Although the Company has both the intent and ghitithold the securities to maturity or recovehg t
Company closely monitors this portfolio due to substantial market discounts. The market discougfitsct the
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credit market disruption in bank subordinated destruments and the possibility of future negativedit events
within the banking sector, which could affect ctéial within certain of the pools and single-isseeurities.
Monitoring for other-than-temporary impairment (“O)JTis dependent on the aforementioned assumptionsdiag;
future credit events and the general strengthebtnking industry as it deals with credit lossethe current
recessionary real estate market. Acceleration ok b@sses and the possibility of unforeseen baitlrés could
result in changes in the Compasiyutlook for these securities and possible fu@ifé Accordingly, there can be
assurance that continued deterioration of credif@as within certain of those banks will not tbéo unanticipated
deferrals of interest payments and defaults beyioose assumed in the Company’s impairment tesfihgresent,
cash flow modeling indicates varying ability to alis additional deferrals and defaults before inogrbreaks in
interest or principal for the various pools.

At December 31, 2008, the Company held separaiariges of trust preferred securities from one isatéch
had book and market values of $28.68 million and.§4 million, respectively.

The following table details amortized cost and failue of available-for-sale securities as of Deloen81,
2008, 2007, and 2006.

December 31

2008

2007

2006

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

(Amounts in thousands)

U.S. Government agency securit $ 53,42¢ $ 54,81¢ $136,79: $139,23° $117,77° $116,06:

States and political subdivisio 163,04. 159,41¢ 186,83« 188,53t 152,18¢ 154,04°
Single issuer trust preferred securit 55,49: 33,54: 55,42: 51,54¢ 41,54 41,41¢
Pooled trust preferred securiti 93,26¢ 32,51 109,30¢ 99,07¢ 43,53¢ 43,61«
Mortgagebacked securitie 230,48t 233,47¢ 177,98: 176,72 146,44 144,75«
Equities 7,97¢ 6,95¢ 8,597 8,99t 6,93 8,47t

Total $603,69: $520,727 $674,93° $664,12( $508,42: $508,37(

Held-to-Maturity Securities

Investment securities classified as held-to-matwie comprised primarily of high-grade state anohitipal
bonds. The portfolio totaled $8.67 million at Dedem31, 2008, compared with $12.08 million at DelbenB1,
2007. This decrease is reflective of continuinguriies and calls within the portfolio. The marketue of
held-to-maturity investment securities was 101.52% 101.85% of book value at December 31, 200&80d,
respectively.

The average final maturity of the held-to-matuiityestment portfolio decreased to 4.3 years at Béee 31,
2008, from 5.5 years at December 31, 2007, withdkequivalent yield increasing to 7.97% at December2808,
from 7.94% at year-end 2007. The weighted-averageaed maturity, based on market assumptions for
prepayment, was five months and six months at Dbee2008 and 2007, respectively. The average niadaia
differs from final maturity data because of the abassumptions as to anticipated prepaymentsisagenerally a
more accurate indicator of true average life ofittvestment.
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The following table details amortized cost and failue of held-to-maturity securities at DecemhkrZ)08,
2007, and 2006.

December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
(Amounts in thousands)

States and political subdivisio $ 8,67C $8,80- $11,69¢ $11,92: $19,63¢ $19,97(
Corporate Note — — 37¢ 37t 37¢ 374
Mortgagebacked securitie — — 1 1 6 6
Total $ 867( $880: $12,07¢ $12,29¢ $20,01¢ $20,35(

Loans Held for Sale

To mitigate interest rate risk, the Company seltsnof the long-term, fixed-rate mortgage loarwiginates in
the secondary market. At December 31, 2008, thepgaomheld $1.02 million of loans for sale to thew&ary
market, up from $811 thousand at December 31, 2ZD8& gross notional amount of outstanding commitsem
originate mortgage loans for customers at Decer®bgP008, was $10.48 million on 71 loans. The Camypsells
these mortgages on a best-efforts basis and gesaran-interest income through origination feesydeli spread
gains.

Loans Held for Investment

Total loans held for investment increased $72.66anito $1.30 billion at December 31, 2008, from
$1.23 billion at December 31, 2007, primarily agsult of the addition of $136.99 million in Coddleeek loans,
which was partially offset by lower loan productiand large payoffs throughout 2008. The average toaeposit
ratio decreased to 87.48% for 2008, compared v@tAB% for 2007. Average loans held for investment2008 of
$1.20 billion decreased $51.95 million when compaxéh the average for 2007 of $1.25 billion.

The held for investment loan portfolio continuedtodiversified among loan types and industry segsad he
following table presents the various loan categoaied changes in composition at year-end 2004 ghra008.
Loan Portfolio Summary

December 31
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(Amounts in thousands)

Commercial, financial and agricultui
$ 8503 $ 96,26 $ 106,64! $ 110,21: $ 99,30:

Real estat— commercial 407,63¢ 386,11: 421,06° 464,51( 453,89¢
Real estat— constructior 130,61( 163,31( 158,56t 143,97¢ 112,70!
Real estat— residentia 602,57: 498,34! 506,37 504,38’ 457,41
Consume 66,25¢ 75,45( 88,67¢ 106,20t 113,63¢
Other 6,04¢ 6,027 3,54¢ 1,80¢ 2,012
Total 1,298,16! 1,225,50! 1,284,87! 1,331,09i 1,238,97.
Less unearned incon 1 3 13 59 21¢€
1,298,15! 1,225,50; 1,284,86. 1,331,03! 1,238,75!

Less allowance for loan loss 15,97¢ 12,83: 14 ,54¢ 14,73¢ 16,33¢
Net loans $1,282,18  $1,212,66' $1,270,31. $1,316,30. $1,222,41
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The Company maintained no foreign loans in thegoksrpresented. Although the Company’s loans areemad
primarily in the five-state region in which it oppees, the Company had no concentrations of loaosédorrower
or industry representing 10% or more of outstandliags at December 31, 2008.

The following table details the maturities and rsgasitivity of the Company’s loan portfolio at Reacber 31,

2008.
Remaining Maturities
Over
One Year One to Over Five
and Less Five Years Years Total Percent
(Amounts in thousands)
Commercial, financial and agricultut $12,64¢ $ 56,87¢ $ 15,51( $ 85,03« 6.55%
Real estat— commercial 18,72: 228,22¢ 160,68° 407,63¢ 31.4(%
Real estat— constructior 25,49 93,12¢ 11,98¢ 130,61( 10.0€%
Real estat— mortgage 16,05: 132,43: 454,08° 602,570 46.4%
Consume 8,15  49,69¢ 8,40¢ 66,25¢ 5.1(%
Other 3,21: 73t 2,09¢ 6,04¢ 0.47%

$84,28! $561,09¢ $652,77¢ $1,298,16! 100.0(%

Rate Sensitivity
Predetermined rat $36,92( $409,71: $331,26: $ 777,89: 59.9:%

Floatin¢- or adjustabl-rate 47,36 151,38( 321,51¢ 520,26° 40.0&%
$84,28% $561,09¢ $652,77¢ $1,298,16! 100.0(%

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is increased by &@satg earnings in the form of provisions chargedument
earnings and by recoveries of prior loan charge;@ihd decreased by loan charge-offs. The prowsion
calculated to bring the allowance to a level, whitcording to a systematic process of measurensemflective of
the amount that management deems adequate to givsbdble losses. Additional information regarding
determination of the allowance for loan losseslmafound in Note 1 of the Notes to ConsolidatechRaial
Statements, included in Item 8 hereof.

The allowance for loan losses was $15.98 milliobatember 31, 2008, compared with $12.83 million at
December 31, 2007, an increase of $3.15 milliore iflcrease in the allowance was primarily influehbg the
affect of net charge-off activity during the yeahich totaled $5.45 million as of December 31, 2088compared
to $2.43 million as of December 31, 2007, on prioviexpense. Three loan relationships accounted for
approximately $1.8 million of total 2008 net chaxafés. The three relationships had been previoigdntified as
impaired by management with a combined specifiemesallocation established equivalent to the arhobarged-
off. Collection activity continues on all threeagbnships. Additionally, the allowance methodoldgles into
consideration trends in delinquency and non-acdoagls; both of which exhibited an increasing tremdng the
year. Management considers the allowance adeqaaszilupon its analysis of the portfolio as of Ddoen31,
2008; however, no assurance can be made that@udit the allowance for loan losses will not bgureed in
future periods.
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The following table details loan charge-offs ancongeries by loan type for the five years ended D 31,
2004 through 2008.

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
Allowance for loan losses at beginning of pet $12,83: $14,54¢ $14,73¢  $16,33¢  $14,62¢
Acquisition balance 1,16¢ — — — 1,78¢
Charge-offs:
Commercial, financial, agricultural and commercial
real estat 4,34¢ 2,24 1,95: 5,017 1,92t
Real estal-residentia 1,20( 824 1,23¢ 38t 723
Installment 1,827 1,22¢ 1,35¢ 1,534 1,52¢
Total charg-offs 7,371 4,29t 4,54: 6,93¢ 4,174
Recoveries
Commercial, financial and agricultui 1,38¢ 87¢ 1,03 1,41% 727
Real estal-residentia 76 53t 12t 18¢ a0
Installment 461 44¢ 493 41€ 61F
Total recoverie: 1,92¢ 1,86- 1,65( 2,01¢ 1,432
Net charg-offs 5,44¢ 2,43¢ 2,89: 4,917 2,74z
Provision charged to operatio 7,42z 717 2,70¢ 3,70¢ 2,671
Reclassification of allowance for lending-related
commitments(1 — — (392) —
Allowance for loan losses at end of per $15,97¢  $12,837 $14,54¢ $14,73¢  $16,33¢
Ratio of net charc-offs to average loans outstand 0.45% 0.15% 0.22% 0.3¢% 0.24%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to total loans
outstanding 1.23% 1.05% 1.13% 1.11% 1.32%

(1) At June 30, 2005, the Company reclassified $398ghnd of its allowance for loan losses to a separat
allowance for lending-related liabilities. Net imae and prior period balances were not affectedisy t
reclassification. The allowance for lend-related liabilities is included in other liabilitie

The following table details the allocation of tHl&ance for loan losses and the percent of loareach
category to total loans for the five years endedddeber 31, 2008.

December 31
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands)

Commercial, financial and

agricultural $ 6,442 48%$ 7,441 53%$ 8,41¢ 53%$ 9,99¢ 58% $11,70( 57%
Real estat— mortgage 7,036 46% 3,69¢ 41% 3,85¢ 3% 2,46z 34% 2,08/ 34%
Consume 2,028 6% 169 6% 227 8% 2281 8% 255 9%
Unallocatec 47 . — — —

Total $15,97¢ 100% $12,837 10C% $14,54¢ 10C% $14,73¢ 100% $16,33¢ 10(%
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Risk Elements

Non-performing assets include loans on non-acataalis, loans contractually past due 90 days oe rand
still accruing interest, and other real estate alviide levels of non-performing assets for thefi@styears ending
December 31, 2008, are presented in the followaiet

December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands)

Non-accrual loan: $12,76¢  $2,92¢ $3,81¢ $3,38:  $5,16¢
Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruiteyest — — 11 —
Total nor-performing loan: 12,76: 2,92 3,81z 3,394 5,16¢
Other real estate owni 1,32¢ 54k 25¢ 1,40( 1,41¢
Total nor-performing asset $14,08¢ $3,46¢ $4,071 $4,79¢ $6,58i
Non-performing loans as a percentage of total Ic 09¢% 028 03(% 0.28% 0.42%
Non-performing assets as a percentage of total loat®ther

real estate owne 108 0.28% 0.32% 0.3¢% 0.59%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of nofoipeing

loans 125.2% 439.% 381.6¢% 434.2% 316.2%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of nofoipeing

asset 113.% 370.(% 357.2% 307.% 248.(%

Total non-performing assets were $14.09 millioDatember 31, 2008, compared with $3.47 million at
December 31, 2007, an increase of $10.62 millimn-Bccrual loans increased by $9.84 million to $12xifilion at
December 31, 2008, compared with 2007. The incriasen-accrual loans was largely driven by theitiatd of
two commercial loan relationships and the Coddieekracquisition. The first of the two commerciaro
relationships is a $2.92 million hotel loan secuogd hotel facility in North Carolina. The bankshestablished a
specific reserve allocation based upon its impantna@alysis and anticipates liquidation of the atelfal to be
completed late in the first quarter. The secondroencial loan relationship is to a commercial argidential land
developer in the Richmond, Virginia, area thatrieg@pally comprised of three loans totaling $2million. The
bank had previously evaluated the loans for impairhand had established specific reserve allocatienordingly.
At year-end, the loans were written down in amaquiivalent to the specific allocation. Liquidatiohtwo of the
loans is anticipated to be completed late in thst §uarter. Approximately $2.81 million in non-acal loans were
acquired in the Coddle Creek loan portfolio, wttle targest non-accrual loan totaling $261 thous@hd.non-
accrual loan balance was anticipated as a respltesfcquisition due diligence.

Ongoing activity within the classification and agdeies of non-performing loans continues to include
collections on delinquent loans, foreclosures, mogdements into or out of the non-performing clasatfon as a
result of changing customer business conditionsrd were no loans 90 days past due and still augati
December 31, 2008 and 2007. Other real estate oimoeshsed $781 thousand to $1.33 million at Deearh,
2008, and is carried at the lesser of estimatedeadizable value or cost.

Certain loans included in the non-accrual cate¢panye been written down to the estimated realizelee or
have been assigned specific reserves within tbhevafice for loan losses based upon managementisagstof loss
upon ultimate resolution.

The Company has considered all impaired loansdretlaluation of the adequacy of the allowancedanl
losses at December 31, 2008. The following tabésgmts additional detail of non-performing andruestired
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loans for the five years ended December 31, 20@8itddnal information regarding nonperforming loaran be
found in Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Finar8tatements, included in Item 8 hereof.

December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(Amounts in thousands)

Non-accruing loan: $12,76¢ $2,92¢ $3,81¢ $3,38: $5,16¢
Loans past due over 90 days and still accruingest — — 11 —
Restructured loans performing in accordance withlifres!

terms 113 24E 272 302 354
Gross interest income which would have been recbuteler

original terms of no-accruing and restructured loe 45¢ 301 397 38C 43¢
Actual interest income during the peri 89 17¢ 28¢€ 161 293

There are no outstanding commitments to lend amditifunds to borrowers related to restructureddoa

Deposits

Total deposits were $1.50 billion at December D& an increase of $110.32 million from $1.39idwillat
December 31, 2007. $137.06 million of the incraasdtributable to the acquisition of Coddle Creldkninterest-
bearing demand deposits decreased during 200848&million while interest-bearing demand depoisitseased
$31.55 million. Savings deposits, which consistnainey market accounts and savings accounts, decreas
$18.11 million during 2008 while time deposits ieased $121.26 million, primarily attributable toddte Creek.
Movement among product types during the year reflageneral migration toward interest-bearingtsiger
yielding account types as customers searched éta gpportunities in a falling rate environme

Average total deposits decreased slightly to $biin for 2008. Average interest-bearing demaegasits
increased $26.95 million during 2008. Average nterst-bearing demand deposits and savings deplesiteased
$16.79 million and $18.61 million during 2008, resfively. Average time deposits decreased $26.2ibmin
2008. In 2008, the average rate paid on interesthg deposits was 2.57%, down 72 basis points 8&8% in
2007. Throughout 2008, the Company decreasedgtehirate certificates of deposit and money maakebunts.
The increase in interest-bearing demand depogitbeattributed to growth in the Company’s fee-dasgerest-
bearing checking accounts and associated rewaogsgm.

Borrowings

The Company’s borrowings consist primarily of ought federal funds purchased from the FHLB and iothe
sources, securities sold under agreements to fegsecand term FHLB borrowings. This categoryatfilities
represents wholesale sources of funding and lityufdr the Company.

Short-term borrowings decreased on average appeadaiyn$14.03 million for 2008 compared with theopri
year as a result of decreasing funding needs. Tere no federal funds purchased at December 3B, 2Mc
$18.50 million, at December 31, 2007. Repurchaseemgents were $165.91 million and $207.43 million a
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Retailrhase agreements are sold to customers asamaéilte to
available deposit products and commercial treagocpunts. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, wholesplechas
agreements totaled $50.00 million. The weightedsye rate of those long-term, wholesale repurchgssements
was 4.32% and 4.30% at December 31, 2008 and 28§Fectively. The underlying securities includedeitail
repurchase agreements remain under the Companytiotduring the effective period of the agreements
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Short-term borrowings include overnight federaldsimnd repurchase agreements. Balances and ratempa
short-term borrowings used in daily operationssamamarized as follows:

2008 2007 2006
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
At year-end $165,91: 2.36% $225,92° 4.32% $208,88" 3.7(%
Average during the ye: 209,10: 2.4(% 223,13: 3.72% 150,83¢ 3.3™%
Maximum montl-end balanc: 282,11( 273,92( 208,88!

At December 31, 2008, FHLB borrowings included $200million in convertible and callable advanceleT
weighted-average interest rate of all advances3wé¥ and 4.38% at December 31, 2008 and 2007ctieply.
$50.00 million of the advances are hedged by arést rate swap to approximate a fixed rate of%.34fter
considering the effect of the interest rate swhap veighted-average interest rate of all advan@ss3n84% at
December 31, 2008. At December 31, 2008, the FHi\Baaces had maturities between eight and thirteansy

Also included in other indebtedness is $15.46 omillof junior subordinated debentures issued byCimpany
in October 2003 through FCBI Capital Trust, an ursmidated trust subsidiary, with an interest tthree-month
LIBOR plus 2.95%. The debentures mature in Oct@083 and are currently callable.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity represents the Company’s ability to resgdo demands for funds and is primarily derivemhfr
maturing investment securities, overnight investragoeriodic repayment of loan principal, and trempany’s
ability to generate new deposits. The Company ladsothe ability to attract short-term sources afisiand draw on
credit lines that have been established at findiséitutions to meet cash needs.

Total liquidity of $392.34 million at December 34008, is comprised of the following: cash on hand a
deposits with other financial institutions of $44 #illion; unpledged available-for-sale securitiés
$143.17 million; held-to-maturity securities duelhim one year of $452 thousand; FHLB credit avalitgtof
$106.28 million; federal funds lines availability $76.00 million; and holding company line of creavailability of
$20.00 million. As a result of the continuing nab credit crisis which developed in 2008, the Camyis FHLB
credit availability declined as the FHLB increasetlateral pledging requirements.

Liquidity management is both a daily and long-téumction of business management. Excess liquidity i
generally used to pay down short-term borrowings adonger-term basis, the Company maintains #eglyaof
investing in securities, mortgage-backed obligatiand loans with varying maturities. The Compargsubese
funds to meet ongoing commitments, to pay matusangngs certificates and savings withdrawals, fioaah
commitments and maintain a portfolio of securities.

Since the Company is a holding company and doesaratuct operations, its primary sources of licyidire
dividends upstreamed from the Bank and borrowingis foutside sources. Banking regulations limitahgunt of
dividends that may be paid by the Bank. See Note-1Regulatory Capital Requirements and Restrictmfrthe
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements includégém 8 hereof regarding such dividends. At Deber 31,
2008, the Company had liquid assets, including eashinvestment securities, totaling $13.65 milliand a holdin
company line of credit of $20.00 million. Additidha as a result of the Company’s patrticipatiorthe TARP
Capital Purchase Program, the ability of the Comppiardeclare or pay dividends or distributions bares of its
Common Stock is subject to restrictions, includingestriction against increasing cash dividendvaloe amount
of the last quarterly cash dividend per share dedlarior to October 14, 2008, which was $0.28gbare, without
the express permission of the Treasury. Thesdatsirs will terminate on the earlier of (a) thérthanniversary of
the date of issuance of the Series A PreferredkStod (b) the date on which the Series A PrefeBtedk has been
redeemed in whole or the Treasury has transfetted the Series A Preferred Stock to third parties

At December 31, 2008, approved loan commitmentstantling amounted to $167.32 million. Certificaiés
deposit scheduled to mature in one year or leateth$515.74 million. Management believes thaiGbepany has
adequate resources to fund outstanding commitnaertsould either adjust rates on certificates piodé in order
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to retain or attract deposits in changing interatg environments or replace such deposits witlacks from the
FHLB or other funds providers if it proved to besteffective to do so.
The following table presents contractual cash @liggs as of December 31, 2008.

Total Payments Due by Perioc

Less than One to Three to More than
Total One year Three Years Five Years Five Years
(Amounts in thousands)

Deposits without a stated maturity: $ 694,40t $ 694,40t $ — 3 — 3 —
Federal funds borrowed and overnight

security repurchase agreeme 87,68: 87,68: — — —

Certificates of Deposit(2)(: 841,41: 535,07¢ 175,44! 56,61: 74,27:

Term security repurchase agreeme 96,99( 23,51¢ 5,591 11,67¢ 56,19¢

FHLB advances(2)(s 285,90 8,40( 17,08t 17,37¢ 243,04:

Trust preferred indebtedne 45,70¢ 1,21¢ 2,43¢ 2,84¢ 39,20¢

Leases 2,59¢ 762 1,02 62€ 184

Total $2,054,69: $1,351,06. $ 201,59( $ 89,14¢ $412,89¢

(1) Excludes interes

(2) Includes interest on both fixed and variable-rdifigations. The interest associated with variaialie- obligation
is based upon interest rates in effect at Dece@be2008. The interest to be paid on variable-oateations is
affected by changes in market interest rates, wimaterially affect the contractual obligation amtsuto be
paid.

(3) Excludes carrying value adjustments such as un@adrpremiums or discount

The following table presents detailed informatiegarding the Company’s off-balance sheet arrangenatn
December 31, 2008.

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Less thar
One Yeat One to Three to More than
Total (1) Three Years Five Years Five Years

(Amounts in thousands)
Commitments to extend credit Commercial,

financial and agriculture $ 24,767 $ 809 $ 12300 $ 1,00¢ $ 3,26(
Real estat— commercial 16,471 2,30¢ 12,11 563 1,49
Real estat— residentia 78,077 1,46: 5,51¢ 6,16¢ 64,93¢
Real estat— constructior 31,49¢ 4,85¢ 15,14¢ 7,52¢ 3,96¢
Consumer lines of crec 48,33¢ 47,83¢ 482 2 15
Other 14¢€ — 14¢€ — —
Total unused commitmen $199,29: $64,55¢ $ 45,70: $ 15,36¢ $ 73,66¢
Financial letters of cred $ 149 $ 94€ $ 53 $ 7 % 10
Performance letters of cre! 1,351 32z 944 20 64
Total letters of credi $ 284 $126¢ $ 147 % 27 % 74

(1) Lines of credit with no stated maturity date arduded in commitments for less than one y
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The Company has a pay fixed and receive varialidgant rate swap that effectively fixes $50.00 inillof
FHLB borrowings at 4.34% for a period of five yearke derivative transaction is effective and perfiog as
originally expected.

Stockholders’ Equity

Total stockholders’ equity increased $3.24 millior$$220.34 million at December 31, 2008. The insecia
equity in 2008 was due mainly to comprehensivdoss of $42.15 million less preferred and commasidéinds of
$255 thousand and $12.45 million, respectively, meidadditions of treasury stock at a cost of $rBon.
Issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock to thasingy added $40.42 million, net, to stockholdeggiiy, and the
acquisition of Coddle Creek added approximately. $4 nillion.

Risk-based capital guidelines and the leverage méasure capital adequacy of banking institutiéws.
December 31, 2008, the Company’s Tier | capitabnags 11.92% compared with 11.45% in 2007. The gamg’'s
total risk-based capital-to-asset ratio was 12.@t®ecember 31, 2008, compared with 12.34% at DbeeBil,
2007. Both of these ratios are well above the ctiménimum level of 8% prescribed for bank holdo@mpanies b
the Federal Reserve Board. The leverage raticeisnsasurement of total tangible equity to totaéessThe
Company’s leverage ratio at December 31, 2008,9W&% versus 8.09% at December 31, 2007, both afhndre
well above the minimum levels prescribed by thedfrabdReserve Board. See Note 15 of the Notes te@iciated
Financial Statements in Item 8 hereof.

Wealth Management Services

As part of its community banking services, the Campoffers trust management and estate administrati
services through its Trust and Financial Servicegsidn (Trust Division). The Trust Division reped market valu
of assets under management of $416 million and $4i8@n at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respedctivehe
decrease in assets under management is largelp disereases in the market value of account assetsghout
2008. The Trust Division manages inter vivos trastd trusts under will, develops and administerpleyee benef
plans and individual retirement plans and managédssattles estates. Fiduciary fees for these sre charged
on a schedule related to the size, nature and eibpbf the account.

The Company also offers investment advisory sesvikeough the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiary, IPC,
which reported assets under management of $43®mahd $360 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The increase over 2007 includes duitian of several large accounts. IPC utilizes®aymond Jame
investment platform, which provides all settlemand clearing services.

Insurance Services

The Company offers insurance services througtultsigiary GreenPoint. Revenues are derived maioin f
commissions paid on policies sold. Commission raeenas $4.99 million for 2008 compared to $1.14iamilfor
2007. The Company acquired GreenPoint late in 2G0&enPoint is an acquisitive agency taking adygntd a
number of local independent insurance agenciesititipals evaluating exit strategies. GreenPwiatle two
large acquisitions during 2008, REL Insurance ieghisboro, North Carolina, and Carr & Hyde in Watioan
Virginia. Those two agencies added combined anpedlievenues of over $3 million.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

The Company’s profitability is dependent to a laegéent upon its net interest income, which isdiierence
between its interest income on interest-earningtassuch as loans and securities, and its intexgense on
interestbearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowifidne Company, like other financial institutioisssubjec
to interest rate risk to the degree that its irgeearning assets reprice differently than itsregebearing liabilities.
The Company manages its mix of assets and liadsiliiith the goals of limiting its exposure to imtgtrrate risk,
ensuring adequate liquidity, and coordinating dsrses and uses of funds while maintaining an dabéplevel of
net interest income given the current interest eatgronment.

The Companys primary component of operational revenue, ner@st income, is subject to variation as ar
of changes in interest rate environments in cortjanavith unbalanced repricing opportunities onngag assets ar
interest-bearing liabilities. Interest rate riskstiaur primary components including repricing ribsis risk, yield
curve risk and option risk. Repricing risk occuilsem earning assets and paying liabilities repriahiffering times
as interest rates change. Basis risk occurs wlesnrttlerlying rates on the assets and liabilitiedrktitution holds
change at different levels or in varying degredsldrcurve risk is the risk of adverse consequerasas result of
unequal changes in the spread between two or rates for different maturities for the same instratnéeastly,
option risk is the result of “embedded options'teafcalled put or call options, given or sold tédess of financial
instruments.

In order to mitigate the effect of changes in teeeral level of interest rates, the Company manegeing
opportunities and thus, its interest rate sengjtiiihe Company seeks to control its interest nate(“IRR”)
exposure to insulate net interest income and matregs from fluctuations in the general level akirest rates. To
measure its exposure to IRR, quarterly simulatafnset interest income are performed using findnoadels that
project net interest income through a range ofiplesamterest rate environments including rising¢lihing, most
likely and flat rate scenarios. The results of ¢heisnulations indicate the existence and sevefitRRB in each of
those rate environments based upon the curremdmkheet position, assumptions as to changes wvothme and
mix of interest-earning assets and interest-paljatujlities, management’s estimate of yields tcaltained in those
future rate environments, and rates that will hie pa various deposit instruments and borrowingecHic
strategies for management of IRR have includedtshimg the amortized maturity of new fixed-rateriea
increasing the volume of adjustable-rate loantluce the repricing term of the Bank’s interestigay assets, and
monitoring the term structure of liabilities to m&din a balanced mix of maturity and repricing titigate the
potential exposure. The simulation model used byGbmpany captures all earning assets, int&emsting liabilitie
and all off-balance sheet financial instruments emmibines the various factors affecting rate sifitgiinto an
earnings outlook. Based upon the latest simulattCompany believes that it is in a neutral gBfitsi position.

The Company has established policy limits for tatee of interest rate risk that allow for no mdranta 10%
reduction in the next twelve months’ projected in&trest income based on the income simulation esatpwith
forecasted results. In addition, the policy addzessxposure limits to changes in the economic vafl@guity
according to predefined policy guidelines. The mresent simulation indicates that current exposuoiiaterest rate
risk is within the Company’s defined policy limits.
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The following table summarizes the impact of imnageliand sustained rate shocks in the interest rate
environment on net interest income and the econealite of equity as of December 31, 2008 and 206&.model
simulates plus and minus 200 basis point changes fine base case rate simulation. This table, wiligdtrates the
prospective effects of hypothetical interest rdtanges, is based upon numerous assumptions ingluslative and
estimated levels of key interest rates over a terahonth time period. This modeling technique, altiffouseful,
does not take into account all strategies that ggama&nt might undertake in response to a suddeswusidined rate
shock as depicted. Also, as market conditions framy those assumed in the sensitivity analysisjaatesults will
also differ due to prepayment and refinancing leligkly deviating from those assumed, the varyingact of
interest rate change caps or floors on adjustaldeassets, the potential effect of changing datvice levels on
customers with adjustable rate loans, depositdy @athdrawals and product preference changes,odiner internal
and external variables. As of December 31, 20G8F#deral Open Market Committee set a target riovgederal
funds of 0 to 25 basis points, rendering a completenward shock of 200 basis points as not realgstd not
meaningful. In the downward rate shocks presetted¢chmark interest rates are dropped with flooes 0&6.

Rate Sensitivity Analysis

2008
Increase (Decrease) Change in Change in
in Interest Rates Net Interest % Market Value %
(Basis Points Income Change of Equity Change
(Dollars in thousands)
200 $ 1,47¢ 23 $ (8,040 (3.7)
100 1,49: 2.3 71¢ 0.3
(100) 1,87¢ 2.8 (21,449 (9.9
2007
Increase (Decrease Change in Change in
in Interest Rates Net Interest % Market Value %
(Basis Points Income Change of Equity Change
200 $ (3,129 (42 $ (30,89) (10.9)
100 (327) (0.4) (5,315) (1.8)
(100) (449) (0.6) (11,129 (3.9
(200) (1,657) (2.2) (32,00  (11.])
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31
2008 2007
(Amounts in thousands,
except share and per share

data)
ASSETS
Cash and due from ban $ 39,31( $ 50,05!
Interes-bearing balances with ban 7,12¢ 2,69¢
Total cash and cash equivale 46,43¢ 52,74¢
Securities available for sale (amortized cost @f3694, 2008; $674,937, 20C 520,72: 664,12(
Securities held to maturity (fair value of $8,8@008; $12,298, 200" 8,67( 12,07t
Loans held for sal 1,024 811
Loans held for investment, net of unearned inc 1,298,15' 1,225,50:
Less allowance for loan loss 15,97¢ 12,83:
Net loans held for investme 1,282,18. 1,212,66!
Premises and equipment, | 55,02 48,38:
Other real estate ownu 1,32¢ 54¢
Interest receivabl 10,08¢ 12,46¢
Goodwill 83,19: 66,31(
Other intangible asse 6,42( 3,74¢
Other asset 118,23: 75,96¢
Total Assets $2,133,31. $2,149,83:
LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Noninteres-bearing $ 199,71. $ 224,08
Interes-bearing 1,304,04¢ 1,169,35!
Total Deposits 1,503,75! 1,393,44.
Interest, taxes and other liabiliti 27,42 21,45¢
Federal funds purchas 18,50(
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 165,91« 207,42
FHLB borrowings and other indebtedn: 215,87 291,91¢
Total Liabilities 1,912,97. 1,932,741
Stockholders Equity
Preferred stock, par value undesignated; 1,0005880=s authorized; 41,500 shares is
and outstanding in 2008 and none in 2 40,41¢ —
Common stock, $1 par value; shares authorized0R3)00; shares issued: 12,051,234 in
2008 and 11,499,018 in 2007; shares outstanding§6Z449 in 2008 and 11,069,646
in 2007 12,05: 11,49¢
Additional paic-in capital 128,52t 108,82!
Retained earning 107,23: 117,67(
Treasury stock, at co (15,36¢) (13,619
Accumulated other comprehensive | (52,519 (7,287
Total Stockholder' Equity 220,34: 217,09¢
Total Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity $2,133,31. $2,149,83:

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2008 2007 2006
(Amounts in thousands,
except share and per share date

Interest Incom:

Interest and fees on loa $ 80,22: $ 93,50 $ 97,46(
Interest on securiti-taxable 22,71« 24,72¢ 13,95:
Interest on securiti-nontaxable 7,521 8,19( 7,371
Interest on federal funds sold and deposits in § 30¢ 1,17¢ 1,24¢
Total interest incom 110,76! 127,59: 120,02¢
Interest Expens
Interest on deposi 29,79: 38,751 33,86¢
Interest on sho-term borrowings 5,252 9,76( 6,97’
Interest on lon-term debi 9,88¢ 10,75¢ 7,53€
Total interest expens 44,93( 59,27¢ 48,38
Net Interest Incom 65,83¢ 68,31°¢ 71,64¢
Provision for loan losse 7,42 717 2,70¢
Net interest income after provision for loan los 58,41: 67,59¢ 68,93¢
Noninterest Incom
Wealth management incor 4,10( 3,88( 2,811
Service charges on deposit accot 14,06° 11,387 10,24:
Other service charges, commissions and 4,24¢ 3,60(C 2,992
Insurance commissiot 4,98¢ 1,142 —
Investment securities impairmei (29,929 — —
Net gains on sale of securiti 1,89¢ 411 75
Other operating incorr 2,99t 4,411 5,20
Total noninterest incomr 2,37¢ 24,83: 21,32:¢
Noninterest Expens
Salaries and employee bene 29,87¢ 25,84¢ 26,86
Occupancy expense of bank premi 5,10z 4,18( 4,06¢
Furniture and equipment exper 3,74( 3,37( 3,46¢
Prepayment penalties on FHLB advan 1,647 — —
Other operating expen: 20,15 17,06¢ 15,43¢
Total noninterest expen 60,51¢ 50,46: 49,831
Income before income tax 271 41,96¢ 40,42°¢
Income tax (benefit) expen (2,810 12,334 11,473
Net income 3,081 29,63: 28,94¢
Dividends on preferred stox 25k —
Net income available to common shareholc $ 282¢ $ 2963: % 28,94¢
Basic earnings per common sh $ 0.2¢ $ 264 $ 2.5¢
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 0.2t $ 2.62 $ 2.57
Dividends declared per common sh $ 112 $ 1.0€ $ 1.04
Weighted average basic shares outstan 11,058,07 11,204,67 11,204,87
Weighted average diluted shares outstan 11,134,02 11,292,87 11,279,48

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

48




Table of Contents

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
(Amounts in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitit

Net income $ 3,081 $ 29,63. $ 28,94¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashkigesl by operating activitie!
Provision for loan losse 7,422 717 2,70€
Depreciation and amortization of premises and egeigt 3,88t 3,27¢ 3,36¢
Intangible amortizatiol 68¢ 467 41C
Net investment amortization and accret (161) 534 69¢
Gains on the sale of ass (1,839 (357) (2,32¢
Mortgage loans originated for s¢ (32,704 (42,59¢) (33,56%)
Proceeds from sale of mortgage lo 32,67: 42,82: 34,24:
Gain on sale of loar (182) (254) (18&
Equity-based compensation expel 26C 271 427
Deferred income tax (benefit) exper (12,647 21€ 465
Decrease (increase) in interest receivi 3,071 (324) (1,92¢)
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensatic (85) (327) (203)
Prepayment penali 1,647 — —
(Increase) decrease in other as 32,53¢ (3,407) 21F
Increase in other liabilitie (412) 1,781 76¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 37,60: 32,44¢ 35,04(
Cash flows from investing activitie
Proceeds from sales of securities available far 128,88¢ 12,01( 14,18
Proceeds from maturities and calls of securitieslable for sale 87,14+« 28,63t 23,51t
Proceeds from maturities and calls of held to nigtgecurities 3,417 7,907 4,221
Purchase of securities available for ¢ (171,44¢ (211,32) (139,629
Purchase of bar-owned life insuranc — — (25,000
Net decrease (increase) in loans made to custc 58,47: 56,62% 40,61(
Cash used in divestitures and acquisitions (4,667) (5,364 (22,046
Purchase of premises and equipn (6,040) (15,160 (5,70¢
Proceeds from sale of equipm 21 52€ 40z
Net cash used in investing activiti 95,79¢ (126,144 (109,44¢)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Net (decrease) increase in demand and savingsitie (52,079 2,15¢  (17,21%)
Net increase (decrease) in time depc 24,78¢ (3,64¢) 35,55
Net increase (decrease) in FHLB and other borrrga (76,039 93,27 68,44(
Prepayment penal (1,649 — —
Net increase (decrease) in federal funds purch (18,5000  10,80C (74,800
Net (decrease) increase in securities sold undeeatent to repurcha: (41,519 6,242 77,36¢
Net proceeds from the issuance of preferred < 41,40¢ — —
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti 464 781 1,30¢
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensatic 85 327 201
Acquisition of treasury stoc (4,227) (9,170) (4,56€)
Dividends paic (12,457 (12,079 (11,659
Net cash provided by financing activiti (139,706) 88,68 74,62¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis. (6,307%) (5,019 22C
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 52,74¢ 57,75¢ 57,53¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 46,43¢ $ 52,74¢ $ 57,75¢
Supplemental informatio— Noncash item
Transfers of loans to other real est $ 265: % 1342 % 1,281

(See Note 1 for detail of income taxes and intguag&t and Note 2 for supplemental information rdgey detai
of cash paid in acquisitions.)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated

Additional Other
Preferred Common  Paid-in Retained Treasury Comprehensive
Stock Stock Capital Earnings  Stock  (Loss) Income  Total
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shareformation)
Balance January 1, 20! $ — $11,49¢ $108,57: $ 82,82¢ $ (7,629 $ (771) $194,50:
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — —  28,94¢ — —  28,94¢
Other comprehensive incor
Change in unrealized gain on securities availatriedle of $1,242, net of $4!
tax expens! — — — — — 74E 745
Less reclassification adjustment for losses redlimenet income of $10, net of ¢
tax benefit — — — — — (6) (6)
Unrealized gain on derivative securities of $44dt, of $177 tax expen: — — — — — 264 264
Total comprehensive income, net of — — —  28,94¢ — 1,005 29,95!
Common dividends declared ($1.04 per sh — — — (11,659 — — (11,659
Purchase of 145,161 treasury shares at $31.46\pez — — — — (4,566 —  (4,56€)
Acquisition of Stone Capital Management (2,706 sk} — 3 85 — — — 88
Acquisition of Investment Planning Consultants &9, shares — — 217 — 1,24¢ — 1,46
Distribution of treasury stock for ESOP (27,733rgis3 — — 16 — 867 — 882
Equity-based compensatic — — 267 — 16C — 427
Tax benefit from exercise of stock optic — — 33t — — — 33t
Common stock options exercised (63,655 sh¢ — — (687) — 1,992 — 1,30¢
Balance December 31, 20 — 11,49¢ 108,80¢ 100,117 (7,929 23z 212,73(
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — —  29,63. — — 29,63

Other comprehensive incor
Change in unrealized loss on securities availaisdle of $11,028, net of $4,4
tax benefil — — —
Less reclassification adjustment for gains realiredet income of $263, net
$105 tax expens — — —
Unrealized loss on derivative securities of $1,768,0f $704 tax benel — — —

_ — (6,617 (6,617

— — 15¢ 158
— — (1,050 (1,056

Total comprehensive income, net of — — —  29,63. — (7,515 22,115
Common dividends declared ($1.08 per sh — — — (12,079 — — (12,079
Purchase of 287,500 treasury shares at $31.8%pes — — — — (9,170 — (9,170
Acquisition of GreenPoint Insurance Group (49,088rss) — — 132 — 1,52¢ — 1,657
Acquisition of Investment Planning Consultants 4D3, shares — — 30 — 42t — 45¢E
Equity-based compensatic — — 16¢ — 102 — 271
Tax benefit from exercise of stock optic — — 33€ — — — 33€
Common stock options exercised (45,665 sh — — (649) — 1,43( — 781
Balance December 31, 20 — 11,49¢ 108,82! 117,67( (13,619 (7,287 217,09¢
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — 3,081 — — 3,081

Other comprehensive incor
Change in unrealized loss on securities availanisdle of $100,626, net
$39,244 tax benef — — —
Reclassification adjustment for net losses realimetet income of $29,607, net

— — (61,38) (61,38

$11,547 tax expens = = = = = 18,06(  18,06(
Change in unrealized loss on derivative securitfe®l 974, net of $770 te
benefit — — — — — (1,209 (1,209
Change related to employee benefit plans of $1,46étlof $453 tax benel — — — — — (70¢) (708)
Total comprehensive income, net of — — — 3,081 — (45,234 (42,157
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ (81%) (813
Preferred stock issuance, | 40,39t — (91) — — — 40,30«
Common stock warrant issuar — — 1,10¢ — — — 1,10¢
Preferred dividend, nt 24 (255) (231)
Common dividends declared ($1.12 per sh — — —  (12,45) — —  (12,45)
Purchase of 132,100 treasury shares at $31.96\pes — — — —  (4,22) — (4,229
Acquisition of Coddle Creek (552,216 shar — 552 18,58¢ — — — 19,14
Acquisition of GreenPoint Insurance Group (7,728&reh) — — 22 — 24E — 267
Acquisition of Investment Planning Consultants 63,3hares — — (26) — 26€ — 24C
Contribution of treasury stock to 401(k) plan (¥B&hares — — 8 — 1,20¢ — 1,20¢
Equity-based compensatic — — 244 — 16 — 26C
Tax benefit from exercise of stock optic — — 127 — — — 127
Common stock options exercised (22,323 shz — — (276) — 74C — 464
Balance December 31, 20 $40,41¢ $ 12,05 $128,52¢ $107,23: $(15,369) $ (52,517) $220,34:

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of First Camity Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries (“First Gamity”
or the “Company”) conform to accounting principtgmnerally accepted in the United States and togongthant
practices within the banking industry. In prepariimgncial statements, management is required tcereatimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amourdass#ts and liabilities as of the date of the lzalahmeet and
revenues and expenses for the period. Actual sesaiild differ from those estimates. Assets helahmgency or
fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Compamlyaaa not included in the accompanying consolidatdnce
sheets.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of First Camity include the accounts of all wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balaneesl transactions have been eliminated in cong@iueEffective
January 1, 2008, the Company operates within tveiniegs segments, community banking and insurameess.

Use of Estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statementsoinfarmity with generally accepted accounting prihes,
management is required to make estimates and aisasfhat affect the reported amounts of asseatdiahilities
as of the date of the balance sheet and reportedramof revenues and expenses during the repqrérigd.
Financial statement items requiring the significase of estimates and assumptions include, butarémited to,
fair values of investment securities and the alloeeafor loan losses. Actual results could diffenirthose
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and dueb@oks, time deposits with other banks, federadl$usold,
and interest-bearing balances on deposit with guefal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB") that are availalde f
immediate withdrawal. Interest and income taxesd padre as follows:

2008 2007 2006
(Amounts in thousands)
Interest $46,38. $58,797 $46,24:
Income Taxe: 8,771 12,097 9,71

Pursuant to agreements with the Federal Reservie, BemCompany maintains a cash balance of appaieiy
$1.0 million in lieu of charges for check clearimgd other services.

Trading Securities

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, no securities wele flor trading purposes and no trading account was
maintained.

Investment Securities

Securities to be held for indefinite periods ofdinmcluding securities that management intendséoas part
its asset/liability management strategy and that beasold in response to changes in interest relbesges in
prepayment risk, or other similar factors, are sifteed as available-for-sale and are recordedtahaged fair value.
Unrealized appreciation or depreciation in fairabbove or below amortized cost is included icldtolders’
equity, net of income taxes, and is entitled “OtBemprehensive Income (Loss).” Premiums and distsoane
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS — (Continued)

amortized to expense or accreted to income ovdiféhef the security. Gain or loss on sale is lobse the specific
identification method.

Investments in debt securities that managementhesability and intent to hold to maturity are ¢adrat
amortized cost. Premiums and discounts are amdrtizexpense and accreted to income over the divdse
securities. Gain or loss on the call or maturityneestment securities, if any, is recorded basethe specific
identification method.

Management performs an extensive review of thestment securities portfolio quarterly to determtine
cause of declines in the fair value of each secwrithin each segment of the portfolio. The Compasgs inputs
provided by an independent third party to deterntiieefair values of its investment securities podigf. Inputs
provided by the third party are reviewed and cosraked by management. Evaluations of the causteof
unrealized losses are performed to determine whétkémpairment is temporary or other-than-temppoiia nature
Considerations such as the Comparigtent and ability to hold the securities, regabdity of the invested amoun
over the Companyg'intended holding period, severity in pricing deeland receipt of amounts contractually due
example, are applied in determining whether a s$igycgrother-than-temporarily impaired. If a dedim value is
determined to be other-than-temporary, the valub@&ecurity is reduced and a corresponding chtargarnings is
recognized.

The impairment evaluations noted above are comsistith the accounting guidance in
EITF 99-20 “Recognition of Interest Income and lingeent on Purchased Beneficial Interests and Beiagfi
Interests That Continue to Be Held by a Transfer@ecuritized Financial Assets,” as amended, SERS
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Bg$ecurities,” FASB Staff Position No. 115-1, “@iMeaning
of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Appligatto Certain Investments,” and SEC Staff Accoumti
Bulletin No. 59, “Other Than Temporary ImpairmenGertain Investments in Debt and Equity Securjties
determine if a security is other than temporartpaired. Securities deemed to be other than temrifyoirapaired
are written down to their current fair values waticharge to earnings. The review process uses hication of the
severity of pricing declines and the present valiine expected cash flows and compares thosetsdsiuthe currer
carrying value. Significant inputs provided by thdependent third party such as default and logsritg are
reviewed internally for reasonableness.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale primarily consist of one-to+féamily residential loans originated for sale lire tsecondary
market and are carried at the lower of cost onestid fair value determined on an aggregate bBiséslong-term,
fixed-rate loans are sold to investors on a bdettsefbasis such that the Company does not abkerlmterest rate
risk involved in the loan. The fair value of loamsd for sale is determined by reference to quptézks for loans
with similar coupon rates and terms.

The Company enters into rate-lock commitments kesao customers with the intention to sell thenloathe
secondary market. The derivatives arising fromrétte-lock commitments are recorded at fair valuetirer assets
and liabilities and changes in that fair valueiamtuded in other income. The fair value of theedack commitmen
derivatives are determined by reference to quote@pfor loans with similar coupon rates and ter@ains and
losses on the sale of those loans are includethar income.

Loans Held for Investment

Loans held for investment are carried at the ppimcamount outstanding less any write-downs whiely tre
necessary to reduce individual loans to net relaléizaalue. Individually significant commercial lcaare evaluated
for impairment when evidence of impairment existgairment allowances are recorded through speaifditions
to the allowance for loan losses. Loans are corsitigast due when principal or interest becomeaaaletnt by
30 days or more. Consumer loans are charged offiwteeloan becomes 120 days past due (180 days
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS — (Continued)

if secured by residential real estate). Other l@aascharged off against the allowance for loasdesfter collection
attempts have been exhausted, which generallytisnvi20 days. Recoveries of loans charged ofteedited to th
allowance for loan losses in the period received.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained atl¢ermnagement deems adequate to absorb probabés los
inherent in the portfolio, and is based on managgimevaluation of the risks in the loan portfadind changes in
the nature and volume of loan activity. The Compemrysistently applies a review process to perididiexvaluate
loans and commitments for changes in credit risks process serves as the primary means by whicGdmpany
evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for lossels.

The Company determines the allowance for loan tobganaking specific allocations to impaired lo&met
exhibit inherent weaknesses and various creditfastors. General allocations to commercial, residéreal estate,
and consumer loan pools are developed giving wemtisk ratings, historical loss trends and managye’s
judgment concerning those trends and other reldaaittrs. These factors may include, among otlzetsial versu:
estimated losses, regional and national econommditions, business segment and portfolio concdotrgt industry
competition and consolidation, and the impact ofggoment regulations. The foregoing analysis i$quered by
management to evaluate the portfolio and calcaatestimated valuation allowance through a quaivitand
qualitative analysis that applies risk factorshtose identified risk areas.

This risk management evaluation is applied at brwthportfolio level and the individual loan lever f
commercial loans and credit relationships whileléwel of consumer and residential mortgage lo&wance is
determined primarily on a total portfolio level ledson a review of historical loss percentages dheraualitative
factors including concentrations, industry sped#dictors and economic conditions. The commerciatfpiio
requires more specific analysis of individuallyrgfgcant loans and the borrower’s underlying cdskvf business
conditions, capacity for debt repayment and theatidn of secondary sources of payment, such dsteal. This
analysis may result in specifically identified waakses and corresponding specific impairment atioes While
allocations are made to specific loans and clasditins within the various categories of loans,at@vance for
loan losses is available for all loan losses.

The use of various estimates and judgments in tmegany’s ongoing evaluation of the required level o
allowance can significantly impact the Companysutes of operations and financial condition and mesult in
either greater provisions against earnings to aszahe allowance or reduced provisions based mamagement’s
current view of portfolio and economic conditiomxlahe application of revised estimates and assongpt
Differences between actual loan loss experiencesatichates are reflected through adjustments eiticegasing or
decreasing the loan loss provision based uponmumeasurement criteria.

Long-term Investments

Certain long-term equity investments represent&sg than 20% ownership are accounted for underoste
method, are carried at cost, and are includedharassets. These investments in operating congpeapeesent
required long-term investments in insurance, inmestt and service company affiliates or consortiwhigh serve
as vehicles for the delivery of various supporvses. In accordance with the cost method, dividenedeived are
recorded as current period revenues and therersaognition of the Company’s proportionate shdneed
operating income or loss. The Company has deterhitna fair value measurement is not practical, faniher,
nothing has come to the attention of the Compaat/whould indicate impairment of any of these inuestts.

As a condition to membership in the FHLB systers, Bank is required to subscribe to a minimum lefel
stock in the FHLB. At December 31, 2008 and 20b&,Bank owned approximately $13.17 million and
$16.89 million in FHLB stock, respectively, whichdlassified as other assets. Because of the reemp
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provisions of the FHLB stock, the Company estim#iies fair value approximates cost resulting inmpairment a
December 31, 2008 or 2007.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost lesmatated depreciation. Depreciation and amortizadicn
computed on the straight-line method over estimatasdul lives. Useful lives range from 5 to 10 yefar furniture,
fixtures, and equipment; three to five years fdtveare, hardware, and data handling equipment;léni 40 years
for buildings and building improvements. Land imypements are amortized over a period of 20 years|easehold
improvements are amortized over the lesser of se¢ulilife or the term of the lease plus the fogtional renewal
period, when renewal is reasonably assured. Maamismand repairs are charged to current operatibits
improvements that extend the economic useful fifdne underlying asset are capitalized. Disposigams and
losses are reflected in current operations.

The Company leases various properties within it network. Leases generally have initial teringao
20 years and most contain options to renew withaeable increases in rent. All leases are accodotexs
operating leases.

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned and acquired through fosact is stated at the lower of cost or fair vidiss
estimated costs to sell. Loan losses arising flogratcquisition of such properties are charged agtie allowance
for loan losses. Expenses incurred in connectidh @perating the properties, subsequent write-daamasgains or
losses upon sale are included in other nonintesgstnse.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The excess of the cost of an acquired companythediair value of the net assets and identifiedrigtbles
acquired is recorded as goodwill. The net carrgingunt of goodwill was $83.19 million and $66.31liom at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. A poufdaihe purchase price in certain transactionsieas allocated
to values associated with the future earnings pieiesf acquired deposits and is being amortizeer dlre estimated
lives of the deposits, ranging from four to tenrgaahile the weighted average remaining life otheore deposits
is approximately 8.0 years. As of December 31, 28882007, the balance of core deposit intangilvbes
$6.41 million and $4.59 million, respectively, whihe corresponding accumulated amortization wagS$aillion
and $3.41 million, respectively. The net unamotdibalance of identified intangibles associated withuired
deposits was $3.02 million and $1.18 million at Braber 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The aceunsiif
Greenpoint, and its continued acquisitions, adde@%million of goodwill and $1.14 million in oth&entified
intangible assets for the period ended Decembe2(®18. The acquisition of Investment Planning Cétasis, Inc.
added a total of $240 thousand of goodwill forpeeiod ended December 31, 2008. Annual amortizaiqgrense ¢
all intangibles for 2009 and the succeeding forgare approximately $962 thousand, $869 thou$8td!
thousand, $672 thousand, and $598 thousand, resggct

The Company reviews and tests goodwill for potémti@airment on an annual basis in November. Gobdsvi
tested for impairment by comparing the fair valfi¢he unit with its book value, including goodwilf.the fair value
of the Company is greater than its book value, sadgill impairment exists. However, if the book walof the
Company is greater than its determined fair vadwedwill impairment may exist and further testisgéquired to
determine the amount, if any, of the actual impainirioss.
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The progression of the Company’s goodwill and igthle assets for continuing operations for thedhyears
ended December 31, 2008, is detailed in the folgwtable:

Other

Goodwill Intangibles

(Amounts in thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2C $59,18: $ 1,937
Acquisitions and dispositions, r 953 472
Amortization — (34¢)
Balance at December 31, 2C 60,13t 2,061
Acquisitions 6,17¢ 2,152
Amortization — (467)
Balance at December 31, 2C 66,31( 3,74¢
Acquisitions 15,99( 3,36¢
Other Adjustment 892 —
Amortization — (689)
Balance at December 31, 2C $83,19: $ 6,41¢

Other Assets

In addition to deferred tax assets, other assetsded $40.78 million and $37.20 million in cashrender
value of life insurance and $13.17 million and $B6million in FHLB stock at December 31, 2008 afd?,
respectively.

In connection with the bank-owned life insurante, Company has also entered into Life Insurance
Endorsement Method Split Dollar Agreements withtaerof the individuals whose lives are insureddenSplit
Dollar Agreements, the Company shares 80% of deatlefits (after recovery of cash surrender valu#) the
designated beneficiaries of the plan participantieu life insurance contracts. The Company as owhtre policie
retains a 20% interest in life proceeds and a 1D@@test in the cash surrender value of the pai@608 expenses
associated with split dollar agreements were $haé@sand.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to repurchasgeaerally accounted for as collateralized financing
transactions. Securities, generally U.S. governraadtFederal agency securities, pledged as callateder these
arrangements cannot be sold or repledged by theestparty. The fair value of the collateral praddo a third
party is continually monitored, and additional atdiral is provided as appropriate.

Loan Interest Income Recognition

Accrual of interest on loans is based generallyhendaily amount of principal outstanding. Loans ar
considered past due when either principal or istgpayments are delinquent by 30 or more days.the
Company’s policy to discontinue the accrual of ies on loans based on the payment status andagiealwf the
related collateral and the financial strength af blorrower. The accrual of interest income is ndisnthscontinued
when a loan becomes 90 days past due as to principgerest. Management may elect to continueatterual of
interest when the loan is well secured and in @@ collection. When interest accruals are disoord, interest
accrued and not collected in the current yeanisneed from income and interest accrued and ntgatet! from
prior years is charged to the allowance for loasés. Interest income realized on impaired loarecisgnized upon
receipt if the impaired loan is on a non-accruaifaAccrual of interest on non-accrual loans maydsumed if the
loan is brought current and follows a period ofstahtial performance, including six months of regul
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principal and interest payments. Accrual of intemsimpaired loans is generally continued unléssldéan become
delinquent 90 days or more.

Loan Fee Income

Loan origination and underwriting fees are reduogdlirect and indirect costs associated with loaT@ssing,
including salaries, review of legal documents abthimment of appraisals. Net origination fees apstcare
deferred and amortized over the life of the relddash. Loan commitment fees are deferred and areattbver the
related commitment period. Net deferred loan feeev$447 thousand at December 31, 2008, and ratreéfcosts
were $574 thousand at December 31, 2007.

Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are generally expensed as induAkmounts recognized for the three years ended
December 31, 2008, are detailed in Note 16 — Ciiparating Expenses.

Equity-Based Compensation

The cost of employee services received in exchéorgequity instruments including options and reséil stocl
awards generally are measured at fair value ajrtuet date. The effect of option shares on earnegshare relate
to the dilutive effect of the underlying optionstsianding. To the extent the granted exercise girége is less than
the current market price, or “in the money”, theran economic incentive for the options to be eised and an
increase in the dilutive effect on earnings persha

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is comprised of federal and statrent and deferred income taxes on pre-taxregsof
the Company. Income taxes as a percentage of piegame may vary significantly from statutory rattue to
items of income and expense which are excludethwyfrom the calculation of taxable income. Thiems are
commonly referred to as permanent differences.riibst significant permanent differences for the Canypincluds
income on state and municipal securities whicheammpt from federal income tax, income on bank-ahlife
insurance, and tax credits generated by investnieihdsv income housing and rehabilitation of higtastructures.

The Company adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 atlbetion of FIN 48 had no material impact on finahc
position or results of operations. The Companyudes interest and penalties related to incomedhiities in
income tax expense. The Company and its subsididaie filings for the years ended December 31 42000ough
2007 are currently open to audit under statutdsnitation by the Internal Revenue Service and magi state tax
departments.

During 2005 and 2006, the Company invested in &chppartnerships formed to perform the rehabilitatid
properties certified as historic structures byNational Park Service. The Company’s investmerth@se
partnerships generates federal and state histocicredits. The associated credits are realizedtenbalance of the
investment is written off at the time the buildireye placed in service. As of December 31, 200&,uélldings
associated with the partnership investments weselivice.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogniaethe estimated future tax consequences attiliibeta
differences between the tax bases of assets ailitiés and their carrying amounts for financiaporting purposes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measuried) @nacted tax rates in effect for the year inchithe temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or seffleférred tax assets are reduced by a valuatiowathce if it is
more likely than not that the tax benefits will et realized.
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Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is determined by dividietgncome available to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of shares outstandingtddilearnings per share is determined by dividirtignoeme
available to common shareholders by the weightedame shares outstanding increased by the dileffeet of
stock options. Basic and diluted net income permmomshare calculations follow:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share
data)

Net income available to common shareholc $ 2,82t $ 29,63: % 28,94¢
Weighted average shares outstant 11,058,07 11,204,67 11,204,87
Dilutive shares for stock optiot 53,68( 65,32( 74,60¢
Contingently issuable shar 22,26¢ 22,87t —
Common stock warran — —
Weighted average dilutive shares outstant 11,134,02 11,292,87 11,279,48
Basic earnings per she $ 0.2¢ % 264 $ 2.5¢
Diluted earnings per sha $ 028 % 26z % 2.57

Variable Interest Entities

The Company maintains ownership positions in varieutities which it deems variable interest erdtitie
(“VIE's”) as defined in FIN 46R. These VIE’s inclactertain tax credit limited partnerships and otimeited
liability companies which provide aviation servicgsurance brokerage, investment brokerage,tilerance and
other financial and related services. Based orChrapany’s analysis, it is a non-primary beneficiagcordingly,
these entities do not meet the criteria for codstion under FIN 46R. The carrying value of VIE'asw
$1.50 million and $1.89 million at December 31, 2@thd 2007, respectively. The Company’s maximunsiptes
loss exposure was $1.51 million and $1.93 millibDaecember 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Managedoes
not believe losses resulting from its involvemeithwthe entities discussed above will be material.

Derivative Instruments

The Company enters into derivative transactionsggally to protect against the risk of adverse@ior
interest rate movements on the value of certaietassd liabilities and on future cash flows. Idiéidn, certain
contracts and commitments are defined as derivatimder generally accepted accounting principles.

Under the requirements of SFAS 133, “AccountingDerivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as
amended, all derivative instruments are carriddiavalue on the balance sheet. SFAS 133 provdgesial hedge
accounting provisions, which permit the changéhmfir value of the hedged item related to thie bising hedged
to be recognized in earnings in the same periodratite same income statement line as the chantpe ifair value
of the derivative.

Derivative instruments designated in a hedge mahip to mitigate exposure to changes in thevigire of an
asset, liability, or firm commitment attributabled particular risk, such as interest rate ris& cansidered fair valt
hedges under SFAS 133. Derivative instruments dagégl in a hedge relationship to mitigate exposukariability
in expected future cash flows, or other types oédasted transactions, are considered cash flogelsedhe
Company formally documents all relationships betwieedging instruments and hedged items, as wé aisk
management objective and strategy for undertalkatt dedge transaction.
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Other Recent Accounting Developments

In May 2008, the Financial Accounting StandardsfBq&FASB”) issued Statement No. 162, “The Hierarch
of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” (“SFAB2"). This statement establishes a frameworlsébecting
accounting principles to be used in preparing famarstatements that are presented in conformityi WiS GAAP.
SFAS 162 is effective 60 days following the SEQdprval of the Public Company Accounting Oversigbard
Auditing amendments to AU Section 411, “The Mearoh@resent Fairly in Conformity with Generally Asgated
Accounting Principles,” and is not expected to hamémpact on the Company’s consolidated finarst@iements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement No. 1Bisclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hegigin
Activities — an amendment of FASB Statement No.”X(33FAS 161"). This statement requires enhanced
disclosures about an entity’s derivative and heglgictivities in order to improve the transparentiirancial
reporting. Entities are required to provide enhdmtisclosures about (a) how and why an entity dseivative
instruments, (b) how derivative instruments andtesl hedged items are accounted for under StateiB8rdand its
related interpretations, and (c) how derivativarimsents and related hedged items affect an esfiityancial
position, financial performance, and cash flowssTtatement is effective for fiscal years andrimieperiods
beginning after November 15, 2008. The Companyieeatly evaluating the impact of SFAS 161 on ischbsures

In December 2007, the FASB revised Statement Nb, "Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141R"). This
statement requires an acquirer to recognize tretsaasquired, the liabilities assumed, and anyaunirolling
interest in the acquiree at the acquisition daggsured at their fair values as of that date. Sfaiement recognizes
and measures the goodwill acquired in the busiceswination or a gain from a bargain purchase. $tatement
also defines the acquirer as the entity that obtaimtrol of one or more businesses in the busic@sbination and
establishes the acquisition date as the dateltbatdquiree achieves control. Additionally, thetement determines
what information to disclose to enable users offitiencial statements to evaluate the nature arahfial effects of
the business combination. The Company adopted SEAR effective January 1, 2009.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158plByers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiordan
Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FA&®®&ents No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).” SFAS 1§8ires
an employer to: (a) recognize in its statementradrfcial position an asset for a plamverfunded status or a liabil
for a plan’s underfunded status; (b) measure dpkssets and its obligations that determine itslédl status as of
the end of the employer’s fiscal year (with limitexteptions); and (c) recognize changes in theddrstiatus of a
defined benefit postretirement plan in the yeawrlmch the changes occur. Those changes will bertegn
comprehensive income. The requirement to recoghizéunded status of a benefit plan and the discéos
requirements are effective as of the end of tteafigear ending after December 15, 2006. The rement to
measure plan assets and benefit obligations dseafdte of the employer’s fiscal year-end statero&fibancial
position is effective for fiscal years ending afacember 15, 2008.

In September 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Fesmhed a consensus regarding EITF 06-4, “Accourfiting
Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefieéts of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance
Arrangements.” The scope of EITF 06-4 is limitedhe recognition of a liability and related competien costs for
endorsement split-dollar life insurance policieattbrovide a benefit to an employee that extengimsdretirement
periods. Therefore, this EITF would not apply tepdit-dollar life insurance arrangement that pregic specified
benefit to an employee that is limited to the ergpéds active service period with an employer. Omuday 1, 2008,
the Company made a cumulative effect adjustmeagtity of $813 thousand in connection with the aopof
EITF 06-4.

The Company adopted Financial Accounting StandBo@sd Staff Position EITF Issue No 99-20-1,
“Amendments to the Impairment Guidance of EITF ésBlo. 99-20.” This FSP was finalized in January@8a0d
applied to years ended after December 15, 2008. thihdard amended the impairment guidance in BOFEO to
that of FASB Statement No. 115 by removing the mr@moent of management to consider a
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market participant’'s assumptions about cash flonassessing whether or not an adverse changeviopssy
anticipated cash flows has occurred. The adoptigracted the analysis performed by the Companyterméne
other than temporary impairment for certain colialieed debt obligations.

Note 2. Merger, Acquisitions and Branching Activiy

On November 14, 2008, the Company completed theisitign of Coddle Creek Financial Corp (“Coddle
Creek”), based in Mooresville, North Carolina. Cled@reek had three full service locations in Mowiiés,
Cornelius, and Huntersville, North Carolina. At aisition, Coddle Creek had total assets of apprexéty
$158.66 million, loans of approximately $136.99lioil, and deposits of approximately $137.06 milliamder the
terms of the merger agreement, shares of CoddiekGvere exchanged for .9046 shares of the Compaoysnon
stock and $19.60 in cash, for a total purchaseemi@pproximately $32.29 million. As a result b&tacquisition
and preliminary purchase price allocation, apprataty $14.41 million in goodwill was recorded, wihiepresents
the excess purchase price over the fair markeevaflihe net assets acquired and identified intdegi Because the
results of operations of Coddle Creek are not Sigant, pro forma information is not being provided

In September 2007, the Company completed the dtignisf GreenPoint Insurance Group, Inc.
(“GreenPoint”), an insurance agency located in Higint, North Carolina. In connection with the iaitpayment of
approximately $1.66 million, the Company issued88,shares of its common stock. Under the ternmeo§tock
purchase agreement, former shareholders of Greené&ei entitled to additional consideration aggtiegaup to
$1.45 million in the form of cash or the Compangtenmon stock, valued at the time of issuance,rtbae future
operating performance targets are met. If thoseabipg targets are met, portions of the value efdbnsideration
ultimately paid will be added to the cost of theguisition, which will increase the amount of gootiwélated to the
acquisition. The Company also assumed $5.57 miiliadebt in connection with the acquisition, of wihi
approximately $5.00 million was paid off at closiffidgirough December 31, 2008, the Company issuetB&Hares
of Common Stock as additional consideration addimgroximately $267 thousand to goodwill.

Throughout 2008, GreenPoint acquired a total &f figencies. The two largest were Carr & Hyde inréfdon
Virginia, and REL in Greensboro, North Carolinae@mPoint issued cash consideration of approximately
$2.04 million through 2008 in connection with tregjaisitions. Acquisition terms in all instances| ¢at issuing
further cash consideration if certain operatingqrenance targets are met. If those targets aretimealue of the
consideration ultimately paid will be added to thst of the acquisitions. GreenPoint’'s 2008 actjaiss added
approximately $2.04 million of goodwill and intabggs to the Company’s balance sheet.

In December 2006, the Company completed the sate Bowlesburg, West Virginia, branch location.tA¢
time of the sale, the branch had deposits and cbpse agreements totaling approximately $10.6anillind loans
of approximately $2.2 million. The transaction résd in a pre-tax gain of approximately $333 thauka

In November 2006, the Company completed the adgqnsdf Investment Planning Consultants, Inc. (“fR@
registered investment advisory firm. In connectiath the initial payment of approximately $1.47 iih, the
Company issued 39,874 shares of Common Stock. Uhdéerms of the stock purchase agreement, former
shareholders of IPC are entitled to additional @eration of up to $1.43 million in the form of t®mpany’s
Common Stock if certain future operating performatargets are met. If those operating targets ateportions of
the value of the consideration ultimately paid wil added to the cost of the acquisition, which wdrease the
amount of goodwill arising in the acquisition. Thgh December 31, 2008, the Company issued 21, 762 slof
Common Stock as additional consideration addingapmately $695 thousand to goodwill.

In June 2006, the Company completed the sale Bfrdkes Branch, Virginia, branch location. At thae of
the sale, the branch had deposits and repurchasenagnts totaling approximately $16.4 million aodrs of
approximately $1.9 million. The transaction resullite a pre-tax gain of approximately $702 thousand.
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The following table summarizes the net cash pravioe or used in acquisitions and divestitures dytire
three years ended December 31, 2008.

2008 2007 2006
(Amounts in thousands)
Fair value of investments acquir $ 126¢ $ — $ —
Fair value of loans acquire 136,03! — —
Fair value of premises and equipment acqu 4,50¢ — —
Fair value of other asse 23,87 382 23z
Fair value of deposits assum (137,609 — —
Fair value of other liabilities assum (4,967 (1,167 a7
Purchase price in excess of net assets acq 15,99: 7,83¢ 1,48¢
Total purchase pric 39,09¢ 7,05z 1,70:
Less nor-cash purchase pri 19,641 1,65¢ 1,46t
Less cash acquire 14,79: 32 18
Net cash paid for acquisitic $ 4660 $5365 $ 22
Book value of assets sc $ — $ — $(4,679
Book value of liabilities soli — — 27,16¢
Sales price in excess of net liabilities assul — — (1,035
Total sales pric — — 21,45]
Add cash on hand so — — 39t
Less amount due remaining on boi — — 20
Net cash paid for divestitu $ — $ — $21,82¢

Note 3. Participation in U.S. Treasury Capital Puchase Program

On November 21.2008, the Company entered into a Letter Agreeywamich incorporates by reference the
Securities Purchase Agreement — Standard Term$Filmehase Agreement”), with the U.S. Departmerthef
Treasury (“Treasury”). Pursuant to the terms ofRlnechase Agreement, the Company issued and stiie to
Treasury (i) 41,500 shares of the Company’s Fixate-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Serighe\
“Series A Preferred Stock”) and (ii) a warrant (théarrant”) to purchase 176,546 shares of the Camgacommo
stock, par value $1.00 per share (the “Common S}pftk an aggregate purchase price of $41.50 arilin cash.

The Series A Preferred Stock qualifies as Tiergitahand will pay cumulative dividends at a rat&d0% per
annum for the first five years, and 9.00% per antiueneafter. The Series A Preferred Stock is gdigeran-voting.
The Warrant has a 10-year term and is immediatadyogsable upon its issuance, with an initial gears exercise
price of $35.26. Pursuant to the Purchase Agreeresdsury has agreed not to exercise voting patbrrespect
to any share of Common Stock issued upon exergigedVarrant.

The Series A Preferred Stock and the Warrant vesged in a private placement exempt from registati
pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act@83, as amended. In accordance with the termsedPtinchase
Agreement, the Company registered the Series AeResf Stock, the Warrant, and the shares of Constock
underlying the Warrant with the Securities and Exae Commission (the “SEC”). Neither the Seriesréfétred
Stock nor the Warrant are subject to any contracasdrictions on transfer, except that Treasury wely transfer
or exercise one-half of the Warrant shares prigh¢oearlier of the redemption of 100% of the SeAePreferred
Stock and December 31, 2009.
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Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreemeon igguance of the Series A Preferred Stock, thityadsf
the Company to declare or pay dividends or distiiims on, or purchase, redeem or otherwise acfpire
consideration, shares of its Common Stock is stiltje@strictions, including a restriction agaimstreasing cash
dividends above the amount of the last quarter dagtiend per share declared prior to October D882 which wa
$0.28 per share, without express permission of tkasury. These restrictions will terminate onéheier of (a) the
third anniversary date of the Series A PreferreatiSand (b) the date on which the Series A PredeBteck has
been redeemed in whole or the Treasury has tragdfall of the Series A Preferred Stock to thirdipa.

Based on a Black-Scholes-Merton options pricing ehdithe Warrant has been assigned a fair valud gf4$
per underlying share, or $784 thousand in the agdeg as of November 21, 2008. As a result, $1.dlbmwas
recorded as the discount on the preferred stockirsdd above and will be accreted as a reductioinncome
available for common shareholders over the negtyiwars at approximately $215 thousand to $219tuudiper
year. For purposes of these calculations, thevédire of the Warrant as of November 21, 2008, vetisnated using
the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model alne following assumptions:

Risk free interest rai 3.20%
Expected life 10 years
Expected dividend yiel 4.17%
Expected volatility 29.11%
Weighted average fair valt $4.44

At issuance, a value of $40.40 million was assigioethe Series A Preferred Stock and will be aedtelp to
the redemption amount of $41.50 million at Novenider2013.
Note 4. Investment Securities

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of sies, with gross unrealized gains and lossessdiad as
available-for-sale are as follows:

December 31, 2008

Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Amounts in thousands)
U.S. Government agency securit $ 5342 $ 139 $ — $ 54,81¢
States and political subdivisio 163,04 864 (4,487 159,41
Trust-preferred securitie 148,76( — (82,707 66,05
Mortgage-backed securitie 230,48t 4,64¢ (1,659 233,47¢
Equities 7,97¢ 357 (1,38)) 6,95¢
Total $603,69: $ 7,265 $(90,239 $520,72:
December 31, 200
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Amounts in thousands)
U.S. Government agency securit $136,79. $ 2,44¢ $ —  $139,23°
States and political subdivisio 186,83« 2,667 (965) 188,53
Trust-preferred securitie 164,73: — (14,1060  150,62!
Mortgage-backed securitie 177,98« 81¢€ (2,079 176,72
Equities 8,591 814 (41€) 8,99¢
Total $674,93° $ 6,747 $(17,56() $664,12(
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value oflalki-for-sale securities by contractual matury,
December 31, 2008, are shown below. Expected ntiagimay differ from contractual maturities becaisseers
may have the right to call or prepay obligationthvar without call or prepayment penalties.

Available For Sale

Amortized Cost Maturity
Within one yea
After one year through five yea
After five years through ten yee
After ten years

Amortized cos

Mortgagebacked securitie
Equity securitie:
Total Amortized cos

Tax equivalent purchase yie
Average contractual maturity (in yea
Fair Value Maturity:
Within one yea
After one year through five yea
After five years through ten yee
After ten year:

Fair Value
Mortgagebacked securitie
Equity securitie:

Total Fair Value

u.S. States Tax
Government and Equivalent
Agencies & Political Corporate Purchase
Corporations Subdivisions Notes Total Yield

(Dollars in thousands)
$ —  $ 94C % — §  94C 6.01%
— 5,40: — 5,40: 6.6%
— 84,03¢ — 84,03¢ 6.01%

53,42¢ 72,66 148,76( 274,84¢ 4.2%%

$ 53,42 $ 163,04. $148,76( 365,22
230,48t 5.1%%
7,97¢ 3.6&%

$603,69:¢

5.82% 6.2% 2.55% 4.7(%
12.7¢ 10.4¢ 24.5; 16.52
$ —  $ 94t $ — % 94t
_ 5,447 — 5,447
— 83,27¢ — 83,27¢
54,81¢ 69,74¢ 66,05 190,62(
$ 54,81¢ $ 159,41¢ $ 66,05! 280,29(
233,47¢
6,95¢
$520,72:

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of sies, with gross unrealized gains and lossessdiad as

held-to-maturity are as follows:

States and political subdivisio
Total

62

December 31, 2008

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Amounts in thousands)
$ 867(C $ 13: 3 (1) $8,80:
$ 867C $ 13t $ (1) $8,80:
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December 31, 200

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Amounts in thousands)
States and political subdivisio $1169¢ $ 22: % —  $11,92:
Other securitie: 37& — — 37t
Mortgagebacked securitie 1 — — 1
Total $1207¢ $ 22t % —  $12,29¢

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of ii&esI by contractual maturity, at December 31,2Cie
shown below. Expected maturities may differ fromntcactual maturities because issuers may haveghtto call
or prepay obligations with or without call or prgpzent penalties.

States Tax
and Equivalent
Political Purchase
Held-to-Maturity Subdivisions Yield

(Dollars in thousands)
Amortized Cost Maturity

Within one yea $ 45( 7.9%
After one year through five yea 4,57( 7.85%
After five years through ten yee 3,65( 8.13%
After ten year: —
Total amortized cos $ 8,67C
Tax equivalent purchase yie 7.91%
Average contractual maturity (in yea 4.2¢4
Fair Value Maturity:
Within one yea $ 452
After one year through five yea 4,62¢
After five years through ten yee 3,721
After ten year: —
Total fair value $ 8,802

The carrying value of securities pledged to sepuitdic deposits and for other purposes requirethiwwere
$377.56 million and $426.41 million at December 2008 and 2007, respectively.

In 2008, net gains on the sale of securities wér@®million. Gross gains were $2.84 million whiless losse
were $938 thousand. In 2007, net gains on thea$aecurities were $411 thousand. Gross gains $&46
thousand while gross losses were $128 thousand.
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The following tables reflect those investmentshtetailable-for-sale and held-to-maturity, in at@omous
unrealized loss position for less than 12 montltsfan12 months or longer for the years ended Désziil, 2008
and 2007. There were no securities for either paria continuous unrealized loss position for Lhore months
for which the Company does not have the abilitihdtd until the security matures or recovers in galu

December 31, 200:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

(Amounts in thousands)
U. S. Government agency securi $ — $ — $ — 8 — 3 — $ —
States and political subdivisio 86,34+ (2,949 16,41: (1,539 102,75 (4,489
Trusl-preferred securitie — — 60,26( (82,707 60,26( (82,70))
Mortgagebacked securitie 48,44( (1,65¢) 43 (1) 48,48 (1,659
Equity securities 2,167 (1,167) 2,201 (220) 4,36¢ (1,38))
Total $136,95. $ (5,76¢) $78,91% $(84,467) $215,86¢ $(90,23%
December 31, 200
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

(Amounts in thousands)

U. S. Government agency securit $ — $ — $ 199 $ — $ 199 $ —
States and political subdivisio 40,46: (9000 12,281 (65) 52,74¢ (965)
Trust-preferred securitie 129,00¢ (12,43) 21,99 (1,675 151,000 (14,106
Mortgage-backed securitie 7,991 (108) 63,39: (1,965  71,38¢ (2,079
Equity securitie: 2,26¢ (345 1,75¢ (72) 4,02¢ (41€)
Total $179,72° $(13,78¢) $101,43. $ (3,776€ $281,15¢ $(17,560()

As of December 31, 2008, the Company recognizeshacash impairment charge of $14.47 million which
stems from a 2006 vintage collateralized mortgdggation. The Company’s analysis of the bond shdbwebable
losses of $1.69 million, or 6.76%, of the $25.00ion par value of the security. Additionally, onéthe Companys
pooled trust preferred securities showed an adw#rarge in cash flow, resulting in a pre-tax ottamn-temporary
impairment charge of $15.46 million. Total pre-tagn-cash impairment charges of $29.92 millionraftected in
non-interest income.

Included in available-for-sale securities is a fubit of trust-preferred securities with a total riat value of
approximately $66.05 million as of December 31,&00hat portfolio is comprised of single-issue séms and
pooled trust-preferred securities. The single-isma@urities are trust-preferred issuances from safritee largest
banks in the nation, composite A-rated or highed, laad a total market value of approximately $33i#lon as of
December 31, 2008, compared with their adjustettzass of approximately $55.49 million.

At December 31, 2008, the total market value ofpibeled trust-preferred securities was approxiryatel
$32.51 million, compared with an adjusted costdasiapproximately $93.27 million. The collateralderlying
these securities is comprised of 86% of bank fpusterred securities and subordinated debt issgaofoever 500
banks nationwide. The remaining collateral is friogurance companies and real estate investmens.tittse
securities carry variable rate structures that faa prescribed margin over 3-month LIBOR. Dur2@8, certain
of these experienced a credit rating downgrade fsomrating agency, and certain of these secudtie®n negativ
watch by one or more rating firms. The Companyrhageled the expected cash flows from the poolest-tru
preferred securities and, at present, does notcegpg of the remaining securities to have an atveash flow
effect under any of the scenarios modeled dueg@xiistence of other subordinate classes withipduds.
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At December 31, 2008, the combined depreciatioralne of the 310 individual securities in an unizad loss
position was approximately 17.04% of the combirgbrted value of the aggregate securities portfélio
December 31, 2007, the combined depreciation imevaf the 159 individual securities in an unrealifess positiol
was approximately 2.69% of the combined reportddevaf the aggregate securities portfolio. Managemdees nc
believe any individual unrealized loss as of Decendd, 2008, represents other-than-temporary immait. The
Company has the ability to hold these securitigs such time as the value recovers or the seesritiature.
Furthermore, the Company believes that portiorth®tthange in value are attributable to changesairket interest
rates and the current state of illiquidity withiretmarket for securitized assets.

Note 5. Loans

Loans held for investment, net of unearned incaroasist of the following at December 31.:

2008 2007

(Amounts in thousands)
Real estai-commercia $ 407,63t $ 386,11:
Real estal-constructior 130,61( 163,31(
Real estal-residential 602,57 498,34!
Commercial, financial and agricultut 85,03 96,26
Loans to individuals for household and other consuexpenditure 66,25¢ 75,44
All other loans 6,04¢ 6,027
Total loans $1,298,15' $1,225,50;

In the normal course of business, the Company’sidigyy bank has made loans to directors and execut
officers of the Company and its subsidiaries. 8nis and commitments made to such officers andtdieand to
companies in which they are officers, or have digant ownership interest, have been made on sotiesiis the
same terms, including interest rates and collgtasathose prevailing at the time for comparal@degactions with
other persons. The aggregate dollar amount of kazats was $5.98 million and $5.05 million at Decem®1, 2008
and 2007, respectively. During 2008, approxima$ay80 million in new loans and increases were nzame
repayments on such loans to officers and directdaded $3.38 million. There were no changes dughtmges in
composition of the Company’s board members andwiecofficers.

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, customer overdi@fiting $2.10 million and $3.23 million, respeety,
were reclassified as loans.

Note 6. Allowance for Loan Losses

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was atofas:

2008 2007 2006
(Amounts in thousands)
Balance at January $12,83:  $14,54¢ $14,73¢
Provision for loan losse 7,422 717 2,70¢€
Acquisition balanct 1,16¢ — —
Loans charged o (7,377 (4,295 (4,549
Recoveries credited to allowan 1,92¢ 1,862 1,65(
Net charg-offs (5,446 (2,437 (2,899
Balance at December . $15,97¢  $12,837  $14,54¢
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Management analyzes the loan portfolio regulartycfincentrations of credit risk, including concetions in
specific industries and geographic location. At &aber 31, 2008, commercial real estate loans ceeyhB1.40%
of the total loan portfolio. Commercial loans imtéuloans to small to mid-size industrial, commdraia service
companies that include but are not limited to e¢oading companies, manufacturers, automobile deaderd retail
and wholesale merchants. Commercial real estajegisaepresent several different sectors of timensercial real
estate market, including residential land develomptygngle family and apartment building operatemsnmercial
real estate lessors, and hotel/motel developerdetwriting standards require that comprehensiveerevand
independent evaluations be performed on creditsezking predefined market limits on commercial lodzdates
to these loan reviews are done periodically ormarnual basis depending on the size of the |datiaeship.

The majority of the loans in the current portfollere made and collateralized in Virginia, West Vfiig, North
Carolina, Tennessee and the surrounding regiohoAgh sections of the West Virginia and Southwestérginia
economies are closely related to natural resoutiseg,are supplemented by service industries. Tdragany’s
presence in five states, Virginia, West Virginiarth Carolina, South Carolina, and Tennessee, gesvadditional
diversification against geographic concentratiohsredit risk.

The following table presents the Company’s investhire loans considered to be impaired and related
information on those impaired loans:

2008 2007 2006
(Amounts in thousands)
Recorded investment in loans considered to be g $13,30C $4,32t $5,78¢
Loans considered to be impaired that were on accrual basi 12,76¢ 2,92 3,81z
Recorded investment in impaired loans with relatéalvance 4,79¢ 3,12¢ 4,07(
Allowance for loan losses related to loans considéo be impaire 67¢ 88C 1,531
Average recorded investment in impaired lo 14,91 4,76 6,41(
Total interest income recognized on impaired Ic 798 237 39C
Recorded investment in impaired loans with no eelatllowance 8,50¢ 1,19¢ 1,71¢€

There were no loans past due 90 days and stiluaginterest at December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

Note 7. Premises and Equipmen

Premises and equipment are comprised of the fallguas of December 31:

2008 2007
(Amounts in thousands)

Land $18,63¢ $14,84:
Bank premise 47,14° 42,60¢
Equipment 29,96¢ 28,08:
95,74¢ 85,53¢

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize 40,72¢ 37,15:
Total $55,02¢ $48,38:

Total depreciation and amortization expense fazdhrears ended December 31, 2008, was $3.88 million
$3.28 million, and $3.37 million, respectively.

The Company began construction on seven brancheedtoy last two years. The primary contractor for
construction of two of those branches is a firmakhias a preferred shareholder who is an immethiatdy
member of two directors of the Company. All braonstruction contracts involving the related pavgre let
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pursuant to a competitive bidding process. Totghpents to the related party were $606 thousands@ang
thousand for 2008 and 2007, respectively. Therewerpayments to the related party in 2006.

The Company also enters into land and buildingdedsr the operation of banking and loan productiffites,
operations centers and for the operation of autedniiler machines. All such leases qualify as afjrey leases.
Following is a schedule by year of future minimwrade payments required under operating leaselsahatnitial
or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in exdesseoyear as of December 31, 2008:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in

thousands)

2009 $ 762
2010 59¢
2011 432
2012 34¢€
2013 28C
Later year: 183
Total $ 2,59¢

Total lease expense for the three years ended Dxeredit, 2008, was $1.01 million, $981 thousand, and
$1.02 million, respectively. Certain portions oéthbove listed leases have been sublet to thitéepdor properties
not currently being used by the Company. The impéthe future lease payments to be received amdoh-
cancelable subleases are as follows:

Year Ended December 31

(Amounts in
thousands)
2009 $ 17z
2010 157
2011 12¢
2012 54
2013 50
Later year: 274
Total $ 83C
Note 8. Deposits
The following is a summary of interest-bearing dgfsoby type as of December 31:
2008 2007
(Amounts in thousands)
Interes-bearing demand depos $ 185,117 $ 153,57(
Money market accoun 144,01 167,29¢
Savings deposil 165,56( 160,39!
Certificates of depos 708,95: 608,47(
Individual Retirement Accoun: 100,39¢ 79,62¢
Total $1,304,041  $1,169,35!
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At December 31, 2008, the scheduled maturitieedfficates of deposit are as follows:

(Amounts in

thousands)
2009 $ 515,74
2010 101,63:
2011 63,82:
2012 24,39¢
2013 and thereaftt 103,76:

Time deposits of $100 thousand or more were $28®illibn and $246.63 million at December 31, 2008 a
2007, respectively.

At December 31, 2008, the scheduled maturitieedfficates of deposit of $100 thousand or moreaare

follows:
(Amounts in
thousands)
Three months or les $ 56,64«
Over three to six montt 49,237
Over six to twelve month 98,56
Over twelve month 82,29
Total $ 286,74

Included in total deposits are deposits by relgi@dies in the total amount of $25.48 million arBDF0 million
at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Note 9. Borrowings

The following table details borrowings as of Decem®1.:

2008 2007

(Amounts in thousands)

Federal funds purchas $ — $ 18,50(
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 165,91« 207,42
FHLB borrowings 200,00t 275,88t
Subordinated det 15,46¢ 15,46¢
Other deb 418 564
Total $381,79: $517,84:

Securities sold under agreements to repurchaseded@115.91 million and $157.43 million of retailesnight
and term repurchase agreements and $50.00 milliatnolesale repurchase agreements at DecembefG8,ahd
2007, respectively.

The Bank is a member of the FHLB which providedlitrimm the form of short-term and long-term advace
collateralized by various mortgage assets. At Déeer31, 2008, credit availability with the FHLB ated
approximately $106.28 million. Advances from thellBHare secured by stock in the FHLB of Atlanta, lfyeng
loans of $301.98 million, mortgadecked securities, and certain investment secsidfié42.58 million. The FHLI
advances are subject to restrictions or penahidisa event of prepayment.

68




Table of Contents

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS — (Continued)

FHLB borrowings include $200.00 million and $275r@0lion in convertible and callable advances at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Theltalledvances may be called, or redeemed at quairiéztvals
after various lockout periods. These call optiorss/reubstantially shorten the lives of these insamits. If these
advances are called, the debt may be paid indoflyerted to another FHLB credit product, or coteeto an
adjustable rate advance. At December 31, 2007C tinepany also held non-callable term advances o8 $88
thousand. The weighted-average contractual ratieedFHLB advances was 3.70% at December 31, 2008.

At December 31, 2008, the FHLB advances have appaig contractual final maturities between nine and
thirteen years. The scheduled maturities of theaades are as follows:

(Amounts in
thousands)
2009 $ =
2010 —
2011 —
2012 —
2013 —
2014 and thereaftt 200,00(
$ 200,00(

In January 2006, the Company entered into a dérevatvap instrument where it receives LIBOR-based
variable interest payments and pays fixed intggagiments. The notional amount of the derivativepsisa
$50.00 million and effectively fixes a portion diet FHLB borrowings at approximately 4.34%. Aftensiolering
the effect of the interest rate swap, the effectiegghted average interest rate of the FHLB borngsiwas 3.70%
and 4.30% at December 31, 2008 and 2007, resphctive

Also included in borrowings is $15.46 million ofijior subordinated debentures (the “Debenturestledsy
the Company in October 2003 to an unconsolidatest subsidiary, FCBI Capital Trust (the “Trust”)ithvan
interest rate of three-month LIBOR plus 2.95%. Thest was able to purchase the Debentures thrdwglssuance
of trust preferred securities which had substdgtidentical terms as the Debentures. The Debestor@ure on
October 8, 2033, and are currently callable. Thepneceeds from the offering were contributed gstahto the
Company’s subsidiary bank to support further growth

The Company has committed to irrevocably and unitiomelly guarantee the following payments or
distributions with respect to the trust preferredwities to the holders thereof to the extent thafTrust has not
made such payments or distributions: (i) accruatiuapaid distributions, (ii) the redemption priaed (iii)) upon a
dissolution or termination of the Trust, the lesskthe liquidation amount and all accrued and ishgéstributions
and the amount of assets of the Trust remainingadole for distribution, in each case to the extiwet Trust has
funds available.
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Note 10. Income Taxes, Continuing Operations
The components of income tax benefit and expemse &ontinuing operations consist of the following:

Years Ended December 31
2008 2007 2006
(Amounts in thousands)

Current tax expens
Federa $ 8,577 $10,777 $ 9,88¢
State 1,26( 1,341 1,12¢
9,837 12,11¢ 11,01:

Deferred tax (benefit) expen

Federa (11,350 194 41¢€
State (1,299 22 47
(12,647 21€ 465

Total income tax (benefit) expen $ (2,810 $12,33: $11,47:

Deferred income taxes related to continuing openatreflect the net effects of temporary differenbetween
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitiesfiftancial reporting versus tax purposes. The téxces of significan
items comprising the Company’s net deferred tartasas of December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows

2008 2007
(Amounts in
thousands)
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losse $ 6,29¢ $ 5,311
Unrealized losses on AFS securit 33,20¢ 4,327
Unrealized loss on derivative secul 1,29¢ 52¢
Securities impairment 11,67( —
Deferred compensatic 4,12( 2,741
Other 1,92( 1,18¢
Total deferred tax asse $58,51F $14,09¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible asset $ 6,20¢ $ 3,26:
Odd days interest defert 1,71C 2,02:
Fixed asset 1,67¢ 1,19¢
Other 1,35¢ 1,75¢
Total deferred tax liabilitie 10,95: 8,24(
Net deferred tax asse $47,56: $ 5,85¢

Income taxes as a percentage of pre-tax incomevargysignificantly from statutory rates due to iteof
income and expense which are excluded, by law, frercalculation of taxable income, as well asttiezation of
available tax credits. State and municipal bondime represent the most significant permanent téerdnce.
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The reconciliation of the statutory federal taverahd the effective tax rates from continuing opena for the
three years ended December 31, 2008, is as follows:

For Years Ended

2008 2007 2006
Tax at statutory rat 35.0% 35.0(% 35.00%
(Reduction) increase resulting fro
Tax-exempt interest, net of nondeductible expe 87199 (5.95 (5.79
State income taxes, net of federal ber 2.3¢ 2.12 1.8¢
Other, ne (202.29 (1.7 (2.7
Effective tax rate (1036.90% 29.3% 28.3%

Note 11. Employee Benefits
Employee Stock Ownership and Savings Plan

The Company maintains an Employee Stock Ownerstdgsavings Plan (‘KSOP”Coverage under the plar
provided to all employees meeting minimum eligtiiliequirements.

Employer Stock Fund:Annual contributions to the stock portion of fhlan were made through 2006 at the
discretion of the Board of Directors, and allocatiglan participants on the basis of relative cengation. The pl:
was frozen to future contributions for periods aff806. Substantially all plan assets are invest@dmmon stock
of the Company. The Company reports the contrilbstio the plan as a component of salaries and ib&n&i
contributions made after 2006 have been made tdogwesp savings feature of the plan. Accordinglyréheere no
contributions to the Employer Stock Fund in 2000@07. Total expense recognized by the Companieckta the
Employer Stock Fund within the KSOP was $254 thadsa 2006. The Employer Stock Fund held 418,322 an
423,941 shares of the Company’s common stock a¢mber 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Employee Savings PlanThe Company provides a 401(k) savings featurhimwithe KSOP that is available to
substantially all employees meeting minimum eligf{prequirements. Under the 401(k) feature, thenpany
makes matching contributions to employee defeatilsvels determined by the board on an annuasbake cost
of Company’s 100% matching contributions to quatifideferrals under the 401(k) savings componetiteoKSOP
was $1.23 million, $942 thousand, and $902 thou#a2608, 2007 and 2006, respectively. In 2008 Ghepany
made its matching contribution in Company commalstwhile the 2007 and 2006 contributions were enad
cash.

Employee Welfare Plan

The Company provides various medical, dental, wislife, accidental death and dismemberment ang-term
disability insurance benefits to all full-time erapkes who elect coverage under this program. Thkhhglan is
managed by a third party administrator. Monthly &yer and employee contributions are made to aetempt
employer benefits trust against which the thirdypadministrator processes and pays claims. Stepittsurance
coverage limits the Company’s risk of loss to #8&usand and $4.30 million for individual and aggtegclaims,
respectively. Total Company expenses under theyapdar $2.32 million, $1.66 million, and $1.62 muoli in 2008,
2007 and 2006, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has deferred compensation agreemethtsaeviain current and former officers providing fo
benefit payments over various periods commencingtaement or death. The liability at December 3108 and
2007, was approximately $484 thousand and $494stmal) respectively. The annual expenses assoeiited
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these agreements were $60 thousand, $60 thousdr&bdrthousand for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respeytivéle
obligation is based upon the present value of tipeeted payments and estimated life expectanciteof
individuals.

The Company maintains a life insurance contradheriife of one of the participants covered undiese
agreements. Proceeds derived from death benddiist@nded to provide reimbursement of plan bemetid over
the post employment lives of the participants. Ruems on the insurance contract are currently gaiough policy
dividends on the cash surrender values of $1.1omind $1.03 million at December 31, 2008 and7200
respectively.

Executive Retention Plan

The Company maintains an Executive Retention Rlakdy members of senior management. The Executive
Retention Plan provides for a defined benefit atrrad retirement targeted at 35% of projected flrede salary.
Benefits under the Executive Retention Plan becpayable at age 62. The associated benefit accrietly@arenc
2008 and 2007 was $2.95 million and $1.58 milli@spectively, while the associated expense incumred
connection with the Executive Retention Plan we@Afhousand, $110 thousand, and $131 thousand®@&, 2007
and 2006, respectively. During 2008, the Compangratad the plan to convert from an index benefiedam
performance of related life insurance policies tefined benefit based on years of service. Thendment allowed
for consideration of prior service. In connectioithithe amendment, the Company changed its method o
accounting to defined benefit accounting and rezeghan additional gross liability of $1.16 millioelated to prior
service cost that was recognized through other cengmsive income, and will amortized over approxatyaelever
years.

As the change in the plan was effective at year-thede are no components of periodic pensionfooshe
year ended 2008. The discount rate and rate of ensgtion increases assumed as of December 31,200
6.50% and 3.00%, respectively. The Executive REterRlan is an unfunded plan, and as such thereapdan
assets. At December 31, 2008, the actuarial beplefitobligation was $2.95 million.

Projected benefits payments are expected to beasdiollows:

(Amounts in
thousands)
2009 $ 59
2010 59
2011 59
2012 17¢
2013 23€
2014 through 201 1,31:
$ 1,901

Directors Supplemental Retirement Plan

The Company maintains a Directors Supplementak&atnt Plan (the “Directors Plan”) for its non-eoyde
directors. The Directors Plan provides for a beénegfon retirement from service on the Board at Sigelcages
depending upon length of service or death. Benefiter the Directors Plan become payable at agé5/@&nd 78
depending upon the individual director’'s age aridioal date of election to the Board. The assodis@ienefit
accrued as of year-end 2008 and 2007 was $1.4®mdhd $1.41 million, respectively, while the asated
expense incurred in connection with the DirectdemRvas $161 thousand, $195 thousand and $366ahdder
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Note 12. Equity-Based Compensatior
Stock Options

The Company maintains share-based compensatioa f@gmmomote the long-term success of the Compgny b
encouraging officers, employees, directors andviddals performing services for the Company to ®ou critical
long-range objectives.

At the 2004 Annual Meeting, the Company’s sharetdaldatified approval of the 2004 Omnibus Stocki@pt
Plan (“2004 Plan”) which made available up to 200,8hares for potential grants of incentive staatioms, non-
qualified stock options, restricted stock awardpenformance awards. Non-qualified and incentieelsoptions, as
well as restricted and unrestricted stock may owetito be awarded under the 2004 Plan. Vestingruhde2004
Plan is generally over a three-year period.

In 2001, the Company also instituted a plan to gséotk options to non-employee directors (the &biors
Option Plan”).The options granted pursuant to the Plan expitieeatarlier of ten years from the date of grartiva
years after the optionee ceases to serve as aatticédthe Company. Options not exercised withia dippropriat:
time shall expire and be deemed cancelled. Optiodgr the Directors Option Plan were granted irfohe of non-
statutory stock options with the aggregate numbehares of common stock available for grant uitideDirectors
Option Plan set at 108,900 shares (adjusted fot@Be stock dividends paid in 2002 and 2003). Then@any
granted 6,050 options under this plan during 2008.

In 1999, the Company instituted the 1999 Stock @pRlan (the “1999 Plan”). Options under the 1985 P
were granted in the form of non-statutory stockays with the aggregate number of shares of comshmrk
available for grant under the Plan set at 332, a8uéted for 10% stock dividends paid in 2002 ab@3}. The
options granted under the 1999 Plan representghtsito acquire the option shares with deemedtgrates of
January 1st for each year beginning with the injtgar granted and the following four anniversarids stock
options granted pursuant to the 1999 Plan vesblsatan the first through the seventh anniversatgsiaf the
deemed grant date. The option price of each stptikrois equal to the fair market value (as defibgdhe 1999
Plan) of the Company’s common stock on the datach deemed grant during the five-year grant pe¥edted
stock options granted pursuant to the 1999 Plamxecisable during employment and for a periofivef years
after the date of the grantee’s retirement, praviggirement occurs at or after age 62. If emplayhieterminated
other than by early retirement, disability, or deatested options must be exercised within 90 détgs the effectiv:
date of termination. Any option not exercised witBuch period will be deemed cancelled.

The Company also has options from various optiangbther than described above (the Prior Plangjeter,
no common shares of the Company are availablerfottg under the Prior Plans. Awards outstandingutite Prio
Plans will remain in effect in accordance with theispective terms.

SFAS 123R requires the cash flows from the tax fisnesulting from tax deductions in excess of the
compensation expense recognized for those optinthsesstricted stock (“excess tax benefits”) to lssified as
financing cash flows. Excess tax benefits tota8§ thousand, $327 thousand, and $201 thousardessified as
financing cash inflows for 2008, 2007, and 2006peztively.

During the three years ended December 31, 200&; dngpany recognized pre-tax compensation expense
related to total equity-based compensation of apprately $260 thousand, $271 thousand, and $42¥stmal,
respectively. The Company recognizes equity-basatpensation on a straight-line pro-rata basishabthe
percentage of the total expense recognized fomancais never less than the percentage of the athatchas
vested.

As of December 31, 2008, there was approximatefi3$thousand in unrecognized compensation coserkta
unvested stock options. That cost is expected tetegnized over a weighted average period of 8arsy The
actual compensation cost recognized will diffenfrthis estimate due to a number of items, includiegy awards
granted and changes in estimated forfeitures.
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A summary of the Company’s stock option activitgydaelated information for the year ended Decer3ier

2008, is as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Option Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term (Years) Value
(In thousands'
Outstanding at January 1, 20 272,11 $ 23.81]
Granted 6,05( 29.1C
Exercisec 23,32¢ 20.0¢
Forfeited 2,75( 26.54
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 252,090 $ 24.2¢ 104 $ 2,67¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 233,62! $ 23.67 104 $ 2,61¢

The fair value of options was estimated at the dagrant using the Black-Scholes-Merton optiorciig
model and certain assumptions. Expected volatsityased on the weekly historical volatility of aiock price ove
the expected term of the option. Expected dividgettl is based on the ratio of the most recentddind rate paid
per share of the Company’s common stock to recadirtg price of the Company’s common stock. Thecetgd
term is generally calculated using the “shortcuthrod.”. The risk-free interest rate is based onUt. Treasury
yield curve at the time of grant for the period &l the expected term of the optis

The fair values of grants made during the threesyeaded December 31, 2008, were estimated using th
following weighted-average assumptions:

2008 2007 2006

Volatility 29.11% 28.3%% 28.9%%
Expected dividend yiel 3.64% 3.28% 3.0(%
Expected term (in year 10.0C 6.0C 6.23

Risk-free rate 29¢% 4.74% 4.8(%

The weighted average grant-date fair value of aygtigranted during the three years ended Decemb@088,
was $7.74, $8.14, and $9.16, respectively. Theegge intrinsic value of options exercised durlmgthree years
ended December 31, 2008, was approximately $31s#ml, $913 thousand, and $830 thousand, resggctive

Stock Awards

The 2004 Plan permits the granting of restricted @mrestricted stock grants either alone, in agiditd, or in
tandem with other awards made by the Company. Sjoankts are generally measured at fair value onléte of
grant based on the number of shares granted amglitied price of the Company’s stock. Such valuedsgnized
as expense over the corresponding service permupEnsation costs related to these types of aveaeds
consistently reported for all periods presented.
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The following table summarizes the changes in tam@any’s nonvested shares for the year ended
December 31, 2008.

Weighted

Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value

Nonvested at January 1, 2C 1,70 $ 36.2
Granted 90C 36.4:
Vested 50C 35.0(
Forfeited — —
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 2,10( 36.5¢

As of December 31, 2008, there was approximatefytfi8usand in unrecognized compensation cost tetate
unvested stock awards. That cost is expected tedmgnized over a weighted average period of Cassyd he
actual compensation cost recognized will diffenfrthis estimate due to a number of items, includiegy awards
granted and changes in estimated forfeitures.

Note 13. Litigation, Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Companydef@endant in various legal actions and assertéohg)anost
of which involve lending, collection and employmaematters. While the Company and legal counsel aable to
assess the ultimate outcome of each of these matttr certainty, they are of the belief that teealution of these
actions, singly or in the aggregate, should noelawmaterial adverse affect on the financial camditresults of
operations or cash flows of the Company.

The Bank is a party to financial instruments withlmlance sheet risk in the normal course of besérto meet
the financing needs of its customers. These firdmustruments include commitments to extend cratéindby
letters of credit and financial guarantees. Thasguments involve, to varying degrees, elementsedit and
interest rate risk beyond the amounts recognizeiti®@alance sheet. The contractual amounts oé timssruments
reflect the extent of involvement the Company magarticular classes of financial instruments. Toenpany’s
exposure to credit loss in the event of non-pertoroe by the other party to the financial instrunfent
commitments to extend credit and standby letteg@dit and financial guarantees written is repneeg by the
contractual amount of those instruments. The Compars the same credit policies in making commitsand
conditional obligations as it does for on-balanveet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements toteadcustomer as long as there is not a violaifany
condition established in the contract. Commitmeetserally have fixed expiration dates or other teation clause
and may require payment of a fee. Since many ofdinemitments are expected to expire without beiragvd upon
the total commitment amounts do not necessarilyesgmt future cash requirements. The Company eesleach
customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case.bHstsamount of collateral obtained, if deemed ssagy by the
Company, upon extension of credit is based on n&magt’s credit evaluation of the counterpartiedlaferal held
varies but may include accounts receivable, inwgnfaroperty, plant and equipment, and income-pcoty
commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit and written financial grdees are conditional commitments issued by tiragany t
guarantee the performance of a customer to aplairty. The credit risk involved in issuing lettexfscredit is
essentially the same as that involved in extenttiag facilities to customers. To the extent deemsckssary,
collateral of varying types and amounts is heldgoure customer performance under certain of tiettees of credi
outstanding.
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Financial instruments whose contract amounts reptesedit risk at December 31, 2008 and 2007, are
commitments to extend credit (including availalilif lines of credit) of $199.29 million and $225.#illion,
respectively, and standby letters of credit andrfiial guarantees of $2.84 million and $3.60 millicespectively.

The Company has issued, through FCBI Capital Tthst“Trust”), $15.00 million of trust preferredcagities
in a private placement. In connection with the égte of the trust preferred securities, the Compasycommitted
to irrevocably and unconditionally guarantee théofeing payments or distributions with respecthe trust
preferred securities to the holders thereof taetktent that the Trust has not made such paymentistoibutions an
has the funds therefor: (i) accrued and unpaididigtons, (ii) the redemption price, and (iii) upa dissolution or
termination of the Trust, the lesser of the liqtiola amount and all accrued and unpaid distribgtiand the amount
of assets of the Trust remaining available forriftigtion.

Note 14. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company uses derivative instruments primaoilgrotect against the risk of adverse price oré@gerate
movements on the value of certain assets anditiabiknd on future cash flows. These derivativay eonsist of
interest rate swaps, floors, caps, collars, futuimesvard contracts, and written and purchasedagtiDerivative
instruments represent contracts between partiésithially require little or no initial net investmiteand result in on
party delivering cash or another type of asseti¢oather party based on a notional amount and derlying as
specified in the contract.

The Company entered into an interest rate swapatent accounted for as a cash flow hedge in Jg2@06.
The $50.00 million notional amount pay fixed, reeevariable interest rate swap was a liability vathestimated
fair value of $3.40 million and $1.32 million at 8@mber 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The Compayy a
fixed rate of 4.34% and receives a LIBOR-basedifigarate from the counterparty. The cash flow ety
accounted for under the shortcut method provideihf® FAS 133. Under the shortcut method, the gaintslosses
associated with the market value fluctuations efitiierest rate swap are included in other comprgtie income.

Note 15. Regulatory Capital Requirements and Restrictions

The primary source of funds for dividends paid lhy €Company is dividends received from its subsydimnk.
Dividends paid by the Bank are subject to restrietsiby banking regulations. The most restrictivav/jzion of the
regulations requires approval by the Office of @mmptroller of the Currency if dividends declaradany year
would exceed the year's net income, as defined, i@tained net profit of the two preceding yeaisid@nds from
the Company'’s banking subsidiary are restrictedsaruject to prior approval of the Comptroller of tBurrency.

The Company and the Bank are subject to variouslatgyy capital requirements administered by tluefal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capé&lirements can initiate certain mandatory andiplyss
additional discretionary actions by regulators tifaindertaken, could have a direct material gftecthe
Company’s financial statements. Under the capdabaacy guidelines and the regulatory frameworlpfompt
corrective action, which applies only to the Batfie Bank must meet specific capital guidelines itmablve
guantitative measures of the entity’s assets, liiegs, and certain off-balance sheet items asutaled under
regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capitabunts and classifications are also subject &itqtive
judgments by the regulators about componentswesghtings, and other factors. Quantitative measagstablishe
by regulation to ensure capital adequacy requeedmpany and the Bank to maintain minimum amoantsratio
for total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in theulagjons) to riskweighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 cafat
defined) to average assets (as defined). As of Mbee 31, 2008, the Company and the Bank met aitatap
adequacy requirements to which they are subjecaf A&2=cember 31, 2008 and 2007, the most receificadions
from regulators categorized the Bank as well ctipéd under the regulatory framework for promptrective
action. To be categorized as well capitalized Bhak must maintain minimum Total risk-based, Tieisk-based,
and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in theet@lelow. There are no conditions or events singcsetmotifications
that management believes have changed the ingtitsittategory.
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The Company’s and the Bank’s capital ratios aseddnber 31, 2008 and 2007, are presented in tloavfog

table.

Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets

First Community Bancshares, In

First Community Bank, N. A

Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets

First Community Bancshares, In

First Community Bank, N. A

Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets (Leverage)
First Community Bancshares, In

First Community Bank, N. A

Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets

First Community Bancshares, In

First Community Bank, N. A

Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets

First Community Bancshares, In

First Community Bank, N. A

Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets (Leverage)
First Community Bancshares, In

First Community Bank, N. A

December 31, 200:

To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands)
$213,94¢ 12.91% $132,59: 8.0(% N/A N/A
191,10 11.6% 130,76: 8.0(% $163,45: 10.0(%
197,60( 11.9%  66,29¢ 4.0(% N/A N/A
174,75¢ 10.69%  65,38. 4.0(% 98,07 6.0(%
197,60 9.75%%  84,62¢ 4.0(% N/A N/A
174,758 8.71%  80,23: 4.0(% 100,29( 5.0(%
December 31, 200
To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands)
$182,47¢ 12.3%% $118,27¢ 8.0(% N/A N/A
167,86! 11.44% 117,39¢ 8.0(% $146,74¢ 10.0(%
169,25¢ 11.4%%  59,13¢ 4.0(% N/A N/A
154,82¢ 10.5% 58,69¢ 4.0(% 88,04¢ 6.0(%
169,25¢ 8.0¢%  83,63¢ 4.0(% N/A N/A
154,82¢ 7.42%  83,23: 4.0(% 104,04. 5.0(%

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, $15.46 million ibcsdinated debt is treated as Tier 1 capital fakba

regulatory purposes for the Company.

Note 16. Other Operating Expenses

Included in other operating expenses are certatscthe total of which exceeds one percent of doath
interest income and noninterest income. Followirggsaich costs for the years indicated:

Advertising and public relatior
Service fee:
Telephone and data communicatis

77

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
(Amounts in thousands)
$2,16€ $1,61€ $1,26¢
3,551 3,031 1,682
1,50¢ 1,372 1,40
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Note 17. Fair Value
Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adoptegtbeisions of SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements,” (“SFAS 157") for financial assetd &inancial liabilities. In accordance with FASBa§tPosition
No. 15%-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157,” thempany will delay application of SFAS 157 for ron
financial assets and non-financial liabilities ud&inuary 1, 2009. In October 2008, the FASB issttadf Position
No. 15%-3 (“FSP 157-3") to clarify the application of SFAS7 in a market that is not active and to prokeg
considerations in determining the fair value oinafcial asset when the market for that financsakais not active.
FSP 157-3 was effective upon issuance, includingy periods for which financial statements were isstied.

SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framky@rmeasuring fair value in generally acceptecbanting
principles and expands disclosures about fair valaasurements.

SFAS 157 defines fair value as the price that winaéldeceived to sell an asset or paid to transhiebdity in an
orderly transaction between market participant&iAvalue measurement assumes that the transaotizll the
asset or transfer the liability occurs in the pipat market for the asset or liability or, in thesance of a principal
market, the most advantageous market for the assiability. The price in the principal, or mosi\eantageous,
market used to measure the fair value of the asdithility shall not be adjusted for transactimwsts. An orderly
transaction is a transaction that assumes exptstine market for a period prior to the measurendaté to allow
for marketing activities that are usual and custgniiar transactions involving such assets and lii@s; it is not a
forced transaction. Market participants are bugeid sellers in the principal market that are (@ependent,

(i) knowledgeable, (iii) able to transact, and) (villing to transact.

SFAS 157 requires the use of valuation technigasare consistent with the market approach, tbenire
approach and/or the cost approach. The market apiprases prices and other relevant information rgéee by
market transactions involving identical or compéeatssets and liabilities. The income approach valkestion
techniques to convert future amounts, such asft@sh or earnings, to a single present value amourd
discounted basis. The cost approach is based amnibant that currently would be required to repldeeservice
capacity of an asset, or the replacement cost.a#falutechniques should be consistently appligouts to valuatiol
techniques refer to the assumptions that markéicgmnts would use in pricing the asset or liapilinputs may be
observable, meaning those that reflect the assangptharket participants would use in pricing theeasr liability
developed based on market data obtained from imalge sources, or unobservable, meaning thosedfiett the
reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assiom market participants would use in pricing ésset or
liability developed based on the best informatigailable in those circumstances. In that regardASES7
establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuatigouits that gives the highest priority to quoted @sim active marke
for identical assets or liabilities and the lowgsbrity to unobservable inputs. The fair valuerhrehy is as follows:

Level 1 Inputs —  Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets fortidahassets or liabilities that the reporting
entity has the ability to access at the measurenteget
Level 2 Inputs —  Inputs other than quoted prices included in Leviilat are observable for the asset or liabi

either directly or indirectly. These might inclugeoted prices for similar assets or liabilitie
active markets, quoted prices for identical or Emassets or liabilities in markets that are not
active, inputs other than quoted prices that aseofable for the asset or liability, such as
interest rates, volatilities, prepayment speedd,caadit risks, or inputs that are derived
principally from or corroborated by market datadayrelation or other mean

Level 3 Inputs —  Unobservable inputs for determining the fair valokassets or liabilities that reflect an
entity’s own assumptions about the assumptionsniaaket participants would use in pricing
the assets or liabilitie:
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A description of the valuation methodologies usmdristruments measured at fair value, as welhageneral
classification of such instruments pursuant tovifleation hierarchy, is set forth below. These atibn
methodologies were applied to all of the Compafigigncial assets and financial liabilities carradair value
effective January 1, 2008.

In general, fair value is based upon quoted markiees, where available. If such quoted marketgsrire not
available, fair value is based upon third party eiedhat primarily use, as inputs, observable ntavkeed
parameters. Valuation adjustments may be madestarethat financial instruments are recorded atvue. Thes
adjustments may include amounts to reflect countéyredit quality, the Company’s creditworthinegsiong
other things, as well as unobservable parameterg séch valuation adjustments are applied conglgtewer time.
The Company’s valuation methodologies may produfegraalue calculation that may not be indicatofenet
realizable value or reflective of future fair vatu&Vhile management believes the Company’s valuatio
methodologies are appropriate and consistent vifteranarket participants, the use of different radtilogies or
assumptions to determine the fair value of ceffiaancial instruments could result in a differestimate of fair
value at the reporting date.

Securities Available-for-Sale:Securities classified as available-for-sale aported at fair value utilizing
Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3 inputs. Securities dassified as Level 1 within the valuation hietgrwhen quoted
prices are available in an active market. Thisudek securities, such as U.S. Treasuries, whose ismbased on
guoted market prices in active markets for idehtssets.

Securities are classified as Level 2 within theugtibn hierarchy when the Company obtains fair@alu
measurements from an independent pricing service fair value measurements consider observabletliztanay
include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash fiitved).S. Treasury yield curve, live trading levétade execution
data, market consensus prepayment speeds, credination, and the bond'’s terms and conditions, rgnather
things.

Securities are classified as Level 3 within theuatibn hierarchy in certain cases when there igduinactivity
or less transparency to the valuation inputs. Tlkeserities include certain pooled trust prefesecurities. In the
absence of observable or corroborated market déanally developed estimates that incorporateketapased
assumptions are used when such information isablail

Fair value models may be required when tradingitigthas declined significantly or does not exjsices are
not current or pricing variations are significahte Company’s fair value from third party modeldize¢ modeling
software that uses market participant data and lednye of the structures of each individual secuatgevelop cas
flows specific to each security. The fair valuesha securities are determined by using the castsfteveloped by
the fair value model and applying appropriate miagkservable discount rates. The discount ratedeareloped by
determining credit spreads above a benchmarksatd, as LIBOR, and adding premiums for illiquidityveloped
based on a comparison of initial issuance spreatBOR versus a financial sector curve for recegued debt to
LIBOR. Specific securities that have increased uaday regarding the receipt of cash flows aredismted at
higher rates due to the addition of a deal specifclit premium. Finally, internal fair value mogbeicing and
external pricing observations are combined by agsigweights to each pricing observation. Pricingaviewed for
reasonableness based on the direction of the g&pawfkets and the general economic indicators.

Other Assets and Associated LiabilitieSecurities held for trading purposes are recoedddir value and
included in “other assets” on the consolidated hadasheets. Securities held for trading purpos#ade assets
related to employee deferred compensation plars.afhets associated with these plans are genieradisted in
equities and classified as Level 1. Deferred coraagon liabilities, also classified as Level 1, eagried at the fair
value of the obligation to the employee, which esponds to the fair value of the invested assets.

Derivatives: Derivatives are reported at fair value utilizingvel 2 inputs. The Company obtains dealer
guotations based on observable data to value liigadiges.
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Impaired Loans: Certain impaired loans are reported at the falue of the underlying collateral if repayment
is expected solely from the collateral. Collatetalues are estimated using Level 3 inputs basemistomized
discounting criteria.

The following table summarizes financial assetsfamghcial liabilities measured at fair value oreaurring
basis as of December 31, 2008, segregated bywbkedéthe valuation inputs within the fair valuetarchy utilized
to measure fair value:

Fair Value Measurements Usinc Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
(In thousands)
Available-for-sale securitie $6,811 $485,84! $28,067 $520,72:
Deferred compensation ass 2,637 — — 2,637
Derivative asset — 192 — 192
Deferred compensation liabilitie 2,637 — — 2,637
Derivative liabilities — 3,562: — 3,62:

The following table presents additional informataisout financial assets and liabilities measurddiavalue a
December 31, 2008, on a recurring basis and foclwhével 3 inputs are utilized to determine failuea

Available-for-Sale

Securities
(In thousands)

Balance, January 1, 20! $ —
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealiz

Included in earnings (or changes in net as: —

Included in other comprehensive inco —

Purchases, issuances, and settlerr —

Transfers in and/or out of Level 28,06

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 28,06

At December 31, 2008, the Company changed its tiatugechnique for certain pooled trust preferred
securities. Previously, the Company relied on grimempiled by third party vendors using observatideket data,
or Level 2, to determine the values of these seeariSFAS 157 assumes that fair values of findiasisets are
determined in an orderly transaction and not aefdi@uidation or distressed sale at the measuredsta. Based ¢
financial market conditions, the Company felt ttiegt fair values obtained from third party vendafected forced
liquidation or distressed sales for these trusfiepred securities. Therefore, the Company estimiiedalue based
on a discounted cash flow methodology using apjmigly adjusted discount rates reflecting nonpentmce and
liquidity risks. The change in the valuation teafue for these trust preferred securities resulieahiinitial transfer
of $28.07 million into Level 3 financial assets.efl were no gains or losses for the year includezhinings
attributable to the change in unrealized gain®ssés relating to assets and liabilities using L&wtill held at
December 31, 2008.

Certain financial assets and financial liabiliteee measured at fair value on a nonrecurring bmsjs, the
instruments are not measured at fair value on goiog basis but are subject to fair value adjustsancertain
circumstances, for example, when there is evidefigapairment. The fair value of loans considenmagpaired and
collateral dependent was $5.98 million at Decenigr2008.

Certain non-financial assets and non-financialiliiids measured at fair value on a recurring basitude
reporting units measured at fair value in the Sitep of a goodwill impairment test. Certain namaficial assets
measured at fair value on a non-recurring basisdecnon-financial assets and non-financial lisilei measured at
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fair value in the second step of a goodwill impanttest, as well as intangible assets and othefinancial long-
lived assets measured at fair value for impairnassessment. As stated above, SFAS 157 will becaiyidi to these
fair value measurements beginning January 1, 2009.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value information about financial instrumentsether or not recognized in the balance sheetyffiich it
is practical to estimate the value is based uperckiaracteristics of the instruments and relevakat information
Financial instruments include cash, evidence ofexgnip in an entity, or contracts that convey goase on an
entity that contractual right or obligation to ethreceive or deliver cash for another financiatimment. Fair value
is the amount at which a financial instrument ccagdexchanged in a current transaction betweemgitlarties,
other than in a forced sale or liquidation, antdst evidenced by a quoted market price if onggxis

The following summary presents the methodologiesaasumptions used to estimate the fair valueeof th
Company’s financial instruments presented belove ififiormation used to determine fair value is hygduibjective
and judgmental in nature and, therefore, the reso#ty not be precise. Subjective factors includeray other
things, estimates of cash flows, risk charactesstredit quality, and interest rates, all of vahéce subject to
change. Since the fair value is estimated as op#fence sheet date, the amounts that will acthellyealized or
paid upon settlement or maturity on these variogriments could be significantly different.

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(Amounts in thousands)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalel $ 46,43¢ $ 46,43¢ $ 52,74¢ $ 52,74¢
Investment Securitie 529,39: 529,52! 676,19! 676,41¢
Loans held for sal 1,024 1,02¢ 811 813
Loans held for investme 1,282,18: 1,276,47 1,212,66! 1,202,39I
Derivative financial asse 192 192 — —
Deferred compensation ass 2,631 2,63 3,41¢ 3,41¢
Liabilities

Demand deposil 199,71. 199,71. 224,08 224,08
Interes-bearing demand depos 185,11 185,11 153,57( 153,57(
Savings deposil 309,57 309,57 327,69: 327,69
Time deposit: 809,35: 824,06¢ 688,09! 688,50:
Federal funds purchas — — 18,50( 18,50(
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 165,91« 177,45 207,42 207,42°
FHLB and other indebtedne 215,87 242,22: 291,91¢ 286,08°
Derivative financial liabilities 3,52: 3,52 1,32( 1,32(
Deferred compensation liabilitie 2,631 2,63 3,41¢ 3,41¢

Financial Instruments with Book Value Equal to FaiWalue:

The book values of cash and due from banks anddkfimds sold and purchased are considered tojie &0
fair value as a result of the short-term naturthee items.

Investment Securities and Deferred Compensation&ssand Liabilities:

Fair values are determined in the same mannersasided above.
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Loans:

The estimated fair value of loans held for invesitrie measured based upon discounted future casis fising
current rates for similar loans applying a discdanilliquidity. Loans held for sale are recordadower of cost or
estimated fair value. The fair value of loans Heldsale is determined based upon the market pailes of similar
loans.

Derivative Financial Instruments:

The estimated fair value of derivative financiadtinments is based upon the current market pricsifiailar
instruments.

Deposits and Securities Sold Under Agreements tpuiRehase:

Deposits without a stated maturity, including dethanterest-bearing demand, and savings accoumts, a
reported at their carrying value in accordance BiEAS 107. No value has been assigned to the fismghlue of
these deposits. For other types of deposits andekpse agreements with fixed maturities and ré@syalue has
been estimated by discounting future cash flowsdas interest rates currently being offered otrimsents with
similar characteristics and maturities.

Other Indebtedness:

Fair value has been estimated based on interestcatrently available to the Company for borrowimgth
similar characteristics and maturities.

Commitments to Extend Credit, Standby Letters o£@it, and Financial Guarantees:

The amount of off-balance sheet commitments tonekteedit, standby letters of credit, and financial
guarantees is considered equal to fair value. Becafithe uncertainty involved in attempting toesssthe
likelihood and timing of commitments being drawronpcoupled with the lack of an established maaket the
wide diversity of fee structures, the Company duatshelieve it is meaningful to provide an estimaftéair value
that differs from the given value of the commitment

Note 18. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The components of the Company’s accumulated ottrapoehensive loss, net of income taxes, as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, were as follows:

Unrealized
Unrealized Loss Benefit Accumulated
Loss on Cash Flow Plan Comprehensive
on Securities Hedge Derivative Liability Loss
(Amounts in thousands)
December 31, 20C $ (6,49) $ 792 $ — §$ (7,289
December 31, 20C $ (49.81) $ (1,999 $ (708 $  (52,51)
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Note 19. Parent Company Financial Information

Condensed financial information related to Firsti@aunity as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and&oin ef
the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2086 follows:

December 31
Condensed Balance Shee 2008 2007

(Amounts in thousands)

Assets
Cash $ 2,03 $ 2,88
Securities available for sa 11,60¢ 6,871
Loans 1,00 —
Investment in subsidial 211,52¢ 217,30°
Other asset 8,161 6,10¢
Total asset $234,34: $233,17.
Liabilities
Other liabilities $ 602 $ 61C
Long-term debt 15,46¢ 15,46«
Total liabilities 16,06 16,07+
Stockholders Equity
Preferred stoc 40,41¢ —
Common stocl 12,051 11,49¢
Additional paic-in capital 128,52¢ 108,79!
Retained earning 105,16! 117,67(
Treasury stocl (15,36¢) (13,589
Accumulated other comprehensive | (52,517 (7,287)
Total stockholder equity 218,27t 217,09¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $234,34.  $233,17.

Condensed Statements of Incon

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007

2006

(Amounts in thousands)

Cash dividends received from subsidiary b $22,38! $26,40¢ $15,77¢
Other income 2,104 2,85¢ 354
Operating expens (2,200 (2,10€) (2,049
Income tax benefit (expens 24 (545) 1,237
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidi (19,230 3,027 13,631

Net income 3,081 29,63: 28,94¢
Dividends on preferred stot 25E — —

Net income available to common shareholc $ 2,82¢ $29,63: $28,94¢
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Years Ended December 31

Condensed Statements of Cash Flo

2008

2007

2006

Cash flows from operating activities

(Amounts in thousands)

Net income $ 3,081 $29,63: $28,94¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating

activities:

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidi 19,23( (3,029 (13,63)

Loss (gain) on sale of securiti 625 (447) (62

(Increase) decrease in other as (2,059 (2,679 63

(Decrease) increase in other liabilit 7 99¢ 45E

Other, ne 2,471 — (3)
Net cash provided by operating activit 23,34 24,48 15,77(
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of securities available for ¢ (13,119 (3,217%) (1,88))
Proceeds from sale of securities available for 3,32¢ 4,671 2,21(
Investment in subsidiar (40,000 (5,39%) —
Other, ne’ (1,047 (2,390 3
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (50,83%) (6,337) 332
Cash flows from financing activities
Issuance of preferred sto 41,50( — —
Issuance of common sto 60¢€ 1,115 1,51¢
Acquisition of treasury stoc (4,227 (9,170 (4,56¢€)
Dividends paic (12,457 (12,079 (11,659
Other, ne 1,22( 352 1,772
Net cash used in financing activiti 26,65: (19,779 (12,935
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (842) (1,63)) 3,161
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 2,88( 4,517 1,34¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ' $ 203 $ 2,88( $ 4,511

Note 20. Segment Information

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company operatdsmitvo business segments, community banking and
insurance services. The Community Banking segmnmetitdes both commercial and consumer lending apdsie
services. This segment provides customers with puatiucts as commercial loans, real estate loarssnéss
financing and consumer loans. This segment alsaiges customers with several choices of deposiiyrets
including demand deposit accounts, savings accant<ertificates of deposit. In addition, the Coumity
Banking segment provides wealth management sertocg®road range of customers. The Insurance &ervi
segment is a full-service insurance agency progidimmmercial and personal lines of insurance.
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The following table sets forth information about tieportable operating segments and reconciliatidhis
information to the consolidated financial statersattand for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Community Insurance Parent/
Banking Services Elimination Total
(In thousands)
Net interest incom $ 66,70 $ (49 $ (819 $ 65,83
Provision for loan losse 7,422 — — 7,422
Noninterest incom (4,730 5,04z 2,06z 2,37¢
Noninterest expens 57,70 4,371 (1,559 60,51¢
Income before income tax (3,159 622 2,80z 271
Provision for income taxe (3,802 182 80¢ (2,810
Net income $ 64 $ 43¢ $ 199 $ 3,081
End of period goodwill and other intangibl $ 78,86¢ $10,74¢ @ — $ 89,61
End of period asse $2,103,44" $12,11. $ 17,75¢ $2,133,31
Note 21. Supplemental Financial Data (Unaudited)
Quarterly earnings for the years ended Decembe2(®18 and 2007, are as follows:
2008
Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
(Amounts in thousands, except per share dat:

Interest incom: $29,547  $27,43: $26,55( $ 27,23t
Interest expens 13,185 10,80¢ 10,22% 10,70¢
Net interest incom 16,36( 16,62¢ 16,32 16,527
Provision for loan losse 32Z 937 3,461 2,701
Net interest income after provision for loan los 16,03 15,68¢ 12,86: 13,82¢
Other income 7,321 7,574 7,72( (22,140
Net securities gains (losse 1,82( 15C 162 (239
Other expense 16,28:¢ 14,75¢ 14,44 15,03:
Income (loss) before income tax 8,89t 8,65: 6,304 (23,58)
Income taxe: 2,58: 2,41¢F 1,75z (9,567
Net income (loss 6,31z 6,23¢ 4,551 (24,020
Preferred dividend — — — 25E
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol $ 6312 $623 $ 4551 $(14,27Y
Per share

Basic earning: $ 057 $ 057 $ 04z $ (1.29)

Diluted earning: $ 057 $ 056 $ 041 $ (1.29)

Dividends $ 028 $ 028 $ 028 $ 0.2¢
Weighted average basic shares outstan 11,03( 10,99: 10,957 11,25:
Weighted average diluted shares outstan 11,10¢ 11,07: 11,03¢ 11,25:
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS — (Continued)

2007
Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Interest incom: $30,68¢  $31,97¢ $32,73.  $32,19:
Interest expens 13,67 14,96¢ 15,58¢ 15,05
Net interest incom 17,01t 17,01« 17,14: 17,14:
Provision for loan losse — — 717
Net interest income after provision for loan los 17,01¢ 17,01 17,14: 16,42¢
Other income 5,08¢ 5,517 5,97( 7,847
Net securities gain 12¢ 30 50 202
Other expense 12,15¢ 12,07t 12,83¢ 13,39«
Income before income tax 10,07: 10,48¢ 10,321 11,08:
Income taxe: 2,94¢ 3,047 3,011 3,32¢
Net income $ 712« $743¢ $ 7,316 $ 7,75%
Per share
Basic earning $ 06 $ 066 $ 068 $ 0.7C
Diluted earning: $ 06 $ 066 $ 06t $ 0.6
Dividends $ 027 $ 027 $ 027 $ 0.2i
Weighted average basic shares outstan 11,25¢ 11,26 11,17¢ 11,12:
Weighted average diluted shares outstan 11,347 11,32( 11,23( 11,20¢
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- REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTIN G FIRM -

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directorslahe Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of First Community Bancshares, Inc. &nd i
Subsidiaries (the “Companyds of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the relatesbtidated statements of incor
changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows#mh of the years in the three-year period endegber 31,
2008. These consolidated financial statementsharesisponsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighargio
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢esa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurtrifinancial statements. An audit also includeessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfirancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the
financial position of First Community Bancshares;.land its Subsidiaries as of December 31, 20688607, and
the results of their operations and their cash $léov each of the years in the three-year periattdribecember 31,
2008 in conformity with accounting principles gesir accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Company adopted in 2008 the réthog
and disclosure provisions of Statement of Finan&@lounting Standards No. 15+air Value Measurements
Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Positilin 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset
When the Market for That Asset Is Not Actimmerging Issues Task Force 06 counting for Deferred
Compensation and Postretirement Benefit AspedEhdbrsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangenseahd
Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff PosiEdhF Issue No 99-20-JAmendments to the Impairment
Guidance of EITF Issue No. 99-20

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the Company'’s internal controlrdireancial reporting as of December 31, 2008, Hase criteria
established imnternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidns
the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our reportddist@rch 13, 2009 expressed an unqualified opiniothe
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting.

Dixen Hghes PLLC

Asheville, North Carolina
March 13, 2009
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MANAGEMENT’'S ASSESSMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FI NANCIAL REPORTING

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company’beisponsible for the preparation, integrity, and fa
presentation of the consolidated financial stateém@cluded in this Annual Report on Form 103Ke consolidate
financial statements and notes included in thisuahiReport on Form 10-K have been prepared in corifg with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles awtssarily include some amounts that are basechoagemens
best estimates and judgments.

We, as management of the Company, are responsibéstablishing and maintaining effective interc@htrol
over financial reporting that is designed to pragteliable financial statements in conformity witts. generally
accepted accounting principles. The system ofialecontrol over financial reporting as it relateshe financial
statements is evaluated for effectiveness by manageand tested for reliability. Any system of im@l control, no
matter how well designed, has inherent limitationsluding the possibility that a control can becaimvented or
overridden and misstatements due to error or fraag occur and not be detected. Also, because ofgesan
conditions, internal control effectiveness may vawgr time. Accordingly, even an effective systeinmternal
control will provide only reasonable assurance wépect to financial statement preparation.

Management conducted an assessment of the effeets®f the Company'’s internal control over finahci
reporting based on the frameworkiimiernal Control-Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsor
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Basethisrassessment, management concluded that iensyst
internal control over financial reporting was etfee as of December 31, 2008. Dixon Hughes PLL@e¢pendent
registered public accounting firm, has issued &astdtion report on the effectiveness of the Corpisanternal
control over financial reporting.

The Report of Independent Registered Public Acdogritirm on Management’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting appears hereafter in iBeofi this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

/s/ John M. Mendez

John M. Mendez
President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ David D. Brown

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Officer
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- REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTIN G FIRM -

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited First Community Bancshares, Ind.Subsidiaries (the “Company”) internal control bve
financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, basedriteria established imternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrise Treadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and fte assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over fingh reporting, included in the accompanying Mamaget's
Assessment of Internal Control over Financial Repgr Our responsibility is to express an opiniantie
Company’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8oa
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether effective internal control over financieporting was maintained in all material respects. &udit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control digancial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design gedating effectiveness of internal control basedhenassessed
risk. Our audit also included performing such othiercedures as we considered necessary in thengstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable lfasisur opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipieee A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (pjpeto the maintenance of records that, in redsiendetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) idmveasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as nacesgarmit preparation of financial statementsdgordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréipts and expenditures of the company are breadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdis of the company; and (3) provide reasonasdeirance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitexd acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegsts.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, First Community Bancshares, Incinta@ned, in all material respects, effective intrcontrol
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20@&¢dd on criteria establishedlimiernal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifriee Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the consolidated financial statgmef First Community Bancshares, Inc. as of amdHe year
ended December 31, 2008, and our report dated MacRB009, expressed an unqualified opinion onghos
consolidated financial statements. As discussédbite 1 to the consolidated financial statements Gbmpany
adopted in 2008 the recognition and disclosureipions of Statement of Financial Accounting StaddaYo. 157,
Fair Value Measuremen, Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff PositNo. 157-3Determining the Fair
Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for Thsget Is Not Activd&smerging Issues Task Force
06-4,Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postrategat Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dolle Li
Insurance Arrangementand Financial Accounting Standards Board StafftRosEITF Issue No
99-20-1,Amendments to the Impairment Guidance of EITF 15kued9-20.

Dixenn Hughes PLLC

Asheville, North Carolina
March 13, 2009
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of the end of the period covered by this repbgt, Company conducted an evaluation, under thersigmon
and with the participation of the Company’s manageimincluding the Company’s Chief Executive Offiedong
with the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, of teffectiveness of the design and operation of they@my’s
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant t&xisbange Act Rule 13a-15(b). Based upon that etiayahe
Company'’s Chief Executive Officer along with thermany’s Chief Financial Officer concluded that the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures deetafe in timely alerting them to material infortian relating
to the Company (including its consolidated subsidg required to be included in the Company’squiac SEC
filings. There have not been any changes in the@amyis internal controls over financial reportingricig the most
recent fiscal quarter that have materially affectadare reasonably likely to materially affece tBompany’s
internal controls over financial reporting.

Disclosure controls and procedures are Companyasrand other procedures that are designed taetisat
information required to be disclosed by the Compiarthe reports that it files or submits under Ehehange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported vithitime periods specified in the SEC’s rules famohs.
Disclosure controls and procedures include, withioitation, controls and procedures designed suenthat
information required to be disclosed by the Compiartye reports that it files or submits under Ehehange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s nesmaugt, including the Chief Executive Officer andeZh
Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timelgcisions regarding required disclosure.

Our Management’s Report on Internal Control OvexaRcial Reporting and the Report of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm on Managemensse&ssment of Internal Control Over Financial Repgrare
each hereby incorporated by reference from IterhtBis Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.

PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNXCE.

The required information concerning directors areceaitive officers has been omitted in accordandk wi
General Instruction G. Such information regardiimgators and executive officers will be set fortider the

headings of “Election of Directors”, “Continuing flectors”, and “Executive Officers who are not Dims” of the
Proxy Statement relating to the 2009 Annual Meetih§tockholders and is incorporated herein byresfee.

Information relating to compliance with Section 466f the Exchange Act has been omitted in accaelarith
General Instruction G. Such information will be &&th under the heading of “Section 16(a) Benafi€wnership
Reporting Compliance” of the Proxy Statement ratato the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and i
incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics thatespgliits principal executive officer, principatdincial
officer, principal accounting officer or controller persons performing similar functions, as welbd employees
and directors of the Company. A copy of the Com{m@pde of Ethics is available on the Company’s sitebat
www.fcbinc.com. Since its adoption, there have beemwaivers of the code of ethics related to anthefabove
officers.

Information relating to the Audit Committee and thiedit Committee Financial Expert has been omitted
accordance with General Instruction G. Such infagrmmaregarding the Audit Committee and the Audin@oittee
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Financial Expert will be set forth under the hegdiReport of the Audit Committeedf the Proxy Statement relati
to the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders andhioiporated herein by reference.

The Company has not made any material changeg fortitedures by which stockholders may recommend

nominees to the Company’s board of directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC .

Franklin P. Hall
Businessman; Senior Partner, Hall & Family Law Firm
Commonwealth of Virginia Delegate

Allen T. Hamner, Ph.D.
Retired Professor of Chemistry, West Virginia Wgale
College

Richard S. Johnson
President, The Wilton Compani

I. Norris Kantor
Of Counsel, Katz, Kantor & Perkins, Attorneys-ati a

John M. Mendez

President and Chief Executive Officer, First Comityun
Bancshares, Inc.; Chief Executive Officer, First
Community Bank, N. A

A. A. Modena

Past Executive Vice President and Secretary, First
Community Bancshares, Inc.; Past President andf Chie
Executive Officer, The Flat Top National Bank of
Bluefield

Robert E. Perkinson, Jr.
Past Vice President-Operations, MAPCO Coal, Inc. —
Virginia Region

William P. Stafford
President, Princeton Machinery Service, |

William P. Stafford, I
Attorney at Law, Brewster, Morhous, Cameron, Cat
Moore, Kersey & Stafford, PLL(

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC .

John M. Mendez
President and Chief Executive Offic

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Officel
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANK, N. A.

W. C. Blankenship, Jr. John M. Mendez

Agent, State Farm Insurance President and Chief Executive Officer, First
Community Bancshares, Inc.; Chief Executive Officer
First Community Bank, N. A

D. L. Bowling, Jr. A. A. Modena

President, Best Energy, Inc. Past Executive Vice President and Secretary, First
Community Bancshares, Inc.; Past President andf Chie
Executive Officer, The Flat Top National Bank of

Bluefield
Juanita G. Bryan Robert E. Perkinson, Jr.
Homemaker Past Vice President-Operations, MAPCO Coal, Inc. —

Virginia Region

Robert L. Buzzo Clyde B. Ratliff
Vice President and Secretary, First Community Baaess, Inc. President, Gasco Drilling, Inc.
President, First Community Bank, N. ,

C. William Davis William P. Stafford

Attorney-at-Law, Richardson & Davit President, Princeton Machinery Service, |

Franklin P. Hall William P. Stafford, II

Businessman; Senior Partner, Hall & Family Law Firm Attorney at Law, Brewster, Morhous, Cameron, Cat
Commonwealth of Virginia Delega Moore, Kersey & Stafford, PLL(

Allen T. Hamner, Ph.D. Frank C. Tinder

Retired Professor of Chemistry, West Virginia Wgale  President, Tinder Enterprises, Inc. and Tinco Lreasi
College Corporation

Richard S. Johnson Dale F. Woody

President, The Wilton Compani President, Woody Lumber Compa

I. Norris Kantor
Of Counsel, Katz, Kantor & PerkinAttorneysai-Law

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information called for by Item 11 has been ¢exiin accordance with General Instruction G. Such
information will be set forth under the heading'@bmpensation Discussion and Analysis” of the Pr8tgtement
relating to the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholdensl is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The required information concerning security owhgr®f certain beneficial owners and managementbleas
omitted in accordance with General Instruction GetSinformation appears under the heading of “Bieref
Ownership of Common Stock by Certain Beneficial @vanand Managemendf the Proxy Statement relating to
2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is incogpet herein by reference.
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Information regarding our compensation plans unddch the Company’s equity securities are authorine
issuance as of December 31, 2008 is included itathle which follows.

Number of Number of Securities
Securities to be Remaining Available
Issued Upon Weighted-Average for Future Issuance
Exercise of Exercise Price of Under Equity
Outstanding Outstanding Compensation Plans
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants (Excluding Securities
Plan Category and Rights and Rights Reflected in Column (a))
(a) (b) ()
Equity compensation plans approved by sect
holders 42,000 % 30.4¢ 101,34
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holder: 210,09: 23.0C 36,30
Total 252,09: 137,64

For additional information regarding equity compagian plans, see Note 12 — Equity Based Compensafio
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsidtezdd in Item 8 hereof.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANCDIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.

The information called for by Item 13 has been ¢exiin accordance with General Instruction G. Such
information shall be set forth under the headingTodnsactions With Directors and Officers” of tReoxy
Statement relating to the 2009 Annual Meeting oc&holders and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information called for by Item 14 has been taxiin accordance with General Instruction G. Such
information shall be set forth under the headingfefdit Fees” of the Proxy Statement relating te #009 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated hebgimeference.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

(&) Documents Filed as Part of this Report
(1) Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements of First Camity Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries togethtr wi
the Independent Registered Public Accounting FirRéport dated March 13, 2009, are incorporated by
reference from Item 8 hereof.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

No financial statement schedules are being filadesthe required information is inapplicable or is
presented in the consolidated financial statemantslated notes.

(b) Exhibits
Exhibit No. Exhibit

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated July 31, 208®@ng First Community Bancshares, Inc. and
Coddle Creek Financial Corp.(2

3(i) Articles of Incorporation of First Community Baneshks, Inc., as amended.

3(ii) Certificate of Designation Series A Preferred S(agk

3(iiiy Bylaws of First Community Bancshares, Inc., as atedr(17)

4.1  Specimen stock certificate of First Community Bdrares, Inc.(3
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Exhibit No.

4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
101
1C1.1
10.2
103

1C.4
105
1C.6
10.6.1

10.7
1C.8
109

1C.10

1C.11
1C.12
1C.13
1C.14
1C.15

1C.16
1C.17
1C.18
1C.19
11
12*
21
23.1*
31.1*

31.2*
32*

Exhibit

Indenture Agreement dated September 25, 2003

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of FC&pital Trust dated September 25, 2003.,
Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement date@®@bpt 25, 2003.(1:

Form of Certificate for the Series A Preferred &(@e)

Warrant to purchase 176,546 shares of Common StoEkst Community Bancshares, Inc(z

First Community Bancshares, Inc. 1999 Stock Op@ontracts(2) and Plan.(

Amendment to First Community Bancshares, Inc. 1S@@k Option Plan.(11

First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2001 -Qualified Directors Stock Option Plan.(

Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, leetwast Community Bancshares, Inc. and John
M. Mendez.(6]

First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2000 ExecutiveeRi@n Plan, as amended.(:

First Community Bancshares, Inc. Split Dollar Péandl Agreement.(z

First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2001 DirectorspBapental Retirement Plan.(

First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2001 Directorspberpental Retirement Plan. Second Amendment
(B.W. Harvey, Sr— October 19, 2004).(1¢

First Community Bancshares, Inc. Wrap Plan

Reserved

Form of Indemnification Agreement between First @amity Bancshares, Inc., its Directors and
Certain Executive Officers.(¢

Form of Indemnification Agreement between First @mmity Bank, N. A, its Directors and Certain
Executive Officers.(9

Reserved

First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2004 Omnibus S@gtion Plan (10) and Award Agreement.(.
Reserved

First Community Bancshares, Inc. Directors Defe@etnpensation Plan.(

First Community Bancshares, Inc. Deferred Compémsaind Supplemental Bonus Plan For Key
Employees.(15

Employment Agreement dated November 30, 2006, ketviderst Community Bank, N. A. and Ronald
L. Campbell.(19

Employment Agreement dated September 28, 2007 destvisdreenPoint Insurance Group, Inc. and
Shawn C. Cummings.(2!

Securities Purchase Agreement by and between thedJBtates Department of the Treasury and First
Community Bancshares, Inc. dated November 21, 202f

Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, leetWwast Community Bancshares, Inc. and
David D. Brown.(23'

Statement regarding computation of earnings paeg(is)

Computation of Ratios

Subsidiaries of Registra— Reference is made “ltem 1. Busines” for the required informatior
Consent of Dixon Hughes PLLC, Independent Regidteugblic Accounting Firm for First Community
Bancshares, In

Rule 13i-14(a)/a5-14(a)Certification of Chief Executive Office

Rule 13i-14(a)/a5-14(a)Certification of Chief Financial Office

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigfhancial Officer Section 135

*  Furnished herewitt

(1) Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly ReparEorm 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 205 6n
August 5, 2005

(2) Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly ReparEorm 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 20@2| 6n
August 14, 2002
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(3) Incorporated by reference from the Annual ReporEorm 10-Kfor the period ended December 31, 2002, 1
on March 25, 2003, as amended on March 31, Z

(4) Incorporated by reference from the Annual ReporForm 10-Kfor the period ended December 31, 1999,
on March 30, 2000, as amended April 13, 2(

(5) The option agreements entered into pursuant t&208 Stock Option Plan and the 2001 Non-Qualified
Directors Stock Option Plan are incorporated bgnerfice from the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qffer t
period ended June 30, 2002, filed on August 1422

(6) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @@rent Report on Form 8-K dated and filed Deceniléer
2008. The Registrant has entered into substantddiytical agreements with Robert L. Buzzo andtEpBen
Lilly, with the only differences being with respdottitle and salary

(7) Incorporated by reference from the Current Repoifform 8-K dated August 22, 2006, and filed Augigst
2006.
(8) Reserved

(9) Form of indemnification agreement entered intoly Company and by First Community Bank, N. A. with
their respective directors and certain officereath including, for the Registrant and Bank: JohrMdndez,
Robert L. Schumacher, Robert L. Buzzo, E. Stepliby David D. Brown, and Gary R. Mills. Incorpoed by
reference from the Annual Report on Form 10-K far period ended December 31, 2003, filed on Magch 1
2004, and amended on May 19, 20

(10) Incorporated by reference from the 2004 First ComitguBancshares, Inc. Definitive Proxy filed on Mhar19,
2004.

(11) Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly ReporEForm 10-Q for the period ended September 303,20
filed on November 10, 200

(12) Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly ReporEorm 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 26ty
on May 7, 2004

(13) Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly ReporEorm 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 204 6n
August 6, 2004

(14) Incorporated by reference from the Annual ReporForm 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2864,
filed on March 16, 2005. Amendments in substantisilinilar form were executed for Directors Clarkgrior,
Hamner, Modena, Perkinson, Stafford, and Staffbr

(15) Incorporated by reference from the Current Reportorm 8-K dated October 24, 2006, and filed Oat@%e
2006.

(16) Incorporated by reference from Footnote 1 of théeNdo Consolidated Financial Statements inclugedin.

(17) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 of th&i@nt Report on Form 8-K dated February 14, 26G&]
on February 20, 200

(18) Reserve
(19) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 of Form ¢-3 registration statement filed May 2, 20t

(20) Incorporated by reference from the Annual ReporEorm 10-Kfor the period ended December 31, 2007, 1
on March 13, 200¢

(21) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 of thert@nt Report on Fori8-K dated and filed July 31, 200

(22) Incorporated by reference from the Current Repotftorm 8-K dated November 21, 2008, and filed
November 24, 200¢

(23) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 of @&rent Report on Form 8-K dated and filed Deceniléer
2008. The Registrant has entered into substantdgiytical agreements with Gary R. Mills, Martyn Pell, anc
Robert L. Schumacher, with the only differencesigevith respect to title, salary, term, and paymgran
termination after a change in contr

(24) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @&rent Report on Form 8-K dated December 30, 2808,
filed January 5, 200¢
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas
duly caused this report to be signed on its bdhathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized erl8th day of
March, 2009.

First Community Bancshares, Inc.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ John M. Mende

John M. Mendez
President and Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ David D. Browr

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe
following persons on behalf of the Registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ John M. Mendez Director, President and March 13, 200
John M. Mende: Chief Executive Officer
/s/ David D. Brown Chief Financial Officer March 13, 200
David D. Brown
/s/ Franklin P. Hall Director March 13, 200
Franklin P. Hall
/sl Allen T. Hamner Director March 13, 200
Allen T. Hamnel
/sl Richard S. Johnson Director March 13, 200
Richard S. Johnsc
/sl 1. Norris Kantor Director March 13, 200
I. Norris Kantor
/sl Robert E. Perkinson, Jr. Director March 13, 200

Robert E. Perkinson, <

/s/ William P. Stafford Chairman of the Board of Directors March 13, 200
William P. Stafford

/s/ William P. Stafford, Il Director March 13, 200
William P. Stafford, Il
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Exhibit 12

Computation of Ratios

Basic Earnings Per Share =

Diluted Earnings Per Share =

Cash Dividends Per Share =

Book Value Per Share

Return on Average Asse
Return on Average Sharehold Equity
Efficiency Ratio

Loans to Deposit
Dividend Payout

Average Shareholde Equity to Average Asse
Tier | Capital Ratio

Total Capital Ratio

Tier | Leverage Rati
Net Charg-offs to Average Loans

Non-performing Loans to Total Loans

Non-performing Assets to Total Loans Plus OREO
Allowance for Loan Losses to Total Loans =
Allowance for Loan Losses to Non-performing Assets=
Allowance for Loan Losses to Non-performing Loans =

Net Interest Margit =

97

Net Income Available to Commc
Shareholders/Weighted Average Common Shares
Outstanding

Net Income Available to Commc
Shareholders/Weighted Average Diluted Shares
Outstanding

Dividends Paid to Common Shareholders/Average
Common Shares Outstandi

Total Common Shareholders’ Equity/Common
Shares Outstandir

Net Income/Average Asse

Net Income/Average Sharehold Equity

Noninterest Expense/(Net Interest Income |
Noninterest Income

Average Net Loans/Average Deposits Outstan:
Dividends Declared/Net Income Available to
Common Shareholde

Average Shareholde Equity/Average Assel
Shareholders’ Equity - Intangible Assets - Secesiti
Mark-to-market Capital Reserve (Tier | Capital)/
Risk Adjusted Asset

Tier | Capital Plus Allowance for Loan Losses/Risk
Adjusted Asset

Tier | Capital/Average Asse

(Gross Charge-offs Less Recoveries)/Average Net
Loans

(Nonaccrual Loans Plus Loans Past Due 90 Days or
Greater)/Gross Loans Net of Unearned Intel
(Nonaccrual Loans Plus Loans Past Due 90 Days or
Greater Plus OREOQ)/Total Loans plus OR
Allowance for Loan Losses/(Gross Loans Net of
Unearned Interes

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Nonaccrual Loans plus
Loans Past Due 90 days or Greater plus OF
Allowance for Loan Losses/(Nonaccrual Loans plus
Performing Loans

Tax Equivalent Net Interest Income/Average Eari
Assets



Exhibit 23.1

- CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTI NG FIRM -

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrélggstration statements pertaining to the 2004 Bom
Stock Option Plan (Form S-8, No. 333-120376); teen@onwealth Bank Stock Option Plan (Form S-8,
No. 333-106338); the 2001 Directors Stock Option Plan fF&-8, No. 333-75222); the 1999 Stock Option Plan
(Form S-8, 333-31338); the Employee Stock Ownerahiph Savings Plan (Form S-8, No. 333-63865); the
Investments Planning Consultants Inc. acquisitiorifh S-3, No. 333-142558); the Stone Capital Maneaye
acquisition (Form S-3, No. 333-104384); the UnieéShelf Registration (Form S-3, No. 333-15369a¢; Capital
Purchase Program Warrant Resale (Form S-3, No188365); and the Greenpoint Insurance Group, Inc.
acquisition (Form S-3, No. 333-148279) of First Goumity Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Camg}) of
our reports dated March 13, 2009, with respedtéocbnsolidated financial statements of the Comgauaythe
effectiveness of internal control over financigbogting, which reports appear in the Compam008 Annual Repc
on Form 10-K.

Our audit report on the consolidated financialestagnts refers to the adoption of the recognitiahaiaclosure
provisions of Statement of Financial Accountingrigards No. 157air Value Measurementgjnancial
Accounting Standards Board Staff Position No. 15D&€ermining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset \Whiee
Market for That Asset Is Not Acti, Emerging Issues Task Force 06Aécounting for Deferred Compensation and
Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangementand Financial Accounting
Standards Board Staff Position EITF Issue No 9%28mendments to the Impairment Guidance of EITF Issue
No. 9¢-20.

Dixorn Hyghus PLLC

Asheville, North Carolina
March 13, 2009
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
[, John M. Mendez, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10fkcirst Community Bancshares, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahcondition, results of operations and cash flofivhe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actédul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedorres
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thgtmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglon¢ing or caused such internal control over finahc
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabil
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragtisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisin
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reportirtat
occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal daathat has materially affected, or is reasondikgly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohtweer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigtsaboard of
directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortverr
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmi
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

/s/ John M. Mendez

John M. Mendez
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 13, 2009
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, David D. Brown, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10fkcirst Community Bancshares, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahcondition, results of operations and cash flofivhe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actédul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedorres
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thgtmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglon¢ing or caused such internal control over finahc
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabil
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragtisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisin
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reportirtat
occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal daathat has materially affected, or is reasondikgly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohtweer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigtsaboard of
directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortverr
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmi
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

/s/ David D. Brown

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 13, 2009
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of First Commity Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 16K
the period ended December 31, 2008, as filed WthSecurities and Exchange Commission on the daeoh(the
“Report”), the undersigned hereby certify, to tificers’ best knowledge and belief, pursuant tdJ18.C.

Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9€¢G&dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

() the Report fully complies with the requiremesitSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exgfean
Act of 1934, as amended; and

(b) the information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition
and results of operations of the Company.

First Community Bancshares, Inc.

/s/ John M. Mendez

John M. Mendez
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ David D. Brown

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Officer

Dated this 13th day of March, 2009.
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